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29 June 2012
Dear Councillor
I hereby give you notice that a meeting of the POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE to be held in the Council
Chamber, The Town Hall, Chesham, on
MONDAY 2nd JULY 2012 AT APPROXIMATELY 8.00pm
(i.e. immediately following the close of the Development Control Committee meeting which is due to
commence at 7.30pm)
when the business set out below is proposed to be transacted:
AGENDA
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman for the administrative year 2012/13.
Apologies for absence.
Declarations of interest.
To receive and confirm the Minutes of the meeting of 26th March 2012.
To receive and consider the Minutes of:
Chesham & District Transport Users’ Group of 21st February, 3rd April and 15th May 2012.
Chesham Action Partnership of 14th March and 29th May 2012.
Town Centre Working Group of 15th March 2012.
Transition Towns Chesham of 4th April and 13th June 2012.
Culvert Monitoring Group of 14th June 2012.
Devolved Services Update.
Review of Council and Committees’ Terms of Reference.
Financial Report 2011/12 Out‐turn.
Financial Statements and Annual Report 2011/12.
Residents’ Survey on Council Services.
Annual Performance Plan.
Corporate Marketing Review.
General Power of Competence.
‘Localising Support for Council Tax Funding Arrangements’ Consultation.
Smoke Free Policy.
Internal Auditors Report.
Jubilee Events Finance – supplementary report
CDC Use of Open Spaces – supplementary report
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Chesham Action Partnership
Management Committee Meeting
Tuesday 14th March 2012 at Chesham Town Hall
In attendance:
Martin Parkes (Chairman)
David Carter (Treasurer)
Kathryn Graves (Secretary)
Merrin Molesworth
Ken Austin
Colette Littley
Mora Walker
David Gardner
Tom Gorsuch
Justine Fulford
Noel Brown
Peter Squire

Better Chesham
Chesham Society
Chesham Town Council (CTC)
Chiltern Voice
Chesham Environmental Group (CEG)
CTC
Chesham Museum
Chiltern District Council (CDC)
Chesham Environmental Group
CTC, CDC, BCC
Rotary Club of Chesham

Apologies:
Jan Longhurst (Church2Community), Geoff Gigg (Paradigm), Barbara Richardson
(COPAG) and Fred Wilson (Chesham Chamber).
Apologies for lateness: Noel Brown
1.
Changes to Voting Rights in the Constitution
It was agreed that a Special General Meeting will be held in April 2012 to adopt the
proposed changes to the constitution. The changes will mean that every member has
a vote at the AGM, but only committee members will vote at committee meetings.
2.
Membership Framework
The committee discussed how the membership of ChAP should be defined, although
no consensus was reached. Stemming from the discussion it was agreed that it is
also necessary to define terms of reference for the Management Committee. Martin,
Tom and David Carter will work to produce these definitions.
Action: Martin, Tom & David Carter
Mora arrived at 2.25pm.
3.
Project Assessment Forms
Kathryn will produce a project assessment form using SEEDA’s form as a model. This
will be sent to all of the organisations that have received ChAP funding in the last
year.
Action: Kathryn
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It was agreed that completion of the assessment form after one year should be a
requirement of future ChAP grants and that project progress should be reviewed at
the AGM. A further requirement that groups should accept a mentor from the
general membership of ChAP was also agreed. The committee then decided that
grants should only be given with proof of a receipt, with the exception of small/start‐
up groups who may have cash‐flow problems.
Noel arrived at 2.30pm.
4.
Update on Internal Review of the CCV
(i)
Tourism
Ken is investigating the development of a web site through Our Land to promote
Chesham as a tourist destination. David Gardner suggested the Hidden Britain web
site as a useful resource.
(ii)
Community
David Gardener said that a community teams database is currently being updated.
(iii)
Transport
The group considered the transport priorities for the town, including the provision of
bus services that meet the community’s needs, such as access to health services and
better schedules from the villages.
5.
Town Team
Martin outlined the background to Chesham’s bid to become a Portas Pilot and the
creation of a Town Team. There was a wide‐ranging discussion on the types of
projects that should be included within the bid, which will be submitted as a video
presentation. It was agreed to stage a flash mob on the 24th March in Market Square
to show the community’s support for the bid.
6.
Any Other Business
Tom suggested that ChAP should be proactive in promoting Chesham. Martin
explained that Better Chesham is working to produce a “Discover Chesham”
brochure, which ChAP could have input in to.
The meeting closed at 3.26 pm.
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Chesham Action Partnership
Management Committee Meeting
Tuesday 29th May 2012 at Chesham Town Hall
In attendance:
Martin Parkes (Chairman)
David Carter (Treasurer)
Kathryn Graves (Secretary)
Ken Austin
Colette Littley
Mora Walker
Tom Gorsuch
Noel Brown
Bill Richards
Barbara Richardson

Better Chesham
Chesham Society
Chesham Town Council (CTC)
Chesham Environmental Group (CEG)
CTC
Chesham Museum
CTC, CDC, BCC
CTC
COPAG

Apologies:
Jan Longhurst (Church2Community), Fred Wilson (Chesham Chamber) and Justine
Fulford (CEG).
Apologies for lateness: Noel Brown
1.
Minutes of the 14th March 2012
The minutes were accepted as an accurate record. It was noted that develop of the
membership framework, as discussed in Minute No. 2, will be included alongside
Martin, David and Tom’s work on the terms of reference. Kathryn has yet to put
together a project evaluation form as referred to in Minute No. 3.
Action: Martin, David, Tom & Kathryn
2.
Report Back on Committee Terms of Reference
The sub‐group recommends that members of the committee should have specific
roles and responsibilities to help make the work of ChAP more efficient. As the
committee were happy with this proposal, the sub‐group will continue to develop
this idea further and report back at the next meeting.
Action: Martin, David & Tom
3.
Funding Decisions
Following some discussion, the committee agreed on the following procedure for
funding applications:
•
•
•
•
•

Application sent to Kathryn
Kathryn forwards the application to the committee by email
Any queries are sent by the committee to Kathryn
Kathryn forwards queries to the applicant
The application is added to the agenda of a general meeting
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•
•
•
•
•

The application is sent to all ChAP partners
The applicant attends the general meeting to promote their application
and answer questions
A closed committee‐only session is held at the end of the general meeting
where either (a) a decision is reached or (b) the committee decides what
further information it requires in order to make a decision
Kathryn informs the applicant
In the event of (b) the decision may be made by the committee by
email, or at a management committee meeting and Kathryn then informs
the applicant of the final decision

Kathryn will include a summary of this procedure on the application form.
Action: Kathryn
Bill suggested that ChAP should publish a timetable including deadlines for
applications and when decisions will be made in order to prevent late applications.
Action: Martin & Kathryn
Tom emphasised the need for committee members to declare interests when
considering applications.
Noel arrived at 2.20pm.
4.
Treasurer’s Report
David distributed a handout of ChAP’s current financial position (£5869.10). We have
not yet received our funding from Chiltern District Council for this year.
5.
Young People’s Representation
Martin explained the need for youth representation to make ChAP more inclusive
and that he has been approached by a number of youth organisations. He suggested
that the disparate youth groups in town could form a “youth ChAP” and that
representatives from that group could attend ChAP and that a ChAP representative
could attend the youth ChAP. This would help the two organisations to work in
parallel.
Colette suggested that the Head Boy and Head Girl from Chiltern Hills Academy
would be a legitimate voice representing youth, as they have been elected to their
positions.
The committee concluded that it would welcome youth representation and that this
should not be confined to just one person.
6.
Communication
Martin said that ChAP needs to improve how it is communicating what it does to the
town and that we need people to volunteer to help get the message out. Bill agreed
to put Martin in contact with Suzy Talbot, the editor of the Bucks Examiner and
Martin will approach Merrin Molesworth to see if she can help. The Town Talk was

2

suggested as another useful vehicle and Bill suggested that the Town Council could
alternate its column in YourChesham with ChAP.
Action: Bill & Martin
7.
Volunteer Centre: making it happen
Martin reported that David Gardner is negotiating with Community Impact Bucks for
the creation of a volunteer centre in Chesham Museum. The objectives are to create
a higher profile for volunteering in Chesham, whilst becoming tenants of the
museum, which will assist the museum with their funding. The museum trustees are
happy with this principle.
8.
Portas Status
Chesham’s bid was unsuccessful, but it is intended to submit the bid to the second
round of pilots (deadline end of June). There has also been media interest in the
activities of the Town Team stemming from our initial bid.
9.
Any Other Business
(i)
Committee Roles
Tom said that a number of roles for committee members had been identified during
this meeting. Kathryn will send a call out for committee members to volunteer for
these roles with the minutes.
Action: Kathryn
(ii)
Culvert
Bill reported that options for the culvert in Market Square have been identified by
the Environment Agency (EA). The costs range from £180,000 to £350,000. The EA
are looking for the funds from riparian owners. Bill and the Culvert Monitoring
Group are meeting with the EA in two weeks’ time.
Bill has today received information from Bucks County Council (BCC) that they intend
to place additional barriers around the culvert in new locations, whilst maintaining
the existing orange barriers. Bill and Colette will have a site meeting with BCC
representatives to discuss this.
David said he was concerned at the increase in concrete coloured paviers in the High
Street following the recent water main replacement work and queried whether
these were permanent replacements. Bill will ask the BCC Local Area Technician for
more information.
Action: Bill
The meeting closed at 3.05 pm.
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CHESHAM TOWN COUNCIL
TOWN CENTRE WORKING GROUP

Minutes of the meeting of the Town Centre Working Group held on Thursday 15th
March 2012.
PRESENT:
Cllr Colette Littley (CL), Chesham Town Council
Kathryn Graves (KG), Chesham Town Council
David Carter (DC), Chesham Society
Oliver Asbury (OA), Chiltern District Council
Anthony Jones (AJ), NSL Ltd
Martin Parkes (MP), Town Team
Cllr Peter Hudson (PH), Chiltern District Council
PCSO Anish Sharma (AS), Thames Valley Police
Jed Elverson (JE), YourChesham
Rod Culverhouse (RC), FastBreak Sports

1.
APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Cllr Nik Stewert (Chiltern District Council) and Mike
Barber (Transport for Buckinghamshire).
2.
MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the meeting held on the 8th December 2011 were confirmed as a
correct record.
(i)
High Street A‐boards and Tables
KG explained that she had met with David Stowe of CDC and Mike Barber of BCC to
assess the proliferation of A‐boards and furniture in the High Street. Mike will be
feeding the information back to his manager and David will be asking a Health and
Safety officer at CDC for her guidance with regards to emergency vehicle access on
market days.
3.
COMMUNITY SAFETY/POLICE REPORT
AS described antisocial behaviour problems occurring in the High Street in the
vicinity of Sainbury’s resulting from youths congregating. There has been an increase
in the number of patrols in response to this and the Police are investigating the
possibility of a dispersal order. PH offered to send a letter to support the application
for the dispersal order.
Town Centre Working Group

15 March 2012
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AS said that the youths causing the problems are known and their parents have been
spoken to, but there is a lack of interest in tackling the problem at home. Chiltern
Hills Academy is not willing to get involved, as the incidents are occurring out of
school hours, mainly from 15.30 to 16.30 on week nights, but on Fridays and
Saturdays the problems can continue into the early hours.
Operation Confidence will be starting this Friday to tackle antisocial behaviour in the
town centre. CCTV coverage is poor in the area, so Steve Braund at CDC will be
approached to see if a temporary camera can be installed to improve coverage.
JE and PH said that there is also a problem in the same area at around 6 pm, caused
by older youths (aged approximately 18 to 19). Their antisocial behaviour is affecting
the businesses open in the early evening.
It was agreed to ask the Town Council to write to the headmaster and the board of
governors to express concern regarding this issue. CL agreed to raise this with the
Council.
Action: Colette
AS reported that there had been a spate of fuel thefts in the Chesham area, but
following an arrest these thefts have now ceased.
There was an increase in thefts from motors in February. Following Operation
Guillotine and the arrest of three people, the volume of these crimes has decreased.
There have only been two reports of cycling in the High Street over the last month.
The Police are continuing to warn cyclists and issue fixed penalty notices as
appropriate.
PH asked if the Police could reassess the length of the public information message on
the non‐emergency number as it leads to a significant delay when trying to report
incidents that are in progress.
4.
HIGHWAYS ISSUES
KG distributed copies of Mike Barber’s ‘Report of Highway Issues’ to the group. With
regards to the suggested solutions for the damaged block paving at the end of
Germain Street, PH said that residents were concerned that any grass sown there
would not be maintained appropriately. However, the residents are also adamant
that they do not want the tree to be felled.
CL asked whether it would be possible to restrict the times during which deliveries
could be made in the High Street, e.g. only before 10 am and after 4 pm. CL will
speak to the Local Area Technician on this matter.
Action: Colette

Town Centre Working Group
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5.
CYCLING
CL met with Simon Glover, the Cycling Officer at BCC, who offered to identify
potential cycling routes. She is yet to hear back from him.
Bill Richards has written to the Chilterns Conservation Board offering the Town
Council’s support to Chesham becoming a gateway town to cycling in the Chilterns.
6.
PARKING
(i)
On‐Street Parking
AJ explained that on‐street parking enforcement is proving difficult in many areas,
especially the town centre, due to the poor condition of the yellow lines, which are
the responsibility of BCC.
DC raised the issue of the triangular area of land in the vicinity of The Bury’s
entrance on Church Street. He said that this area has long been used by local
residents for off‐road parking and urged that this area continues to be treated
sensibly in terms of enforcement. AJ said that he would check any restrictions
relating to this area and explained that there will be teething problems with
enforcement until the new officers get to know their area.
PH said that he has received a number of complaints regarding parking on the sharp
bend by the allotments in Wey Lane. He said that an officer presence at school drop
off and pick up time would be very helpful. AJ said that resources are limited, which
will make enforcement difficult.
It was noted that plans to introduce parking meters along Red Lion Street have been
dropped.
CL said that she has been unable to progress a residents’ parking scheme in Pednor
because BCC have failed to respond to her requests.
(ii)
Off‐Street Parking
OA said that the work to improve the appearance of Catlings Car Park wall is still
going ahead and he will liaise with David Gardner to check if the community art
project is still intended to take place.
Whilst the 60p and £1.20 fees for 1 and 2 hours’ parking will remain the same in
Chiltern’s car parks, the £1.70 fee (3 hours) is increasing to £1.80 and the £2.20 fee
(4 hours) will become £2.40. All day parking will cost £3.50.
In discussing possible changes to the car parks to attract shoppers into the town, OA
said that a proposal to introduce a 30 minute ticket had been rejected by CDC in the
past as it was predicted that there would be problems with enforcement.
PH asked if East Street car park could be weeded, as it is looking overgrown.
Action: Oliver

Town Centre Working Group
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OA confirmed that he had received the Town Council’s free parking days request and
that these would be put in place for both Albany and Water Meadow car parks.
7.
ANY OTHER BUSINESS
(i)
Taxi Ranks
BCC are currently reviewing whether there is space to create an additional rank in
the town centre. PH reported that CDC’s Licensing department is looking at the
establishment of a system where taxi drivers would be issued with points for
offences such as obstruction. If taxi drivers were to accumulate a threshold number
of points, they would risk having their licences suspended. AS queried whether
Thames Valley Police would be able to issue points as an authorised body. PH also
asked AS to look into enforcement for obstruction in The Broadway by both taxi
drivers and private drivers, especially where buses are being blocked.
8.
DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The date of the next meeting will be Thursday 14th June at 10 am at the Town Hall.
.

Town Centre Working Group
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Transition Town Chesham
Minutes of meeting 8pm Thursday 4th April
TOPIC

NOTES

IN ATTENDANCE

Tabitha Neal (Joint-Chair), Phil Folly
(Treasurer), Jackie Campbell (Joint secretary)
Julia Brammer, Sarah Czarmonski, Michael
Herrmann

MINUTES TAKER
APOLOGIES

Jackie Campbell
Paul Jackson, Caroline Masters

TREASURER
UPDATE

£670 approx balance.

PF

CYCLE RALLY

Protest generated good publicity, and some
progress has been achieved. Bucks County
Council have put forward plans for cycle route.
Funding request for route to be submitted, and
once approved, further meetings will be
required to confirm route and signage.
Record attendance at the ‘last’ Green Drinks –
35+ attendees. Email to go out to Green Drinks
regulars with future plans within next fortnight
(ie before next expected Green Drinks). Rob
considering future options such as continuing
Green Drinks on a less frequent basis.

PF

GREEN DRINKS
EVENTS

1

ACTION

SC
AP
TN

MARKET

Next market 28/04/12 – no TTC stall this month

POOL 100
YEARS

Event on Saturday 5th May. TTC to support the
fair in some way. For example, a display
showing a vision of Chesham in another 100
years – 2112. Emphasis on a positive vision.
Extra meeting to discuss ideas – Thursday 19th
April, 7:30pm at Jackie’s house

All

WEBSITE /
FACEBOOK/
TWITTER
COMMUNITY
ORCHARD

Going forward Jackie to update website, and
Sarah to update Facebook and Twitter. Sarah
to email Julia M requesting passwords etc.
Green Drinks talk very successful, and lots of
people signed up to help and support the
community orchard. Next meeting on the 12th
April. Sarah to look into funding options. Idea
discussed was to create a link with an existing
map of fruit trees in Chesham.

JM
JB

BUCKS TALK

To be held in Saunderton on the 15th June. TTC
invited to talk - subject areas to cover include
the local produce market, the Green Fair, other
TTC initiatives, and to cover suggestions on
how the council can help or be more involved
going forward. Julia Brammer and Kathryn
Graves to do the talk.

CHAIRSHIP

Going forward the post of Chair will change to
be whoever is hosting that month’s meeting.
The following was agreed:
19th April – Jackie
3rd May – Sarah
7th June - TBC

AOB

Michael Herrmann proposed his front garden as
a landshare project.

MH

19th April at Jackie’s house.

ALL

NEXT MEETING

Meeting closed 10:10 pm
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Transition Town Chesham
Minutes of meeting 8pm Wednesday 13th June at 322 Waterside
TOPIC
IN ATTENDANCE

NOTES
Tabitha Neal, Phil Folly (Treasurer), Alison
Phillips (chair) Jackie Campbell (secretary) Julia
Brammer, Michael Herrmann

MINUTES TAKER
APOLOGIES

Jackie Campbell
Sarah Czarmonski

THANKS &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
LOCAL NEWS

Thanks to Julia for last month’s market.
Thanks to Michael for supporting pool 100
years event
Congratulations to new Lib Dem councillor,
Ruth Joulet

TREASURER
UPDATE

ACTION

Current Balance: £698.05

PF

CYCLE ROUTE
UPDATE

In discussion and progressing. Next meeting
date due soon - to be confirmed

PF

MAY MARKET

May market – good turn out, good weather. On
same day as French market so a buzzy event
all round.

JUNE MARKET

Next market 23rd June. 2nd anniversary of local
produce market. Rainbow Big Botttom booked
for face painting (TTC to pay, council to
reimburse). Tombola organised, where people
get tickets when they purchase from stall
holders (or they can buy them on the TTC stall)
– stall holders to donate prizes. Tombola to be
hosted on TTC stall.
TTC Theme – Foraging for food. TN, MH, AP to
provide food created from foraged ingredients,
and JC to create recipe cards/leaflets to
handout with food samples. TN to create map of
Chesham for people to plot best foraging
places. PF to post boards around town as
usual. Timetable for this month:
PF from 8:30
JC& TN 9-11
AP & JB 11-1
MH & PF 1-2:30
Market now has own Facebook and Twitter
1. Delete current Green Drinks content –
transcribe SC’s email on Green Drinks
instead, inviting people to submit ideas for
future Green Drinks topics on Facebook

WEBSITE

1

PF/JB
JC/TN
PF / JC /
TN / AP /
JB / MH

JC

page so people can ‘like’ or comment.
Update local produce market stall holders
list
3. Update all content over next couple of
months – all members to edit areas they
represent and supply to JC
4. Add Impress the Chess walk on 27th June –
starting at Watermeadow carpark 6.30pm
LOW CARBON
LCCC talking to Wycombe Transition Town
CHILTERN COOP
group and the environmental centre to recruit a
(LCCC)
LCCC team in Wycombe
2.

COMMUNITY
ORCHARD

TTC NEWS
BULLETIN

Next meeting 21st June. A section of Canon’s
Meadow beside river is a possible location for
30 trees. Owned by CDC. An additional idea
has been discussed for planting trees
throughout Chesham, creating an Orchard Trail.
Trees would be sponsored by the people of
Chesham. SC has sourced a map of where
orchards used to be in Chesham for interest.
A regular email to TTC database with current
news and events. First edition to go out before
the June market – Mon/Tues next week. JB to
produce first draft, and then all members to
check/edit as necessary.

AP

JB

ALL

AOB
NEXT MEETING

Going forward TTC will meet on the 2nd
Thursday of the month. Next meeting 13th
September at the Pheasant at 7.30pm. TN to
book the Sung. JC as chair, AP as secretary.
Intention is to invite people to join meetings so
details will be publicised on Facebook and
website.

Meeting closed 10:00 pm
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Culvert Monitoring Group Meeting – 14 June 2012
Held at Town Hall at 10.00am
Present:
Cllrs Tina Michael (TM), Alison Pirouet (AP) and Mark Shaw (MS) - Chesham Town
Council; Culvert Monitoring Group
Cllr Colette Littley (CL) – Town Mayor and ward Member.
Bill Richards (BR) – Town Clerk
Dave Bedlington (DB) – Environment Agency
Gareth Tulley (GT) - Environment Agency
Jon Dickens (JD) – Local Area Technician, Buckinghamshire County Council
Apologies: Cllr Roy Abraham (RA)
1.
Purpose of Meeting and Introductions
Following concerns raised about the current state of Vale Brook Culvert, BR
explained that it had been agreed at a Policy and Resources Committee in 2010 that
a small number of Members be part of a monitoring group to ensure that pressure
was maintained on the Environment Agency (EA) and other statutory bodies to fully
repair the culvert.
DB and GT introduced themselves. They explained they were a relatively new team
officially formed on the 1st June. GT has been in post for some time having taken
over from David Watts in the Asset Systems Management Team and covers the
technical side. DB is very new to the area having just been appointed Team Leader
to a new team covering the Chesham Area. Part of the role of his team will involve
assessing government & external funding for projects such as this.
JD explained he was attending to ensure BCC was fully engaged in any proposed
work at the non-strategic level.
2.
Current Position
GT opened the discussion by, firstly, suggesting that progress had appeared slow on
the Vale Brook assessments because the EA had been working with BCC & Jacobs
to ensure no overlap of work between the Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP)
and Vale Brook Study. He opined there would have been little point considering
repairs to the culvert if flooding was such that the structure could not cope with a
high volume of water.
He explained that now the SWMP was advanced, the EA had been able to move
forward. The EA was aware that the Market Square section was the most vulnerable
and therefore had been made the priority for possible repairs. A consultant has been
engaged to develop possible amelioration measures for this section. GT advised that
the cheapest and simplest option would be to line the existing culvert with a
fibreglass pipe. This would be advantageous as it would prove the least disruptive
option to the High Street. The downside would be the fact that the capacity would be
less (approximately 60%). GT explained that he was having a meeting with Jacobs
on the 18th June looking at computer modelling of flow to ascertain whether the
fibreglass pipe lining would be able to handle potential high volumes of floodwater.*
1

GT and DB then took questions.
•

CL enquired whether all the options would stabilise the properties currently at
risk. GT replied that it would.

•

MS asked what the construction time would be for such a pipe. GT stated
around 3 to 4 weeks.

•

AP asked whether the current planters may prove a hindrance to repair. GT
thought that they would not.

•

TM queried whether the EA could afford to wait and whether it was in danger
of collapsing imminently. GT replied he could give no assurances that it would
not collapse but pointed out it had been in a poor state since at least 2001
and it appeared not to have deteriorated significantly since then.

•

AP enquired about a maintenance regime, post repair, and the problems of
silt. She explained there was a great deal of run-off from the Wigginton area
into town and, because it was in Hertfordshire, she opined that there was little
concern from statutory agencies to resolve the problem at source. GT
suggested this was more an issue for the SWMP to deal with but did confirm
the EA now had a regular programme of inspection and monitoring.

•

JD questioned how Jacobs know how much water currently flows into Vale
Brook and how it predicted future flows. GT explained this was through
computer modelling and a series of rain gauges strategically placed.

3.
Funding and Timescales
DB stated that, in very broad terms, he expected that the Government would commit
around £150k to the culvert repairs in Market Square which would be roughly half the
cost of the highest cost option. However Government funding was based on a
particular formula in respect to the possible damage to residential houses so it was
not as simple as to assume a 50% contribution to a scheme. Moreover GT
suggested that the EA may not recommend the cheapest option necessarily once all
the consultants’ schemes had been fully assessed.
The Group then discussed how the bulk of the repairs could be funded. DB reminded
the meeting that the responsibility still lay with the riparian owners. Clearly it was
noted that BCC was the main riparian owner as the High Street/Market Square was
its responsibility though CTC owned a small section. The other riparian owners
would be the owners of the shops. JD said he was unaware that BCC was preparing
any sort of contingency funding for major repairs. The Group then discussed the
possibility of shop owners’ insurers paying for the repairs though it was apparent that
it was impossible to accurately state this would happen as policies may differ.
BR then asked what would happen if the riparian owners could not or would not
contribute to the repairs. DB said the Government would only commit to its funding if
other contributions were in place and as the EA had no enforcement powers then it
was not likely that remedial works would be done. TM suggested that the convening
2

of the riparian owners could be something CTC could lead on. CL enquired whether
the EA had been successful in contacting the owners, most of whom leased the retail
outlets and were not in town. GT replied that they had been largely successful with
this.
GT then outlined a possible timetable.
•

•

A final decision on what repair option for the Market Square section the EA
was recommending should be made within three months (though GT
explained this was conditional on the Olympics not taking up too much of the
EA’s time)
Subject to riparian owners’ and/or other funding being secured, funding from
the Government was being earmarked for the 2014/15 EA’s works
programme.

In respect to the rest of the Vale Brook culvert, GT and DB had no timetables for
repair due to the excessive costs and the comparative reasonable condition of it.
However BR advised JD’s colleagues at BCC were intending to add bollards outside
the Chinese takeaway on the corner of Market Square/Church Street and outside the
Pet Shop in the High Street where the culvert was weaker.
4.
Replacement of Barriers in Market Square
With the timescales outlined above, the Group agreed pressure ought to be bought
to bear on BCC again to replace the orange barriers. JD said he believed that Anne
Marie Davies had added the black metal fencing to the delegated budget bids to be
considered at the LAF in July but was not too sure as she was currently on leave.
5.
Date of Next Meeting
The Group agreed to convene again once the EA had determined its preferred
option for Culvert repairs in Market Square with a view to coordinating the next steps
and securing match funding.

* Post Meeting Note: GT had the meeting with Jacobs, and they confirm that, all being well, the model
runs will be complete by the start of August. This should then enable EA to make some informed
decisions on which option is best.

Bill Richards
Town Clerk
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Report of the Officers to a meeting of the POLICY & RESOURCES
Committee on Monday 2nd July 2012

Agenda Item: 6

Devolved
Services Update
G2C2

ohnJohn Hemmings ‐ Closer To Communites Worksheet
March
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
Sick Leave
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK

BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

2.5
1
2.5
1.5
2.5
1
1
3
1
2
1.5
2.5
1
1
2.5
1
2
1.5
2.5
1

Total

34.5

BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK

END TO END WALK
END TO END WALK
TOWN ROUTE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE

Poster removal.
Nothing to report.
reported to MB.
Deep Pot hole opposite Police station previously reported : 32748

END TO END WALK

Flyer Removal

MARKET SQUARE

Poster removal.

TOWN ROUTE

Subway cleared and posters taken down.

MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK

MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK

Poster removal

END TO END WALK

Graffiti Removal

TOWN ROUTE

Poster Removal

MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK

MARKET SQUARE

Nil to report.

ohnJohn Hemmings ‐ Closer To Communites Worksheet
April
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
Annual Leave

1
3
1.5
2
2.5
1
1
1
1
2.5
2
1.5
2.5
1
1
2.5
2.5
2
2.5

MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK

MARKET SQUARE

Poster removal and a sign removed from Nash Hill.

TOWN ROUTE

Poster & flyer removal.

END TO END WALK

Flyer removal.

MARKET SQUARE

Removal of flyers.

MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
TOWN ROUTE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
TOWN ROUTE
END TO END WALK

BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

1
1
2.5
1.5
2
1.5
2.5
1
1

MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
TOWN ROUTE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK

3

END TO END WALK

BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

Poster removal
Nothing to report
Poster removal and put barriers back into position

Remove posters and graffiti fron subway
Barriers put back into place
Street and Broad Street
Signs taken down.

Road.
banners removed and signs taken down.
4 sandbags split , poster and grafiiti removal.
Removal of flyers

Barriers corrected and signs removed.

51

ohnJohn Hemmings ‐ Closer To Communites Worksheet

May
1

BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS

1

TOWN ROUTE

Poster Removal

2
4
4

BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK

2
2.5
2.5

TOWN ROUTE
END TO END WALK
END TO END WALK

Poster Removal
Removal of posters and banners
Removal of posters and banners

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
TOWN ROUTE
END TO END WALK
TOWN ROUTE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
TOWN ROUTE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK
END TO END WALK
TOWN ROUTE
END TO END WALK
MARKET SQUARE
MARKET SQUARE
END TO END WALK

Removed loose brics from the road

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK

1
1
2
2
2
1.5
2.5
1
1
2.5
1
2
1.5
2.5
1
1
3
1
2
1.5
2.5
1
1
2.5

29
30

BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS

1
2

MARKET SQUARE
TOWN ROUTE

Taken down pole with a sign
Nil to report.

31

BARRIER CHECK

1.5

MARKET SQUARE

Nil to report.

BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday

BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK & TOWN AND BACKS
BARRIER CHECK
BARRIER CHECK & END TO END WALK
BARRIER CHECK - Saturday
BARRIER CHECK- Sunday

51.5

Signs and poster removal
Poster removal and removal of branches from highway
Poster removal & highway unlevel after street works
Nil to report.

Barrier check an pposter removal
Poster Removal
Cleaned graffiti from road sign
5 dand bags split ‐ Informed BCC on 6/06/2012
Nil to report.

Circus and fairground poster removal
Poster Removal
Removed posters and graffiti removal

Poster & Flyer removak

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 7 – REVIEW OF COMMITTEE’S TERMS
AND REFERENCES AND THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES
Reporting Officer:

Bill Richards (01494 583824)

Summary
1.

To review the Council’s Terms of References for Council and Committees and its Strategic
Objectives.
Background Information

2.

The current Committee structure and proposed terms of reference (attached) were agreed at the
Council Meeting held on the 3rd February 2003 (Min No. 226) but a recommendation to give
these committees’ powers of resolution was lost.

3.

At the Policy and Resources Committee of 26th June 2004, it was recommended that the
Committees be granted full powers of resolution (Min No. 62) and this recommendation was
adopted at full Council on 10th May 2004 (Min No. 11).

4.

The Council’s Strategic Objectives were devised around the time of the introduction of Best
Value to larger town councils in 1999.
Financial Implications

5.

None pertaining to this report.
Strategic Objectives

6.

Non applicable.
Equality Act Implications

7.

None pertaining to this report
Detailed Consideration

8.

Members will recall that a review of the Council’s terms of reference has been requested
following a Member’s query on the powers of the Recreation and the Arts Committee to
determine a possible sale of part of the Council’s land at the April Council meeting. Accordingly
your Clerk has re-checked the legal position and the Council’s own standing orders.

9.

In respect to the former, the Local Government Act 1972 s 101 confirms that ‘a council can
arrange to have any of its functions, except the issuing of the precept, exercised by a committee
which can, in turn, arrange to have them exercised by a sub-committee.’ Therefore it appears
that the Committees can determine almost all matters bar the precept. However it is slightly
complicated by Financial Regulation 14.2 which states: ‘No property shall be sold, leased or
otherwise disposed of without the authority of the Council, save where the estimated value of any
one item does not exceed £500.’ However as the Council has delegated decision making down to
the Committees and the matter of the disposal of assets not listed in the Council’s terms of
reference, ‘the Council’ in this case can be considered as the Committee charged with managing
its ‘facilities for cultural, leisure and recreational activities’ i.e. in this case the Recreation and
the Arts Committee.

10.

The terms of reference of a Committee can be altered by the Council itself (Terms of Reference
– Full Council e) refers). This Committee therefore has the opportunity to make
recommendations to the Council to change these. Most obviously the terms of reference for the
former Performance Review Committee need to be subsumed into the Policy and Resources
Committee but reflecting that Best Value no longer exists and service reviews are at the
discretion of the Council. However Members may wish to have it specified that items such as the
disposal of properties be only determined by full Council.

11.

Subject to any changes the Committee may wish to recommend, it is proposed to change the
wording in the Committees’ terms of references from ‘recommendations’ to ‘resolutions’ where
appropriate to reflect the decision-making powers of the Committees.

12.

Members are reminded of Standing Order No. 26 d that states: ‘All standing committees shall
have executive powers but any Member of the Council (either at that Committee or in writing in
advance of the meeting) may request that the matter be referred to Full Council for
determination. This request may be made even after a Motion has been passed or lost at the
Committee, but before the close of the meeting, by any Member of the Council. This request may
be made even after a motion has been passed or lost at the Committee, but before the close of the
meeting, by any Member of the Council.’

13.

The Council’s Strategic Objectives are as follows:
1.

To enable residents to enjoy high-quality social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires expressed by the residents.

2.

To encourage and promote the economic and commercial vitality of the town.

3.

To preserve the unique identity of Chesham and promote its heritage.

4.

To ensure that harmony exists between commercial and residential requirements.

5.

To consult with and take due regard of all comments received from other statutory
bodies, voluntary organisations and individuals, to ensure an improving standard of
service that meets with local needs.

6.

To represent the views and wishes of the citizens of Chesham.

7.

To help create a socially inclusive and caring community, which embraces all its
residents equally, which seeks to develop their well-being, knowledge, understanding,
and mutual co-operation.

These were originally devised because of a number of requirements that Best Value Town and
Parish Councils (BVTPCs) had to fulfil. These requirements were issued under Section 6 of the
Local Government Act 1999 and specifically that ‘All Best Value Town and Parish Councils
must include the following items in their Performance Plan published by June 2004, and in
subsequent years: a brief summary of the council's strategic objectives and priorities for
improvement. This should be drawn from its overall vision and corporate planning processes.’
14.

These strategic objectives are alluded to in each Council report and feature in our Annual Plan.
The objectives are quite generic and have served the Council well. However it would make sense
to make some reference to our Environmental Policy as it is clearly something the Council is
rightly fully committed to.

Recommendations
1. That the Committee consider what, if any changes, they wish to
recommend to the Council’s and Committees’ Terms of Reference other
than those recommended by officers.
2. That the Committee consider whether it wishes to amend the Council’s
current Strategic Objectives.

CHESHAM TOWN COUNCIL – TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR STANDING
COMMITTEES

FULL COUNCIL
Terms of Reference
a) To raise loans and to set the town precept
b) To have the power of incurring capital expenditure not specifically included in the
Council's approved estimate of expenditure;
c) At the Annual Meeting appoint standing committees and at any other times appoint such
other committees as are necessary and at any time dissolve or alter the membership of a
committee;
d) To appoint to or co-opt on a Committee or Sub-Committee a person who is not a Member
of the Council;
e) To approve Standing Orders and the functions and constitution of Committees and SubCommittees;
f) To approve dates of meetings of the Council;
g) To appoint or nominate persons to fill vacancies on outside bodies arising during the
Council year;
h) To fill vacancies occurring on any Committee of the Council during the Council year;
i) To approve the appointment or dismissal of the Town Clerk.
j) To consider the recommendations of the standing committees and to confer delegated
powers to a committee and/or sub-committee when deemed appropriate.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF STANDING COMMITTEES
The acts and proceedings of a Committee shall:
a) where they are delegated to the Committee, so far as is legally permissible be deemed the
acts and proceedings of the Council;
b) as regards other matters, be subject to confirmation by the Council, and when confirmed
shall be deemed the acts and proceedings of the Council;
c) in all respects be subject to the provisions of the Council's Standing Orders and Financial
Regulations except as otherwise determined by the Council.
The Council may at any time without prejudice to executive action already taken revoke any
executive power delegated to a Committee.

I. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
The Development Control Committee considers the environmental aspects of
development in the Town and immediate surrounding area.
Terms of Reference
a) To consider and monitor Development Plans and Strategic Planning issues and
proposals by statutory undertakings and to respond as a consultee to any planning
application or consultation document relating to planning issues.
b)

To consider all planning aspects of development and matters of transportation within
the town.

c)

To deal with such matters as may be referred to this committee by the Council.

II. RECREATION AND THE ARTS COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference
a) Within the context of the Council's overall policy to make recommendations to provide,
maintain and manage facilities for cultural, leisure and recreational activities for local
residents, community and visiting organisations, etc. in the Elgiva, Council Chamber,
Lowndes Room and community hall.
b) To recommend the fees and charges for the use and letting of Council managed
properties.
c) Within the context of the Council's overall policy, to make recommendations to provide,
maintain and manage allotment land and to recommend fees and charges for the use
thereof.
d) To oversee the Council's responsibility concerning its Parks and Open Spaces and
associated facilities and make recommendations thereof.
e) To oversee the Council's responsibility concerning its Cemeteries and make
recommendations thereof.
f) To make recommendations to help preserve, maintain and enhance public footpaths and
bridleways, manorial waste and woodlands.
g) To oversee the Council's responsibilities concerning its sports grounds, open air
swimming pool and recreational sites within the context of the Council's overall policy
to provide these facilities and make recommendations thereof.
h) To help maintain and improve the general amenities of the town, provision of litter bins,
seating, floral and Christmas decorations, etc.
i) To help encourage and assist in the promotion of town events, street entertainment,
Schools of Chesham Carnival, Chesham Festival and Late Night Shopping events.

j) Within the context of the Council's overall policy, to help support a programme of Town
Centre revitalising initiatives.
k) To deal with such matters as may be referred to this committee by the Council.

III. THE POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference
a) To exercise the Council's responsibility in maintaining proper accounting records and
control systems and to make recommendations to the Council thereof.
b) To ensure all money due is properly accounted for.
c) To oversee the Council's finances, receive regular reports in this connection, and coordinate the draft Estimates of spending committees in the preparation of the annual
budget.
d) To review recommendations by other spending committees where these represent
significant variations to Revenue, Capital or Renewal and Repairs Budgets previously
adopted by Council at Estimates. (The definition of significant variations shall be
determined from time to time by the Council.)
e) To undertake a periodical review of the Council's Standing Orders in relation to all
financial matters.
f) To guide the Council in the formulation of its objectives and priorities, and to decide
the programmes and other steps necessary to achieve these objectives, either in whole
or in part during specific time spans.
g) Without prejudice to the responsibilities of the service committees, to review the
effectiveness of all the Council's work and the standards and levels of service provided.
h) To identify the need for new services and to keep under review the necessity for
existing services.
i) To make recommendations pertaining to the allocating and controlling the Council's
financial, manpower and land resources.
j) To ensure that the Council's organisation and management processes make the most
effective contribution to the achievement of the Council's objectives and to keep them
under review making recommendations as necessary to full Council for change in
committee or departmental structures, or the distribution of functions and
responsibilities.
k) To consider matters of public concern.
l) To consider measures for effecting and preserving economy.
m) To approve the arrangements for the collections of revenues and accounts due to the
Council and to recommend necessary directions for the recovery thereof.

n) To deal with matters and make recommendations in respect of Civic and ceremonial
functions of the Town Council and public relations.
o) To consider subscriptions, grants and donations, and administration of schemes in
respect and make recommendations thereof.
p) To consider and make recommendations to the District Council on all matters which
may affect the boundaries, status, powers and duties of the Council and electoral
arrangements.
q) To consider and make recommendations to the Council concerning the Council's
Standing Orders and Terms of Reference of Standing Committees & Members.
r) To oversee the Council's responsibilities and the making of any objection or order or
the authorisation of any notice of legal proceedings.
s) To deal with such matters as may be referred to this committee by the Council.

IV. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee considers all aspects of personnel including appointments,
gradings and conditions of service.
Terms of Reference
a) To consider the Council's staffing structure.
b) To consider the deployment, welfare, superannuation, remuneration,
recruitment, training, qualifications, health and safety aspects and other conditions
of service of all employees.
c) To consider schemes for the employment of people under the job creation youth
training programmes, New Deal or other similar programmes.
d) To hear and determine matters of appeal in cases of discipline and efficiency.
e) To approve essential and casual user car allowances.
f)

To act on behalf of the Council in matters of emergency.

V. PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE
The Performance Review Committee enables Members to continually review the activities of
the Council whilst, at the same time, accepting responsibility for some activities which do not
obviously fit within the scope of other Committees.
Terms of Reference
a)

To undertake a continuing or one off review and appraisal of the various facilities
and services provided by or on behalf of the Council.

b)

To consider the above and if necessary make recommendations to Council except
on matters of personnel where recommendations are made to the
Executive Committee.

c)

To consider Best Value reviews for all services and to report recommendations to
Council at the conclusion of the matters reviewed.
DELEGATION TO TOWN CLERK

a)

The Town Clerk, in consultation with the Mayor and Deputy Mayor
to take action deemed desirable on any matters which require urgent action.
DELEGATION TO CHAIRMEN GENERALLY

a)

To cancel or postpone a meeting owing to lack of business or in
an emergency.

b)

To have discretion to include any item of an urgent nature under
"Any Other Urgent Business" on the relevant Committee Agenda.

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the POLICY & RESOURCES
Committee on Monday 2nd July 2012.

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8 - FINANCIAL REPORT –
OUT-TURN 2011/2012
Reporting Officer: Steve Pearson (01494 583825)
Summary
1.

Summary of out-turn for 2011/12
Background Information

2.

The revised budget was agreed by this Committee at its meeting on 12th December 2011
and is detailed below.
Financial Implications

3

As outlined within the report.
Detailed Consideration

4.

A simple summary of the actual outturn for 2011/12 against the original and revised
forecast is detailed below. These are management budgets showing the impact on the
General Fund Balance and do not include depreciation or the renewal and repairs charge.
2011/12
*Original
COST CENTRE
Central Support Services –
recharged
Civic Activities
CCTV
Cemetery
Closed Churchyard
Interest
Housing
Corporate Management
Democratic Management
Section 137 Expenses
Moor Multi-sport
Codmore Football
Marston Football
Amenities

2011/12
Actual

£
NIL

£
NIL

2011/12
Revised
Forecast
£
NIL

13,430
200
43,710
2,410
-7,105
-8,920
99,325
90,290
3,080
80,070
5,225
1,320
38,480

13,696
186
41,496
2,280
-9,297
-9,294
86,821
83,859
1,052
87,191
4,510
1,088
30,986

13,650
185
39,635
2,910
-7,825
-8,801
87,810
83,610
1,160
88,943
5,555
1,755
37,995

Explanation

Higher income
Interest rates
Audit fees
Election costs
Internal grants
Lower gym income

Tree works

2011/12
*Original

2011/12
Actual

2011/12
Explanation
Revised
Estimate
£
153,165 Contractors/Wages
(including insurance
refund)
17,485
-11,273 Market management
fee
3,015
NIL
162,722 Cinema/Panto results
-100
37,100 Income/Internal
charges
7,585 Direct labour
recharges
19,310 Christmas lighting
0

COST CENTRE
Parks & Open Spaces

£
162,875

£
136,059

Lowndes Park Toilets
Agency Work

17,365
-7,205

18,163
-10,024

2,800
NIL
143,300
-100
34,650

3,308
NIL
137,710
-100
33,224

9,860

8,815

21,015
0

18,732
0

746,075

680,461

735,591

0

24,620

27,500

Skatepark Noise Abatement
Works Depot – recharged
The Elgiva
Temperance Hall
Town Hall
Allotments
Town Centre Revitalisation
Getting Closer to
Communities
TOTAL
Solar Power Project

* Includes £15,630 carried over from 2010/11
5.

The above TOTAL figures show an improvement of £55,130 against the revised forecast
(£65,614 against the original budget) for the main reasons shown. The solar power
project was installed at the Moor Gym & Swim earlier this year paid for out of the
General Fund Reserve with an expected payback period of around 9 years. Part of the
improvement is due to some works not being completed and the budget for these is
detailed below and will be carried over into 2012/13:
Works to be carried over to 2012/13:

£

Central Support Service

Property Hire

500

Housing

Electrical test

500

Amenities

Tree Works

4,070

Open Spaces

Contractors

3,000**

TOTAL TO BE CARRIED FORWARD TO 2011/12

8,070

** There was total savings of over £9,000 on the Parks & Premises contractors/wages
budget and the Manager has requested part of this sum be carried over as most of this
years 2012/13 budget has already be allocated.

6.

The Renewal and Repairs Programmes is attached. Schemes not completed in 2011/2012
will be carried over into 2012/2013.

7.

The Council has set a balanced budget for the forthcoming year 2012/13 although this
does include some improved income targets for the main services totalling £16,420. The
Elgiva Manager is working on a new income stream from a Priority Members’ Scheme
which will go towards achieving its target of £9,000. The Moor Gym & Swim have
deferred replacing the gym equipment for a year and this will produce one off savings
this year around £8,000. Savings of around £10,000 have been achieved on the Council’s
annual insurance premium and so this year’s performance is off to a good start.

8

The Council has two investment properties which the Council have decided to improve
and let out at commercial rents at the earliest opportunity, rather than continue renting out
to the social property market.

9.

At the Council meeting held on the 9th January 2012 it was decided not to progress the
following schemes and that they be reconsidered after the year end results were known:
•
•
•
•

Professional Fees for Risk Assessment overview (agreed at Policy & Resources
Committee 27th September 2010) - £500
Binding of official Council Minutes (not done for several years) - £500
Provision of lone working personal panic alarm at the Chesham Moor Gym and
Swim Centre, Town Hall and Elgiva as identified under the risk assessment £1,750
Energy Saving Motion Sensor Project (first phase-Town Hall and Lowndes
Park Toilets) - £2,250

10.

When the budgets for 2012/13 were considered it was decided not to put any money in
for the five year residents’ survey due to financial pressure on the precept and it was
hoped to seek assistance from local organisations. A further report on this and possible
financial costs is included to this Committee under agenda item 10.

11.

The Council have agreed to put on hold any current move to charitable trusts status for
the Chesham Moor Gym and Swim, The Elgiva and Town Hall but agreed to keep the
situation under review.

12.

If a Member has specific detailed questions, it would be helpful if they would telephone
the office in advance of the meeting.

Recommendation
1.That the report be noted and that the works not completed in 2011/2012
(including the Repairs & Renewals) be carried over to 2012/13.
2. That the schemes totalling £5,000 as identified under para 9 be
progressed

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the TOWN COUNCIL
on Monday 25th June 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO 9: - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12
Reporting Officer: Steve Pearson (01494 583825)
Summary
1.

To approve the Financial Statements and Annual Report 2011/12.
Background Information

2.

Due to the changes in the banding levels in 2011 regarding the type of published accounts, the
Council decided at its meeting held on the 18th April 2011 to publish an Annual Return rather
than the Statement of Accounts as it had previously, thereby saving around £12,000 on external
audit fees. The Council also decided to a produce a set of new Financial Statements similar to
the previous accounts for management information but which are not to be audited.

3.

The statutory Annual Return has to be approved by the 30th June 2012 and has therefore been
reported to the Council meeting to be held on the 25th June 2012.
Financial Implications

4.

As detailed within the report.
Strategic Objectives

5.

Accords with strategic objective 1 – ‘To enable residents to enjoy high-quality social,
recreational, and cultural facilities within the town and to seek the continuing improvement and
development of these facilities in accordance with the desires expressed by the residents.’
Equality Act Implications

6.

None pertaining to this report
Detailed Consideration

7.

The Committee is asked to approve the Financial Statements and authorise the signing of these
by the Town Mayor, Town Clerk and Responsible Finance Officer. The Annual Report is also
enclosed and this is produced as it is one of the considerations taken into account in the Council
achieving Quality Status and needs to be signed by the above persons.

8.

The Buckinghamshire County Council pension fund figures are not included in the Financial
Statements produced by the external accountant as the Actuary charges £675 for producing
the report.

9.

A more detailed report on the year end outturn was made to this Committee under agenda
item 8.

10.

Any member of the public will be allowed a copy of the Financial Statements on request on
the understanding that they are unaudited.

11.

Should any Member require further information on the accounts, they are asked to contact the
office prior to the Council meeting.

Recommendation

That the Financial Statements and Annual Report be approved and signed by the Town
Mayor, Town Clerk and Responsible Finance Officer as appropriate and be made
available to the public with copies also being placed at the principal authorities and
libraries.

Chesham Town Council
Annual Report
31 March 2012
The Town Council has 19 Town Councillors who are elected for a term of four years. The
last Town Council elections were held in May 2011. The Chairman of the Council, who also
undertakes the office of Town Mayor, is elected annually by the Councillors in May, together
with a Deputy Town Mayor.
Town Councillors are unpaid and, with the exception of the Mayor, have chosen not to
receive any attendance allowance or payments for their duties, which they undertake purely
on a voluntary basis.
The Town Council has a committee structure with three main standing committees, namely:
Development Control, Policy and Resources and Recreation and the Arts.
The Town Council’s strategic objectives are based on the Council’s overall vision. The
objectives are:
1. To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires expressed by the residents.
2. To encourage and promote the economic and commercial vitality of the town.
3. To preserve the unique identity of Chesham and promote its heritage.
4. To ensure that harmony exists between commercial and residential requirements.
5. To consult with and take due regard of all comments received from other statutory
bodies, voluntary organisations and individuals, to ensure an improving standard of
service that meets with local needs.
6. To represent the views and wishes of the citizens of Chesham.
7. To help create a socially inclusive and caring community, which embraces all its
residents equally, seeking to develop their well-being, knowledge, understanding, and
mutual co-operation.
The main services either provided or funded by the Council in 2011/12 were a 300 seater
theatre, a leisure building incorporating a public gym and an open air swimming pool,
cemetery, allotments, parks and opens spaces, sports pitches and a Town Hall which has
rooms for hire as well as offices for the Councils administration staff.
Unlike the district and county councils, Chesham Town Council does not receive any revenue
support from Government, nor does it get any funding from the non-domestic rates. Each
year the Council carries out a review of its services and calculates the income and
expenditure relating to each. Overall, expenditure is always greater than income and the
difference has to be raised via Chesham council tax payers. This is done by the Town Council
levying a precept up on the Chiltern District Council which in turn collects the money by
including it as part of the council tax bill sent to Chesham Residents. The precept for 2011/12
was £806,390 which equated to £96.03 per band ‘D’ property.
The Council operates a number of Capital and earmarked Reserves, in addition to a General
st
Reserve. The General Reserve shows a balance of £344,618 at 31 March 2012 and is used as
a working balance until the first precept instalment is received and to cover unforeseen
expenditure. The Renewal and Repairs Reserve is used to maintain assets used to provide
current services and to prevent large fluctuations when assets are replaced.
The Council reviews its budgets annually together with its reserves before determining each

year’s precept. The review also takes into account a three year renewal and repairs
programme.
Last year saw a change in the income/expenditure banding levels for Smaller Councils which
moved this Council into the £200,000 - £6.5m ‘intermediate’ bracket. This meant that the
Council had the option of producing the required statutory Annual Return or carrying on with
the full Statement of Accounts. The Council opted for the Annual Return, which although
less informative, saves around £12,000 in external audit fees. The Council also decided it
would produce a similar set of accounts to the Statement of Accounts for management
information purposes which would be called ‘Financial Statements’ and also be available to
members of the public on request, but that these would be unaudited. The purpose of these
statements is to show the financial results for the year, its effects on the Councils reserves and
the various policies and procedures in place to ensure good governance and accountability
The main sources of income are derived from ticket sales and hiring at the Elgiva, gym
membership and swimming at the Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre and the precept.
The Elgiva enjoyed a successful year with increased income from the cinema and annual
pantomime but the Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre gym income has suffered as a
result of increased competition from new local low budget gyms in town and the general
economic downturn.
The annual report table shown on page 23 of the Financial Statements shows the net service
budgets compared to the actual results. The net result for the year shows a surplus of £8,078
against a budgeted deficit of £33,500, an improvement of £41,578. This is mainly due to
savings on the external audit fees £8,650, election costs £5,070 and income from an insurance
payment of £13,720 relating to Works Depot staff sickness costs. Other improvements were
due to £5,590 on the Elgiva mainly as a result of improved profits from the cinema, savings
of £9,204 on the Works Depot mainly due to savings on wages/contractors fees and higher
interest receipts of £2,192.
The Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre came in £7,121 over budget mainly due to lower
gym income as a result of increased competition from two new budget gyms and the
economic climate.
Some schemes have not yet been completed at the year end and will be carried over to
2012/13. The main one being the tree surveys £4,070.
The Council has set a balanced budget for the forthcoming year 2012/13 although this does
include some improved income targets for the main services.
During the year the Council decided to invest in solar power technology at the Chesham
Moor Gym and Swim Centre at a cost of £24,620 to take advantage of the Government’s
Feed-in Tariff scheme with the expectation of a payback period of around 8 years.
The Council also undertook a major refurbishment to the band stand surface in Lowndes Park
plus the installation of a seasonal canopy at a cost of £60,448 but did receive a grant of
£49,999 towards scheme from Groundwork UK, the Council funding the balance from the
Repairs & Renewals Reserve.
In 2011/12 the Council undertook replacement of the junior play equipment at Windsor Road
following an extensive consultation undertaken by the Pond Park Community Association
(PPCA) with children and their carers to discover what equipment they wanted in their
location. Suitable for two to 13 year olds, the site features a variety of equipment and safety
surfacing. The scheme costing £21,533 included a seat and some tarmac painting costing

£1,500 which was paid for by the PPCA, the Council funding came from the Repairs and
Renewals Reserve.
The Council also demolished two old greenhouses and commenced erecting a new storage
building at the Council works depot. These works will be completed in 2012/13 at an
estimated cost of £35,000.
Other major works undertaken and funded via the Renewals and Repair Reserve included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Replace flat roof, flooring, internal redecoration, etc. Chesham Moor Gym and
Swim Centre £20,440
Replace tables, chairs, flooring and redecoration-Town Hall £16,546
Upgrade to lighting and sound, etc. –Elgiva £9,502
Repairs to a mausoleum in St. Mary’s Churchyard £7,700 (partially funded by
contributions of £1,500 from the Church and £2,000 from the Bucks. Historic
Buildings Trust)
Vehicles and Equipment –Works Depot £7,949 (partially funded by Bucks
County Council with a contribution of £1,180 )
Moor Pavilion -external improvements £5,100 ( partially funded by a
contribution from the football club of £2,250)
Footpath-£3,750 (partially funded by a £1,000 contribution from the Chilterns
Conservation Board)
Replacement Fencing-Depot £3,420
Cemetery fencing project -£2,040 (partially funded by Paradigm Housing
£1,000)

The Council currently has two loans from the Public Works Loan Board outstanding; one for
renovations to the Chesham Moor Swim & Gym taken out in 1994 (£110K) and one for
replacing the Lowndes Park toilets taken out in 2004 (£120K). The loans are being paid off
over 25 years by equal instalments of £10,683 and £8,210 respectively. The current balance
outstanding is shown in note 17 of the Financial Statements.
The Council has set up a working group to monitor the Council’s finances and regular reports
are made to the various Committees. The Council has also set up ‘Friends’ groups who work
closely with the Council to provide feedback and assistance in improving the various services
e.g. The Elgiva. The Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre, Cemetery, Lowndes Park and
Allotments.
The Council also produces an annual Performance Plan which details targets set and
achieved.
Further information can be obtained by contacting:
William Richards - Town Clerk
Chesham Town Council
Town Hall
Chesham
Bucks.
HP5 1DS
01494 774842
admin@chesham.gov.uk
Signed: …………….
Cllr Mrs Colette Littley,
Town Mayor
2nd July 2012
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Chesham Town Council
Statement of Responsibilities
31 March 2012
State me nt of Responsibilities

The Council's Responsibilities
The council is required:
•

to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs

•

to secure that one of its officers (R.F.O.) has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. At this
council that officer is the Finance and Contracts Manager, and

•

to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

The Responsible Financial Officer's Responsibilities
The R.F.O. is responsible for the preparation of the council's Financial Statements in accordance with “Part 4 of the
Practitioners' Guide to the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 (as amended)” (the guide), so far as is
applicable to this council, to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the council at 31 March 2012 and
its income and expenditure for the year then ended.
In preparing the Financial Statements, the R.F.O. has:
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

•

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, and

•

complied with the guide.

The R.F.O. has also:
•

kept proper accounting records, which were up to date, and

•

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Responsible Financial Officer's Certificate
I hereby certify that the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 required by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2010 (as amended) are set out in the following pages.
I further certify that the Financial Statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of Chesham Town
Council at 31 March 2012, and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Signed: .........................................................................
Mr S. D. Pearson- Finance and Contracts Manager

Date:

........................................................................
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Chesham Town Council
Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2012
State me nt of Accounting Policies

Accounting Convention
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective
April 2008) (FRSSE) issued by the Accounting Standards Board, as applied to Local Councils by part 4 of Governance
and Accountability for Local Councils – A Practitioners Guide (England) (the guide). Comparative figures have been
restated to conform to the revised formats where appropriate. Certain requirements have been omitted for clarity and
simplicity as these statements are not subject to audit. They are produced in support of the council's audited Statement
of Accounts contained within the Annual Return Statement of Accounts.
These accounts have been prepared having regard to the fundamental accounting concepts of: Going Concern,
Prudence, Accruals, Relevance, Consistency, Reliability, Comparability, Understandability and Materiality.
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
Fixed Assets
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis in the
accounts. Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the authority and the
services it provides, for a period of more than one year. Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and in accordance with the statements of asset
valuation principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The closing
balances are stated on the following basis:
land and buildings are included in the balance sheet at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC). The DRC basis of
valuation requires an estimate of the value of the land in its existing use, together with the current replacement cost
of the building and its external works, from which appropriate deductions have been made to reflect the age,
condition, economic, functional and environmental obsolescence and other locational factors which might result in
the existing building being worth less than a new replacement building,
investment properties are included in the balance sheet at open market value,
all other assets are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost (estimated where not known) or estimated
realisable value, except that,
certain community assets are the subject of restrictive covenants as to their use and /or future disposal. Such assets
are therefore considered to have no appreciable realisable value and are included at nominal value only.
The surplus or deficit arising on periodic revaluations of fixed assets has been credited or debited to the Revaluation
Reserve. Subsequent revaluations of fixed assets are planned at five yearly intervals, although material changes to asset
valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, should they occur.
In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 15, depreciation is provided on all operational buildings (but
not land), as well as other assets.
Depreciation Policy
Buildings and leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of 50 years or the anticipated remaining useful lives on a
straight line basis.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Non Operational Assets (including Investment Properties) are not depreciated
Vehicles, plant, equipment and furniture are depreciated over their estimated useful lives (varying between 3 and 10
years) on a straight line basis.
Play equipment is depreciated over 10 years at 10% per annum straight line.
Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives (varying between 10 and 20 years) on a straight
line basis.
Community assets are not depreciated, because they are of purely nominal value.
Depreciation is accounted for as a Balance Sheet movement only, not through the Income and Expenditure Account.
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Chesham Town Council
Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2012
Grants or Contributions from Government or Related Bodies
Capital Grants
Where a fixed asset has been acquired or improved with the financing either wholly or in part by a grant or contribution
from government or a related body, e.g. Sports Council, the amount of the grant has been credited to Deferred Grants
Account and carried forward. Grants so credited are released back to revenue over the life of the asset to match, and
thereby offset wholly or in part, depreciation charged.
Revenue Grants
Revenue grants are credited to income when conditions attached thereto have been fulfilled and/or equivalent
expenditure has been incurred. Grants received in respect of which the conditions have not been fulfilled, or expenditure
incurred, are carried forward as deferred revenue grants.
Investments
Investments are included in the balance sheet at historic cost and realised gains or losses are taken into the income and
expenditure account as realised.
Stocks and Work in Progress
Stocks held for resale, where significant (generally in excess of £1,000), are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Consumable stocks have been treated as an expense when purchased because their value was not material.
Debtors and Creditors
The revenue accounts of the council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the regulations. That is
sums due to or from the council during the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid
in the year. Exceptions to this are payment of regular quarterly and other accounts (e.g. telephones, electricity). This
policy is applied consistently each year. Therefore, it will not have a material effect on the year’s accounts or on the
council’s annual budget.
The council reviews the level of its commercial debtors on a regular basis and provisions are made, as required, where
the likelihood of amounts proving ultimately collectable is in doubt.
Value Added Tax
Income and Expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT suffered/collected is recoverable from or
payable to HM Revenue and Customs. Any amounts not so recoverable are treated as a separate expense.
External Loan Repayments
The council accounts for loans on an accruals basis. Details of the council’s external borrowings are shown at note 17.
Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis. Details of the council’s obligations
under operating leases are shown at note 16.
Reserves
The council maintains certain reserves to meet general and specific future expenditure. The purpose of the council’s
reserves is explained in notes 19 to 21
Certain reserves are maintained to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed assets, available for sale
investments and retirement benefits. They do not represent usable resources for the council:
Capital Financing Account – represent the council's investment of resources in such assets already made.
Interest Income
All interest receipts are credited initially to general funds.
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Chesham Town Council
Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2012
Cost of Support Services
The costs of management and administration have been apportioned to services on an appropriate and consistent basis.
This apportionment is not reflected in the Income and Expenditure account, but is used for Management Accounting
and Annual Report purposes only.
Pensions
The pension costs that are charged against precept in the council’s accounts, in respect of its employees, are equal to the
contributions paid to the funded pension scheme for those employees.
These contributions are determined by the fund’s actuary on a triennial basis and are set to meet 100% of the liabilities
of the pension fund, in accordance with relevant government regulations.
The next actuarial valuation is due at 31st March 2013 and any change in contribution rates as a result of that valuation
will take effect from 1st April 2014.
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Chesham Town Council
Income and Expenditure Account
31 March 2012
Income and Expe nditure Account

Notes

2012

2011

£

(Restated)
£

Income
Precept on District Council
Grants Receivable
Rents Receivable, Interest & Investment Income
Charges made for Services
Other Income
Total Income

806,390
1,243
20,655
642,914
2,156

806,390
3,400
16,265
620,567
1,566

1,473,358

1,448,188

Expenditure
Direct Service Costs:
Salaries & Wages
Grant-aid Expenditure
Other Costs
Democratic, Management & Civic Costs:
Salaries & Wages
Other Costs

1

(452,741)
(9,816)
(664,677)

(489,242)
(10,482)
(633,198)

1

(207,593)
(57,892)

(205,004)
(55,547)

(1,392,719)

(1,393,473)

Excess of Income over Expenditure for the year.

80,639

54,715

Exceptional Items
(Loss) on the disposal of fixed assets

(1,857)

-

Net Operating Surplus for Year

78,782

54,715

(4,482)
(89,414)
2.357
20,835

(8,515)
(161,860)
92,611

8,078
(12,757)

(23,049)
(115,660)

(20,835)
8,078

(92,611)
(23,049)

(12,757)

(115,660)

Total Expenditure

STATUTORY CHARGES & REVERSALS
Statutory Charge for Capital (i.e. Loan Capital Repaid)
Capital Expenditure charged to revenue
Reverse book value of asset disposals
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves

11
21

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year to/(from) General Fund
Net (Deficit) for the Year
The above (Deficit) for the Year has been (funded) for the Year (from) as follows:
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year to/(from) General Fund

21

The council had no other recognisable gains and/or losses during the year.

The notes on pages 12 to 21 form part of these statements.
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Chesham Town Council
Statement of Movement in Reserves
31 March 2012
State me nt of Moveme nt in Reserves

Reserve
Capital Financing Account
Usable Capital Receipts
Earmarked Reserves

General Fund

Purpose of Reserve

Notes

Store of capital resources set aside
to purchase fixed assets
Proceeds of fixed assets sales
available to meet future capital
investment
Amounts set aside from revenue
to meet general and specific
future expenditure

19

Resources available to meet future
running costs

Total

Net
Movement in
2012
Year
£
£
5,121,863
(87,951)

20

17,000

-

17,000

21

244,317

(20,835)

265,152

344,618

8,078

336,540

5,727,798

(100,708)

5,828,506

The notes on pages 12 to 21 form part of these statements.
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2011
£
5,209,814

Chesham Town Council
Balance Sheet
31 March 2012
Balance Sheet

Notes
Fixed Assets
Tangible Fixed Assets

2012
£

10

Current Assets
Stock
Debtors and prepayments
Investments
Cash at bank and in hand

13
14

Current Liabilities
Current Portion of Long Term Borrowings
Creditors and income in advance

15

5,387,310

5,443,844

4,932
45,330
500,004
200,042
750,308

(14,416)
(184,329)

(9,123)
(131,617)

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities
17
18

Total Assets Less Liabilities
Capital and Reserves
Capital Financing Account
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
General Reserve

2011
£

4,069
61,136
550,906
174,153
790,264

Net Current Assets

Long Term Liabilities
Long-term borrowing
Deferred Grants

2012
£

19
20
21

591,519

609,568

5,978,829

6,053,412

(142,934)
(108,097)

(152,709)
(72,197)

5,727,798

5,828,506

5,121,863
17,000
244,317
344,618
5,727,798

5,209,814
17,000
265,152
336,540
5,828,506

The Financial Statements represent a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2012,
and of its Income and Expenditure for the year.
These accounts were approved by the Council on 25th June 2012 .

Signed: .........................................................................

Date:

.........................................................................

Cllr Mrs C. Littley

Mr S. D. Pearson

Town Mayor

Responsible Financial Officer

......................................

......................................

The notes on pages 12 to 21 form part of these statements.
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Chesham Town Council
Cash Flow Statement
31 March 2012
Cash Flow State ment

Notes
REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Paid to and on behalf of employees
Other operating payments

2012
£

2012
£

(640,371)
(714,180)

Cash inflows
Precept on District Council
Cash received for services
Revenue grants received
Agency receipts

(713,322)
(696,487)
(1,354,551)

(1,409,810)

1,468,434

806,390
614,579
3,400
20,331
1,444,700

113,883

34,892

806,390
638,140
1,243
22,661

Net cash inflow from Revenue Activities

24

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows
Interest paid
Cash inflows
Interest received

(4,964)

(10,378)

9,297

5,270

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Servicing of Finance

4,333

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grant received
Net cash (outflow) from Capital Activities

(163,725)

500
49,999
(88,914)

1,865
(161,860)

29,302

(132,077)

(50,902)

189,996

(4,482)
193

(8,516)
770

FINANCING AND LIQUID RESOURCES
(Increase)/Decrease in money on call
Cash outflows
Loan repayments made
Loan repayments received
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing and liquid
resources
25

The notes on pages 12 to 21 form part of these statements.
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(5,108)

(139,413)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before Financing

(Decrease)/Increase in cash

2011
£

(55,191)

182,250

(25,889)

50,173

Chesham Town Council
Notes to the Accounts
31 March 2012
Notes to the Accounts

1 Other Costs Analysis
Other Costs reported in the council's Income and Expenditure Account comprise the
following:
Direct Service Costs
2012
£
326,294
56,671
137,989
71,961
1,571
23,052
9,032
10,609
186

2011
£
320,565
39,719
133,131
68,217
1,904
18,956
4,814
11,515
186

Promotion & Marketing of the Area
Community Development

26,364
8,701

30,871
11,867

Investment Properties
Less: Grant-aid Expenditure

2,063
(9,816)

1,935
(10,482)

664,677

633,198

2012
£
24,996
20,144
481
2,500
9,771

2011
£
29,138
10,503
3,028
2,500
10,378

57,892

55,547

Theatres & Public Entertainment
Community Centres
Outdoor Sports & Recreation Facilities
Community Parks & Open Spaces
Allotments
Cemeteries
Closed Churchyards
Public Conveniences
Community Safety (Crime Reduction)

Total
Democratic, Management & Civic Costs

Corporate Management
Democratic Representation & Management
Civic Expenses
Mayors Allowance
Interest Payable
Total

As reported in the Statement of Accounting Policies, apportionment of central costs is not reflected in the above
analysis.
2 Interest Payable and Similar Charges
2012
£
External Interest Charges - Loans

9,771
9,771
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2011
£
10,378
10,378

Chesham Town Council
Notes to the Accounts
31 March 2012
3 Interest and Investment Income
2012
£
9,297
9,297

Interest Income - General Funds

2011
£
5,270
5,270

4 Agency Work
During the year the Council undertook the following agency work on behalf of other authorities:
Commissioning Authority and Nature of Work
Chiltern District Council - Grounds Maintenance
Chiltern District Council - Market Management
Bucks County Council - Getting Closer to Communities

2012
£
5,298
6,033
11,330

2011
£
5,176
3,467
11,688

22,661

20,331

A final claim for reimbursement to 31 March 2012 has been made.
During the year the Council commissioned no agency work to be performed by other authorities.
5 Related Party Transactions
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies that have the potential to control or
influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to
assess the extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have
secured the ability to limit another party's freedom to bargain with the council at arms length.
Related parties include:
Central Government
The council's operations are controlled by statutes passed by Central Government. All transactions with Central
Government arise as a result of some of those statutes but do not, in the opinion of the council, require to be disclosed
here.
Principal Authorities
The District/Borough Council collects this council's Precept and remits the same to the council under statutory
provisions. The Precept is disclosed separately elsewhere in these accounts.
The County Council administers the Pension Fund of which certain of the council's staff are members.
Agency arrangements with other authorities are disclosed at note 4.
Members of the council
Members have direct control over the council's financial and operating policies. During the year no members have
undertaken any declarable, material transactions with the council, nor the council with any member. Details of such
transactions (if any) are recorded in the Register of Members' Interests, open to public inspection at the council's
offices.
Members represent the council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually, unless a specific
termination date applies to the term of office. None of these appointments places a Member in a position to exert undue
influence or control.
Officers of the Council
Other than their contracts of employment, no material transactions have been made during the year between the council
and any officer.
Other Organisations
The council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable bodies. It does not attempt to exert control or
influence as a result of such grants.
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6 Audit Fees
The council is required to report and disclose the cost of services provided by its external auditors.
These may be summarised as follows:

Fees for statutory audit services

2012
£
3,000

2011
£
3,000

3,000

3,000

Total fees
7 Tenancies
During the year the following tenancies were held:

Council as landlord
Tenant

Property

Paradigm Housing Association
Paradigm Housing Association
Trustees
The Woodland Trust
Chiltern Natural Therapies Ltd
Various Allotment Holders
Other Agreements
Chesham & District Model Boat Club
Chesham Athletic F. C.

174a Berkamstead Road
185 Bellingham Road
Temperance Hall
Big Round Green
Room at Chesham Pool
Allotment Plots
Use of Skottowes Lake
Use of Moor Pavilion & Pitch

Rent p.a.
£
5,725
5,401
100
1
2,580
3,505

Repairing /
Non-Repairing
Repairing
Repairing
Repairing 2026
Repairing 2185
Non-repairing
N/A

130
2,017

2008
Repairing

Rent p.a.
£

Repairing /
Non-Repairing

Council as tenant
Landlord

Property

None

8 Members' Allowances
2012
£
Members of Council have been paid the following allowances for the year:
Mayors Allowance

The council has resolved that, other than the Town Mayor, no members allowances will be paid.
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2011
£
2,500
2,500
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9 Employees
The average weekly number of employees during the year was as follows:
2012
Number
16
8
22
46

Full-time
Part-time
Temporary

2011
Number
17
10
20
47

All staff are paid in accordance with nationally agreed pay scales.
The number of officers whose renumeration, excluding pension contributions, was £50,000 or more, in bands of
£10,000 were:
Between £50,000 and £60,000

1

1

10 Tangible Fixed Assets
Operational
Freehold
Land and
Buildings

Cost
At 1 April 2009
Additions
Disposals

£
5,050,000
11,886
-

At 31 March 2012

Operational
Non
Vehicles and
InfraCommunity
Leasehold Operational Equipment structure
Assets
Land and Land and
Assets
Buildings Buildings

£
-

£
-

£
679,908
31,329
(11,797)

£
246,245
96,198
-

5,061,886

-

-

699,440

Depreciation
At 1 April 2009
Charged for the year
Eliminated on
disposal

(482,828)
(121,182)
-

-

At 31 March 2012

(604,010)

-

At 31 March 2012

4,457,876

At 1 April 2009

4,567,172

£

Other

Total

26
-

£
£
460,000 6,436,179
139,413
(11,797)

342,443

26

460,000 6,563,795

(390,390)
(55,196)
9,440

(119,117)
(17,212)
-

-

-

-

(436,146)

(136,329)

-

- (1,176,485)

-

-

263,294

206,114

26

460,000 5,387,310

-

-

289,518

127,128

26

460,000 5,443,844

(992,335)
(193,590)
9,440

Net Book Value

Although classified as capital expenditure, certain minor equipment purchases are not included in the above as they are
not material in overall value.
Fixed Asset Valuation
The freehold and leasehold properties that comprise the council's properties have been valued as at 31st March 2007 by
external independent valuers, Messrs The Valuation Agency. Valuations have been made on the basis set out in the
Statement of Accounting Policies, except that not all properties were inspected. This was neither practical nor
considered by the valuer to be necessary for the purpose of valuation. Plant and machinery that form fixtures to the
building are included in the valuation of the building.
Investment properties were valued by external independent valuers, Messr DVS on 31st March 2010
Page 15

Chesham Town Council
Notes to the Accounts
31 March 2012
11 Financing of Capital Expenditure
2012
£

2011
£

The following capital expenditure during the year:
Fixed Assets Purchased

139,413

163,725

139,413

163,725

49,999

1,865

89,414
139,413

161,860
163,725

was financed by:
Capital Grants
Precept and Revenue Income

12 Information on Assets Held
Fixed assets owned by the council include the following:
Operational Land and Buildings
Chesham Town Hall
The Elgiva Theatre
Works Depot
Pavilions - at 2 recreation grounds
Clock Tower, Market Square
Gazebo, Red Lion Street
Cemetery Chapel
The Temperance Hall
Open Air Swimming Pool and Sports Complex
Investment Properties
Former Cemetery Lodges (let on commercial terms) - 2
Vehicles and Equipment
Light Vans – 2
Tractors – 2
Sundry grounds maintenance equipment
Sundry office equipment
Town Hall and Elgiva Theatre furniture and equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Skateboard Park
Bus Shelters – 4
Fencing etc
Other street furniture
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12 Information on Assets Held (cont'd)
Community Assets
Various Open Spaces
Chesham Cemetery
Allotments – 3 sites
Recreation grounds and playing fields
Childrens' play areas
13 Stocks

Theatres
Community Centres
Leisure/Sports Centres

2012
£
2,968
734
367

2011
£
2,992
1,555
385

4,069

4,932

2012
£
3,718
1,788
5,506
4,734
4,124
28,725
18,047

2011
£
18,884
(4,533)
14,351
(7,362)
193
3,466
24,065
10,617

61,136

45,330

2012
£
52,392
11,417
9,035
10,926
45,804
4,807
49,948

2011
£
34,486
9,788
41,011
46,332

184,329

131,617
198,745

14 Debtors

General Debtors
Provision for Doubtfull Debts
Elgiva Theatre Debtors
Trade Debtors
VAT Recoverable
Loan Debtors
Other Debtors
Prepayments
Accrued Income

15 Creditors and Accrued Expenses

Trade Creditors
Other Creditors
Superannuation Payable
Payroll Taxes and Social Security
Accruals
Accrued Interest Payable
Income in Advance

16 Financial Commitments under Operating Leases
The council had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of equipment as follows:
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Obligations expiring within one year
Obligations expiring between two and five years
Obligations expiring after five years

2012
£
2,700
1,036
3,736

2011
£
16,200
692
16,892

2012
£
157,350

2011
£
161,832

157,350

161,832

2012
£

2011
£

17 Long Term Liabilities

Public Works Loan Board

The above loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year
From one to two years
From two to five years
From five to ten years
Over ten years

14,416
10,480
36,230
44,832
51,392

9,123
9,776
33,775
52,170
56,988

Total Loan Commitment

157,350

161,832

Less: Repayable within one year

(14,416)

(9,123)

Repayable after one year

142,934
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18 Deferred Grants
2012
£

2011
£

Capital Grants Unapplied
At 01 April
Grants received in the year
Applied to finance capital investment
At 31 March

49,999
(49,999)
-

1,865
(1,865)
-

Capital Grants Applied
At 01 April
Grants Applied in the year
Released to offset depreciation

72,197
49,999
(14,099)

81,931
1,865
(11,599)

108,097

72,197

At 31 March

108,097

72,197

At 01 April

72,197

81,931

At 31 March
Total Deferred Grants

Capital Grants are accounted for on an accruals basis and grants received have been credited to Deferred Grants
Account. Amounts are released from the Deferred Grants Account to offset any provision for depreciation charged to
revenue accounts in respect of assets that were originally acquired with the assistance of such grants.
19 Capital Financing Account

Balance at 01 April
Financing capital expenditure in the year
Additions - using revenue balances
Loan repayments
Disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation eliminated on disposals
Reversal of depreciation
Deferred grants released
Balance at 31 March

2012
£
5,209,814

2011
£
5,219,360

89,414
4,483
(11,797)
9,440
(193,590)
14,099

161,860
8,515
(191,520)
11,599

5,121,863

5,209,814

The Capital Financing Account represents revenue and capital resources applied to finance capital expenditure or for the
repayment of external loans. It also includes the reversal of depreciation to ensure it does not impact upon the amount to
be met from precept. It does not represent a reserve that the council can use to support future expenditure.
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20 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

Balance at 01 April

2012
£
17,000

2011
£
17,000

Balance at 31 March

17,000

17,000

The Usable Capital Receipts Reserve represents capital receipts available to finance capital expenditure in future years.
21 Earmarked Reserves
Balance at Contribution Contribution Balance at
01/04/2011
to reserve from reserve 31/03/2012
£
£
£
£
2,672
2,672
94,055
94,055
168,425
111,182
(132,017)
147,590
265,152
111,182
(132,017)
244,317

Capital Projects Reserves
Asset Renewal Reserves
Other Earmarked Reserves
Total Earmarked Reserves

The Capital Projects Reserves are credited with amounts equivalent to the interest on capital receipts balances, together
with other amounts set aside from revenue to part finance specific projects which are part of the council's capital
programme.
The Other Earmarked Reserves are credited with amounts set aside from revenue to fund specific known commitments
of the council.

22 Capital Commitments
The council had no capital commitments at 31 March 2012 not otherwise provided for in these accounts.
23 Contingent Liabilities
The council is not aware of any contingent liabilities at the date of these accounts.
24 Reconciliation of Revenue Cash Flow

Net Operating Surplus for the year
Add/(Deduct)
Reversal of Depreciation less Deferred Grants Released
Interest Payable
Interest and Investment Income
Decrease/(Increase) in stock held
(Increase) in debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors
Revenue activities net cash inflow
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2012
£
80,639

2011
£
54,715

9,771
(9,297)
863
(15,999)
47,906

10,378
(5,270)
(198)
(4,424)
(20,309)

113,883

34,892
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25 Movement in Cash
2012
£
Balances at 01 April
Cash with accounting officers
Cash at bank
Bank overdraft

Balances at 31 March
Cash with accounting officers
Cash at bank
Bank overdraft

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

2011
£

2,240
197,802
200,042

2,139
147,730
149,869

2,401
171,752
174,153

2,240
197,802
200,042

(25,889)

50,173

26 Reconciliation of Net Funds/Debt
2012
£
(Decrease)/Increase in cash in the year

2011
£

(25,889)

50,173

4,482
4,482

8,516
8,516

Movement in net debt/funds in the year

(21,407)

58,689

Cash at bank and in hand
Total borrowings
Net funds/(debt) at 01 April

200,042
(161,832)
38,210

149,869
(170,348)
(20,479)

Cash at bank and in hand
Total borrowings
Net funds at 31 March

174,153
(157,350)
16,803

200,042
(161,832)
38,210

Cash outflow from repayment of debt
Net cash flow arising from changes in debt

27 Post Balance Sheet Events
There are no significant Post Balance Sheet events since the preparation of these accounts, up to the date of their final
adoption (on 25th June 2012), which would have a material impact on the amounts and results reported herein.
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Appendix A
Schedule of Other Earmarked Reserves
Balance at
01/04/2011
£

Contribution Contribution
to reserve
from reserve
£
£

Balance at
31/03/2012
£

Capital Projects Reserves
Grave Maintenance

2,672
2,672

0

0

2,672
0
2,672

Asset Replacement Reserves
Equipment Replacement

94,055
94,055

94,055
0

0

94,055

Other Earmarked Reserves
PWLB Loan Capital (paid late)
Election Fund
Repairs & Renewals Fund
Staff Sickness Fund
Produce Market Reserve
Elgiva Reserve
Valuation Fees Reserve
Green Flag Reserve
Pool Flowers

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES

4,640
5,537
129,967
14,000
688
9,361
3,200
3,401
2,271

104,978

(2,333)
(593)

4,640
0
112,739
14,000
2,252
8,013
3,200
1,068
1,678

(5,537)
(122,206)

1,564
(1,348)

168,425

111,182

(132,017)

147,590

265,152

111,182

(132,017)

244,317
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Table. 1 – Budget & Actual Comparison
Budget £

Actual £

Net Expenditure
Cultural & Heritage
Recreation & Sport
Open Spaces
Cemetery, Cremation & Mortuary
Environmental Health
Community Safety (Crime Reduction)
Planning & Development Services (including Markets)

159,577
182,387
240,578
56,351
9,155
200
31,554

148,563
148,162
167,957
52,092
11,097
186
24,385

Investment Properties
Net Direct Services Costs

(8,920)
662,167

(9,295)
543,147

102,625
109,255

86,593
95,537

Net Democratic, Management and Civic Costs

206,345

182,130

Interest & Investment Income
Loan Charges
Capital Expenditure
Proceeds of Disposal of Capital Assets
Transfers to/(from) other reserves
(Deficit from)/Surplus to General Reserve
Precept on District Council

(7,105)
18,895
64,794
(119,456)
(33,500)
806,390

(9,297)
14,253
89,414
(500)
(20,835)
8,078
806,390

Corporate Management
Democratic & Civic
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Table. 2 – Service Income & Expenditure
Notes

2012
£

2012
£

Gross
Expenditure

Income

CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES
Cultural and Heritage
Recreation and Sport
Open Spaces
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
Cemetery, Cremation and Mortuary
Environmental Health
Community Safety
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
Economic Development (including markets)
Community Development
OTHER SERVICES
Investment Properties
CENTRAL SERVICES
Corporate Management
Democratic Representation and Management
Civic Expenses
Net Cost of Services
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2012
£

2011
£

Net
Net
Expenditure Expenditure

531,831
361,491
188,917

(383,268)
(213,329)
(20,960)

148,563
148,162
167,957

161,802
132,853
192,034

62,754
11,097
186

(10,662)
-

52,092
11,097
186

48,215
12,002
(74)

31,622
8,701

(4,516)
(11,422)

27,106
(2,721)

30,058
2,044

2,063

(11,358)

(9,295)

(9,060)

88,749
92,556
2,981
1,382,948

(2,156)
(657,671)

86,593
92,556
2,981
725,277

88,426
82,739
5,528
746,567

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 10 – SURVEY ON SERVICES
Reporting Officer:

Bill Richards (01494 583824)

Summary
1.

To agree the commissioning of a 2012 annual survey of Council services.
Background Information

2.

The Council last undertook a door-to-door survey in 2005.
Financial Implications

3.

As outlined within the report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

Accords with strategic objective 5 – ‘To consult with and take due regard of all comments
received from other statutory bodies, voluntary organisations and individuals, to ensure an
improving standard of service that meets with local needs.’
Equality Act Implications

5.

If a survey was commissioned, it will be possible to make it available in large print and in Urdu
upon request.
Detailed Consideration

6.

The Council carried out two major door-to-door surveys on its services back in 2000 and 2005.
Another one was scheduled for 2010 but the Council decided not to commission one due to
financial budgetary pressures. The 2005 survey obtained a 27% response rate (compared with
17% in 2000). The survey in 2005 was undertaken in its entirety by an outside consultation
company and the total cost for the door-to-door survey including printing, reply paid envelopes
and analysis of results was in the region of £6,000.

7.

Officers believe that a cheaper, door-to-door survey can be undertaken through the Council’s
next newsletter due out in late August/early September. Exclusive Magazines has stated it is
prepared to enlarge the usual newsletter to 5-6 pages to incorporate a survey broadly based on
the 2000 and 2005 questions (draft attached). Also attached is a synopsis of the results from
the 2005 survey.

8.

The costings to do a Freepost envelope with the newsletter to the residents is as follows:
11,000 envelopes @ £26.50 per 1,000 = £291.50
Second class Freepost letter return 11,000 @ 33 pence per 1,000 = £3,630. (Unlikely to get
100%. More realistic to suggest between 10%-30% = £330 - £990.)
Printing of reply paid address to 11,000 = £700
Cost of labour = £450
Total cost = £5071.50 for 100% OR £2431.50 for max 30% return

9.

With the growth of on-line usage and social networking sites, the Council can also encourage
residents to respond in this way as an alternative. Better Chesham has indicated it may well be
able help with software in this area.

10.

The results of survey returns can be inputted and analysed by officers in-house though this may
take longer than by using a bespoke company.

11.

Waitrose is kindly offering shopping vouchers again to survey winners drawn randomly as an
incentive to residents to return the forms.

12.

Members will be aware that there have been perceived concerns over the distribution of the
Newsletters. Your Clerk and the Policy and Projects Officer have met the proprietor of Exclusive
Magazines and assurances have been sought and given that the distribution will be
comprehensive.

13.

Alternatively, newsletters can be sent with no Freepost return envelopes which would mean only
minor costs. However it would be assumed the response rate would be far less than with previous
surveys.

Recommendation
That the Committee consider commissioning a 2012 Residents’ Survey at a
cost not to exceed £2,500 to be funded from the General Reserve.

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 11 – ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
PLAN FOR 2012/13
Reporting Officers: Bill Richards (01494 583824) and Kathryn Graves
(01494 583798)
Summary
1.

To consider a draft of the 2012/13 Performance Plan.
Background Information

2.

As detailed in Minute 118 of the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 12th
May 2008, the Council agreed to the production of slimmer annual performance
plans from 2008 onwards, following the rescinding of the legal requirement to
undertake Best Value and the requirement to publish an annual Best Value
Performance Plan.
Financial Implications

3.

None pertaining to this report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

The production of an annual performance plan accords with strategic objective 5 –
‘To consult with and take due regard of all comments received from other
statutory bodies, voluntary organisations and individuals, to ensure an improving
standard of service that meets with local needs’.
Equality Act Implications

5.

The Annual Performance Plan’s key point of publication is the Town Council web
site. However, the document can be printed upon demand in the office for those
without access to the internet. It can also be reproduced in large print upon
request. Any other requests for reproduction in different formats will be
accommodated where reasonably possible.
Detailed Consideration

6.

The draft Performance Plan for 2012/13 is included within the dispatch for
Members’consideration.

Recommendations
That the Committee approves and adopts the Performance Plan, subject
to any amendments it wishes to make.

Chesham Town
Council
Annual Performance Plan
2012/13
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Performance Plan 2012/13 – An Introduction
This plan sets out the following:
•
•
•
•
•

the Town Council’s objectives
the services we provide to achieve our objectives
the cost of these services, including a comparison of performance against
performance indicators
summaries of key projects undertaken in the past year
proposed projects for the coming year

How We Monitor Performance
The performance of the Council is overseen by our Policy and Resources Committee, which
is composed of Councillors. Over the course of the Council year, the committee assesses
the Council’s performance against the targets and performance indicators (PIs) specified in
this annual performance plan. The committee also oversees any reviews of specific services
provided by the Council.
The majority of PIs used within this plan were agreed in 2004 in consultation with other
town and parish councils, as appropriate general indicators of council performance, with
additional PIs included over time to encompass the expanding role of the Council. Within
the plan, the performance of the Council is compared with the previous year’s performance
and the target to enable improvements to be easily identified. Where there are exceptional
differences between years, or between actual performance and the target, these are
explained.
The Council’s performance is also measured in terms of public satisfaction with services.
The Council regularly consults with residents and other service users on specific service
areas.
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About Chesham Town Council
Chesham Town Council is the parish authority for the town of Chesham. With a population
of 20,350 (2001 census), it is the largest parish in Chiltern District. Chesham Town Council’s
mission statement is:
“To improve the quality of life of the residents of Chesham.”
To achieve this we aim to:
•

take part in an open dialogue with residents to better understand their needs,
and in turn explain how we will address these needs within the resources and
powers available to the Town Council;

•

provide high standard, cost‐effective services to help meet the needs and
wishes of the residents;

•

assist and encourage other bodies to provide such services; and

•

promote the best interests of the town for the benefit of the local community.

To fulfil its mission, the Town Council supplements the provision of local government
services in Chesham and provides a wide range of social and recreational facilities, while
promoting the town in its representations to other bodies. The Town Council works in
partnership with the larger Chiltern District Council, which covers the towns of Chesham,
Amersham and surrounding villages. The District Council is responsible for the Local
Development Framework and development control, car parking, housing, environmental
health and rubbish collection. The Town Council also works in partnership with
Buckinghamshire County Council, which covers the whole of Buckinghamshire except
Milton Keynes. The County Council is responsible for education, social services, highways,
strategic planning and libraries. The Town Council works closely with the Chesham Chamber
and Better Chesham to contribute to the economic well‐being of the town and has a
successful partnership with Transition Town Chesham in running the Local Produce Market.
Our other partners include: the Chesham Society, Town Twinning Association, Chilterns
Conservation Board, Chesham Action Partnership and other agencies and voluntary bodies
working together to improve service delivery or resolve local problems. The Council is
applying for a general ‘Power of Competence’ which is to come forth from the Localism Act,
which will extend the powers of the Council to spend monies on projects and services for
the benefit of the town.
The Town Council has 19 Town Councillors, elected for a term of four years. The last Town
Council elections were held in May 2011. The Chairman of the Council, who also undertakes
the office of Town Mayor, is elected annually by the Councillors in May, together with a
Deputy Town Mayor.
Town Councillors are unpaid and, with the exception of the Mayor, do not receive any
attendance allowance or payments for their duties, which they undertake purely on a
voluntary basis.
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The Town Council has a committee structure with three main standing committees:
Development Control, Policy and Resources, and Recreation and the Arts.
Agenda for all meetings are available to the public at least three clear days before the
meeting date at the Town Hall, on the Council web site (www.chesham.gov.uk) and at
Chesham Library in Elgiva Lane. Meetings are held at the Town Hall, Chesham (HP5 1DS)
and the public is encouraged to attend. A calendar of meetings of the Council and its
standing committees for 2012 is shown in Appendix 1.
The Town Council appoints representatives to the following charitable bodies:
Chesham Town Picture Fund, Francis Trust
Duke of Bedford’s Trust
Ken Denham Trust
Rachel Johnson’s Eleemosynary
Weedon’s Almshouses Charity Trust
The Town Council also appoints representatives to a large number of outside bodies:
Allotments Group
Chesham in Bloom
Chesham4Fairtrade
Chesham Action Partnership
Chesham Action Volunteers
Chesham and Villages Local Area Forum
Chesham & District Community Association
Chesham & District Transport Users’ Group
Chesham Chamber
Chesham Over 50s Positive Action Group
Chesham Town Twinning Association Committee
Chesham Youth Centre
Chesham Youth Council
Chiltern Citizens Advice Bureau
Chiltern Dial‐A‐Ride Limited
Chiltern Racial Equality Council
Chiltern Society
Chilterns Chalk Streams Project
Christmas Day Party for the Elderly
CPRE (Penn Country Branch Executive Committee)
Elgiva Board of Management
Friends of Chesham Cemetery
Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Neighbourhood Action Group
Ranfurly Charitable Services
Parish Tree Warden
Transition Town Chesham
Walkers Are Welcome
The Town Council awarded 22 donations totalling £7,316 in 2011 to local organisations.
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The Town Council employs a team of 14 full‐time staff and 10 permanent, part‐time staff
headed by the Town Clerk, Bill Richards. This is supplemented by the use of a number of
temporary/casual staff. The Town Council’s staffing structure is shown in Appendix 2.
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Strategic Objectives
The Town Council’s strategic objectives are based on the Council’s overall vision. The
objectives are:
1.

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires expressed by the residents.

2.

To encourage and promote the economic and commercial vitality of the town.

3.

To preserve the unique identity of Chesham and promote its heritage.

4.

To ensure that harmony exists between commercial and residential requirements.

5.

To consult with and take due regard of all comments received from other statutory
bodies, voluntary organisations and individuals, to ensure an improving standard of
service that meets with local needs.

6.

To represent the views and wishes of the citizens of Chesham.

7.

To help create a socially inclusive and caring community, which embraces all its
residents equally, seeking to develop their well‐being, knowledge, understanding,
and mutual co‐operation.

Chesham Community Vision
The Town Council is also working with the Chesham Action Partnership to fulfil the
objectives defined in the Chesham Community Vision, launched in December 2005. As the
town’s official Market Town Health‐check, we are a key partner in its delivery.
There is a Chesham Community Vision for 2015 (see Appendix 3) which is:
“An active and vibrant working market town with an integrated but varied community
where people support one another and can live, work, shop, visit and enjoy themselves in
an environment that is constantly cared for and enhanced. A town that:
•

Provides sustainable employment opportunities, housing and business facilities
that respect the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty in which it is situated.

•

Encourages young and old from all areas to work together to achieve continual
improvement to the facilities and future prospects of the town.

•

Promotes a thriving town centre which provides leisure and shopping facilities to
meet the needs and wishes of residents and visitors.
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•

Has a fully linked transport and communication system providing good services for
people to travel within the town and regular connections to London and
surrounding towns and villages.”

The key values identified by the Chesham Community Vision are:
‐ A town of character
‐ A solid community infrastructure
‐ A sound local economy
‐ Best access to services
‐ An integrated community
‐ Better choice of shops
‐ Integrated transport system

‐ A vibrant social mix
‐ Regeneration of the High Street
‐ Improved communication
‐ A strong sense of community
‐ Easy accessibility to green open spaces
‐ Linking of education, training and employment

6
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Public Consultation and Feedback
Underlying our strategic objectives is the need to consult the community. The Town Council
is the first tier of local government, closest to its community. We fully endorse our duty and
in 2007 adopted a Consultation Policy and Procedure to ensure that we carry out
appropriate consultation in an inclusive and effective manner. The Council will:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

put consultation at the heart of its service delivery
be clear about what it wishes to consult on, with whom and when
ensure people know the standard of service they should expect
be honest and open about what is, and what is not, possible
encourage people to decide what services they want and how they would like
them delivered, within existing constraints
aim to engage all sections of the community
make consultation an integral part of improving service delivery
promote consultation good practice with partners

The Council runs satisfaction surveys and other forms of consultation on specific services
and issues on an ad hoc basis. In addition to this, consultation is a core part of our service
reviews which we run regularly to ensure that we run our services in a cost‐effective
manner that meets public expectations. We also produce quarterly, free newsletters and
the annual Town Guide as a means of regular communication with residents. The council
web site, www.chesham.gov.uk, provides a wealth of information, including up‐to‐date
contact information for the Council and Councillors, details of Council services, news and
events, plus financial information, policy documents and committee agendas, reports and
minutes. The public can contact the Council via a dynamic enquiry form on the web site. We
have also embraced social media, with a Facebook profile and Twitter feed
(@cheshamcouncil).
Councillors have a key role in consultation because they bring to Council the views,
concerns and ideas of their constituents. The Council allows 15 minutes before the
beginning of every meeting of the Council for Public Question Time. During this time the
public may question the Council on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers
or duties, or which affects the town. The Annual Town Meeting in May is another means of
consulting the public. This forum enables town issues to be freely debated. The Council also
holds Local Council Open Surgeries during Saturday markets for members of the public to
meet and discuss any issues with Town Councillors representing Chesham and the
surrounding area.
The Council has established focus groups to consult with our users on the services we
provide. These discussion groups are the Allotments Group, Elgiva Board of Management,
Chesham Environmental Group, Friends of Chesham Cemetery, Friends of Lowndes Park,
Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim and the Impress the Chess Group. These groups
have evolved into highly active organisations that not only provide their opinions to the
Council, but are involved in volunteering to improve the services and having a strategic
input into the future of these services and facilities.
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Finally, the Council communicates and invites feedback via media releases to the local
press and radio; and through talks by Council officers to local organisations, clubs and
societies.

What Do You Think?
We welcome your views on this Performance Plan. Comments, queries, complaints and
compliments regarding the services we provide can be made:
In person to the Town Hall or by telephone on 01494 774842 between the hours of
10 am‐4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.
By Letter to The Town Clerk, Chesham Town Council, Town Hall, Chesham, HP5 1DS or by
writing to your local Town Councillor. A full list of Councillors and their contact details is
shown in Appendix 4 at the end of this Plan.
By Fax : 01494 582908
By E‐mail : admin@chesham.gov.uk
By Web site via Contact Us:
http://www.chesham.gov.uk/DynamicEnquiry/Contact_Us.aspx

8

Chesham Town Council ~ Performance Plan 2012/13

Council Tax 2012/13
The Council Tax paid by Chesham residents includes the spending requirements of
Buckinghamshire County Council, Chiltern District Council, Thames Valley Police,
Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire Authority and Chesham Town Council. The District
Council is responsible for collecting your Council Tax on behalf of all five authorities.
Chesham Town Council does not receive revenue support from Central Government, unlike
the District and County Councils. Neither is funding received from local businesses and
retailers through their Non Domestic Rate. This is collected by the District Council on behalf
of the government, reallocated and paid back to the District Council in the form of a grant.
Chesham Town Council is funded by Chesham householders and from the income
generated from services such as the Elgiva, letting income from the Town Hall and other
fees and charges. Each year, the Town Council calculates the money it needs to raise to
provide its services (the services we provide are detailed from p. 20 of this plan). Then we
deduct the income collectable from our activities to leave an amount we require to spend
on these services for the year ahead. This sum, called the precept, is the amount the District
Council collects on our behalf as a proportion of the total Council Tax paid by Chesham
residents. This year, ending 31 March 2013, our precept will be £828,430. Therefore, if you
live in an average Band D house, you will be contributing £98.40 (a 2.47% increase on
2011/12) to Chesham Town Council out of your total Council Tax Bill of £1,549.07 for
2012/13.
The net cost of the Town Council’s precept can be summarised as follows:
NET
EXPENDITURE
2011/12
£
200,210
10,515
48,595
100,690
(6,820)
202,095
8,875
172,575
22,895
47,265
17,365

CHESHAM TOWN COUNCIL

Service
Administration & Democratic Services
Allotments
Cemetery & Churchyard
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Housing
Parks & Open Spaces
Sports Pavilions & Pitches
The Elgiva
Town Centre Xmas Lights & Flora
Town Hall and Little Theatre by the Park
Lowndes Park Toilets

824,260

FORECASTED
EXPENDITURE
2012/13
£
187,735
8,515
46,455
111,245
(7,005)
203,175
9,205
183,360
23,105
44,885
17,755
828,430

(17,870)

Contribution to (from) Reserves

806,390

Precept

0
828,430
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Net Expenditure 2011/12
The below table provides a detailed summary of the Council’s net expenditure for
2011/12, compared with the budgeted expenditure. In addition to the Statutory Annual
Return the Council also produces un‐audited Financial Statements which are made
available to the public.
Service

COST CENTRE
Central Support Services –
recharged to services
Civic Activities
CCTV
Cemetery
Closed Churchyard
Interest
Housing
Corporate Management

Net Budgeted
Expenditure £

Net Actual
Expenditure £

0

0

13,430
200
43,710
2,410
‐7,105
‐9,420
98,825

Explanation of main differences and
over 15%

13,696
186
41,496
2,280
‐9,297 Higher interest rates
‐9,294
86,821 Reduced audit fees due to new accounting
regulations

Democratic Management
Section 137 Expenses
Chesham Moor Swim and Gym
Codmore Field
Marston Field
Amenities
Open Spaces

90,290
3,080
80,070
4,545
1,320
29,980
157,425

83,859
1,052
87,191
4,510
1,088
30,986
136,059

Lowndes Park Toilets
Agency Work
Skatepark Noise Abatement
Works Depot – recharged
The Elgiva
Temperance Hall
Town Hall
Allotments
Town Centre Revitalisation
GC2C – recharged
RESERVES
Renewal and Repairs
Net cost of services
Solar Energy Scheme

17,365
‐7,205
2,800
0
143,300
‐100
34,650
9,860
21,015
0

18,163
‐10,024 Increased income ‐market management fee
3,308 Wages costs under estimated
0
137,710
‐100
33,224
8,815
18,732 Christmas lighting maintenance costs
0

93,815
824,260
0

93,815
774,276
24,037 New Scheme‐Moor Gym & Swim (Estimated

Appropriation to (from)
Reserves
Precept

Lower internal grants for use of the Town Hall
Reduction in Gym income
Lower football income
Lower maintenance costs (part of these
savings will be carried over and used in
2012/13 e.g. tree survey programme)

payback 9 years)

8,077 See explanations above

(17,870)
806,390

806,390
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Renewals and Repairs Programme

BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD:
Capital – Marston Pavilion
Renewal & Repairs
INCOME:
Precept contributions
Christmas Lighting – Town Centre
Consortium
Grant – Band Stand
Moor Pavilion Contribution
Contribution towards Cemetery Fencing
Mausoleum
Contributions
(Church/Grant)
Transfer from Green Flag Reserve
TOTAL LESS EXPENDITURE
Allotments Fence
Computer/office equipment
Franking Machine
Elgiva
Town Hall
Paths – Lowndes Park
Park Bandstand
Play Equipment ‐ General
Open Spaces – return to grass
Skate Park Resurface (5 years 2010)
deferred
Seats
Fencing
Litter bins
Paths – Red Lion St Gardens
Moor hard standing
–
Information
boards
Allots/Cemetery/Station Rd/Roads
Depot buildings
Tractor/Trailers/Vehicles
Codmore Pavilion – redecoration, etc.
Cemetery Chapel – deferred renovation
Cemetery Hearse House ‐ roof
Cemetery paths
St. Mary’s – Mausoleum/Walls/Trees
Christmas Lights
Swimming Pool
Moor Pavilion
War Memorial Path
Gazebo
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD
*Includes schemes & balances carried
over from 2010/11

2011/12*
ESTIMATE
£

2011/12*
REVISED
£

2012/13
ESTIMATE
£

17,000
224,020

17,000
224,020

17,000
143,852

17,000
100,372

93,815
‐

93,815
‐

97,230
1,000

100,750
1,000

50,000
‐
‐

50,000
2,250
1,000
3,500

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐

‐

‐
384,835
‐
3,000
‐
16,277
24,836
11,968
49,665
20,000
‐
‐

1,180
392,765
‐
2,000
‐
16,000
24,000
‐
60,400
20,000
‐
‐

‐
259,082
‐
1,500
1,500
15,000
20,000
‐
‐
20,000
2,000
‐

‐
219,122
‐
1,500
‐
25,000
20,000
‐
‐
20,000
3,000
15,000

1,500
110
750
‐
1,000
4,083

1,500
110
750
‐
1,000
4,083

1,500
‐
750
3,000
‐
2,000

1,500
‐
750
‐
‐
‐

‐
7,700
660
‐
‐
10,000
2,271
8,850
40,143
4,070
‐
‐
206,883

34,500
7,810
660
‐
‐
5,800
8,200
‐
40,000
5,100
‐
‐
231,913

3,000
21,000
1,000
‐
‐
‐
‐
18,000
30,000
‐
700
760
141,710

‐
37,000
‐
‐
5,000
10,000
2,500
‐
30,000
‐
‐
171,250

117,952

160,852

117,372

47,872
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Projects in 2011/12

1.

Renovation of Performance Area and Erection of
Seasonal Canopy, Lowndes Park

Project summary:
One of the projects that was proposed within the ultimately unsuccessful Heritage Lottery
Fund ‘Parks for People’ bid in 2006 was the renovation of Lowndes Park’s Performance Area
and the erection of a seasonal canopy.
The Friends of Lowndes Park progressed this idea and submitted a bid to the Lottery’s
‘Community Spaces’ funding stream and were awarded, together with the Town Council, a
grant of £49,999 out of a project cost of around £65,000. The performance area was re‐
surfaced with decorative concrete and a labyrinth‐like design imprinted to add play value
for small children. The area is complemented with a demountable PVC canopy which will be
erected between May to September and will allow bands to perform there even in
unseasonable weather.
The Renovated Area and Canopy were officially opened by the Mayor in August 2011.

The Mayor, Cllr Derek Lacey, and the Chairman of Friends of Lowndes Park at the official opening in August
2011
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How does the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

The Performance Area and canopy will
enhance the quality and quantity of live
music and arts within the park while the
labyrinth style design will allow for greater
play options for the very young.

How does the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

A town that promotes a thriving town
centre which provides leisure and shopping
facilities to meet the needs and wishes of
residents and visitors.

This considerable financial investment for
Lowndes Park will demonstrate that the
Town Council is providing first class leisure
facilities in the town centre.

Easy accessibility to green open spaces.

Lowndes Park is located in the centre of the
town, providing easy access to a high
quality open space for recreation.
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2.

Stage III Re‐development of Play‐Areas

Project summary:
Having achieved its initial aim of providing high‐quality refurbished play‐areas in the south
(Moor Road); centre (Lowndes Park) and north (Marston Field) of the town, the Town
Council committed itself to the next stage of re‐development of its play‐areas in 2011/12.
For the last financial year, we committed ourselves to working with our preferred
contractor, Proludic Play and a local community or residents’ association to determine
which play‐area should be the next one to be re‐developed. Pond Park Community
Association (PPCA) was quick to contact the Council and throughout the year, we worked
with the Association to re‐develop Windsor Road play‐area. PPCA began the process by
liaising with the local school to ascertain what equipment was preferred by the children of
the area and it also agreed to commit £1,500 to the provision of a bench and colour
painting of the safety surfacing as a financial contribution. The Council contributed close to
£20,000 for the major redevelopment and the site was duly opened by the Mayor in
February 2012.

Windsor Road – renovated play‐area February 2012
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How does the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

The redevelopment of this play area will
give younger residents a much needed
enhanced play experience in a potentially
less accessible area of Chesham.

To consult with and take due regard of all
comments received from other statutory
bodies, voluntary organisations and
individuals, to ensure an improving
standard of service that meets with local
needs.

Integral to the Town Council’s Play Area
Strategy, is the need to consult with
residents and users (including young
peoples themselves) to decide on the play
equipment to be installed. Working directly
with a local community group will only
enhance this liaison.

How does the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

Accessibility to green open spaces

The new play area will enhance the
recreational value of the open space where
it is located.

A sense of community

The enhanced play‐area will bring families
together in the area.
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3.

Solar Power Installation

Project summary:
The Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim have long been keen to try and heat the open
air pool with green electricity as far as practicably possible. In 2011/12 they put forward a
proposal to the Town Council to install solar panels at the centre.
Aware of the government’s generous feed‐in tariff payments cash back scheme (37.8p per
kilowatt‐hour) designed to encourage renewable and low carbon electricity generation,
the Council agreed to such an installation with the equipment to be funded out of the
Council’s reserves at a cost of £23,000.
Following much technical advice both from the Friends representatives and Chiltern
District Council, the Council agreed upon the purchase of a 9.8 kW system having 40 245w
PV panels on the south‐west facing side of building with an estimated kW annual
generation of 7534 Su. Any electricity that is generated, but not used on‐site, will be fed
into the National Grid. As part of the Feed‐in Tariff incentive, the facility will also receive
payment for each kilowatt‐hour of electricity they export.
The expected annual payback is about £3,500, so the Council is effectively looking at
around a 7 year payback period.
Ultimately it took a concerted and concentrated effort for all parties involved to complete
this project to its full potential as the Government unexpectedly cut back the timetable for
completion to claim the tariff from March 2012 to December 2011 when the Council’s
project was in its infancy. The scheme was signed off a week before the cut‐off deadline.

How does the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

It accords with the Council’s Environmental Solar Power will play a major part in
Policy.
reducing the Council’s carbon footprint.

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

The project should reduce heating bills for
the centre allowing savings to be allocated
elsewhere at the facility to improve the
quality of visit for its customers.
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How will the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

The Vision refers to the many
environmental schemes in town and states:
‘These need to be enhanced, protected and
publicised.’

Solar power leads the way in achieving the
town’s objective, as set out by our partner,
‘Transition Town Chesham’, of reducing our
dependency upon fossil fuels.

17

Chesham Town Council ~ Performance Plan 2012/13

4.

Renovation of Chesham Mausoleum

Project summary:
Chesham Mausoleum is one of the town’s lesser known historical buildings. The
Mausoleum was built by Charles Lowndes who was Secretary to the Treasury in the 18th
century. He lived at The Bury and built the mausoleum in 1740. Correspondence held in
the Buckinghamshire Record Office suggests that the mausoleum may have been
extended in 1857 by a later descendant of the family, another William Lowndes.
In 2010, following removal of the ivy on the building located in the roof, the building was
found to be very much in need of renovation and required major repairs to make safe.
Even though the building is located in the grounds of St Mary’s Church, the responsibility
for maintenance for all graves, including this mausoleum, lies with the Council. As a listed
building, the Council firstly needed to ensure that any repairs were undertaken in
accordance with listed building consent by specialist builders.
With the help and guidance of local surveyors, a special building company, Corinthian
Stone, was located and commissioned to undertake major repairs to the roof and walls at
a cost of £7,700. The works required facility consent from the Diocese of Oxford which
was duly granted and repairs commenced in early 2012. The finances were forthcoming,
not just from the Council but also from generous contributions from the St. Mary’s District
Church Council and the Bucks Historical Buildings Trust.
The Mausoleum was signed off as completed in February 2012 and St Mary’s Church will
be considering the opportunities to open this historically important building to the public
in the future.

The Mausoleum – before and after
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How does the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To preserve the unique identity of Chesham The repairs enable the building to be
and promote its heritage.
opened to the public.

How does the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

A town of character

The renovation is important in preserving
the town’s rich cultural history.
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Projects for 2012/13
1.

Reducing Chlorine Levels at the Open Air Pool

Project summary:
To install an ionising generator at Chesham Moor Gym & Swim as a new technological
advancement in pool disinfection. Using an electrolytic ion generator will reduce the
amount of chlorine that has to be added to the pool water to achieve satisfactory levels of
disinfection. This will reduce the undesirable side effects that chlorine can have on bathers,
such as respiratory problems, and on the environment (e.g. chlorine is linked to a number
of environmental problems including acid rain and global warming).

How will the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

The implementation of modern technology
will reduce the amount of chlorine used in
the pool, which will help to create a better
swimming experience.

It accords with the Council’s Environmental Reducing the amount of chemicals to treat
Policy.
the pool water will decrease the harmful
impacts of chlorine on the environment.
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How will the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

Promotes a thriving town centre which
provides leisure and shopping facilities to
meet the needs and wishes of residents and
visitors.

The Chesham Moor Gym & Swim Centre is
located on the edge of the town centre. The
use of modern technology to improve
customer experience as well as reducing
running costs helps to meet the
requirements of both residents and visitors.
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2.

Refurbishment of The Elgiva

Project summary:
The Elgiva foyer/café is in need of re‐decoration, due to general wear and tear. It was last
decorated about six years ago. In addition to general maintenance, fresh, new colours will
be used to update the feel of the area. The Front of House toilets, entrance lobbies,
cloakroom, box office and bar will also be decorated.
Currently there are six rather large leather Chesterfield sofas, which are looking rather
battered and take up a considerable amount of space. We will be replacing them with three
more modern and compact sofas, freeing up more space in front of the bar for busy events.
The Gents Front of House toilet floor will be replaced and a new entrance mat will be fitted
at the main doors, to cope with the amount of foot traffic. A new advertising board made of
a good quality brushed fabric, is to be fitted to the main curved wall for display purposes.
Finally to eliminate the ‘Greenhouse Effect’ caused by sunlight through the foyer/café
windows (which cover an area 16.5 m by 4 m), blinds are to be installed with a 2 m drop.
These will filter the heat and glare of the sun, without affecting the amount of light coming
into the foyer.
The majority of the work will take place the week beginning 20th August 2012, when the
café will be closed. Additional work will take place during July and August, with as little
disruption to the public as possible.

How will the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality The refurbishment works will improve the
social, recreational, and cultural facilities appearance of one of the key recreational
within the town and to seek the continuing facilities in town.
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

How will the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

Promotes a thriving town centre which
provides leisure and shopping facilities to
meet the needs and wishes of residents and
visitors.

The Elgiva is a major leisure facility within
the town centre and this refurbishment
work will continue to improve the
experience for customers.
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3.

Renovation of Gordon Road and Co‐op Field Play
Areas

Project summary:
Having successfully provided new play equipment in the Lowndes Park, Marston Field,
Moor Road and Windsor Road play areas, the Council has agreed to next renovate the
Gordon Road Play area. The Council is working in partnership with the Waterside
Community Association, which has consulted with residents to find out the type of
equipment that people want to see installed. Based on this consultation, the Waterside
Community Association has secured a grant from Paradigm Housing and, at the time of
writing, is waiting a funding bid decision from the Lottery ‘Awards for All’. Renovation is
planned for the Autumn 2012.
The Asheridge Vale and Lowndes Community Association is currently consulting with
residents abutting Co‐op Field to ascertain what sort of new play provision they would like
to see in this recreation ground to replace the current playground which has been recently
shut on health and safety grounds. The Council will consider any proposals forthcoming
from this consultation and look at the funding options accordingly.
How will the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To enable residents to enjoy high‐quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities
within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these
facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents.

The redevelopment of these play areas
gives younger residents a much needed
enhanced play experience in the Waterside
area.

To consult with and take due regard of all Consultation with residents will be a vital
comments received from other statutory element of this project to ensure that the
bodies, voluntary organisations and play area meets the needs of local people.
individuals, to ensure an improving
standard of service that meets with local
needs.

How will the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

A sense of community

The enhanced play‐area will bring families
together in this part of Waterside.
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4.

Town Wide Survey

Project summary:
The Council proposes to carry out a town‐wide survey to assess residents’ satisfaction with
the services that it provides. The last town‐wide survey was carried out in 2005 and yielded
a lot of useful information about the Council’s performance. The results from the 2012
survey will help to inform decision making on the future provision of services.
How will the project meet the Council’s objectives?
Strategic Objective

How the Project meets the Objective

To consult with and take due regard of all
comments received from other statutory
bodies, voluntary organisations and
individuals, to ensure an improving
standard of service that meets with local
needs.

This major consultation exercise will
provide an objective and up‐to‐date view
on residents’ perceptions of the standard of
service provided by the Council.

How will the project meet the aims of the Chesham Community Vision?
Vision Statement and Key Values

How the Project meets the Objective

Promotes a thriving town centre which The survey will assess whether the Council’s
provides leisure and shopping facilities to leisure facilities meet the needs of
meet the needs and wishes of residents and residents.
visitors.
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Our Services, Performance 2010/11, and Targets for
2011/12
This section of the Plan explains the Council’s aims and objectives and performance
measures for each of the services we provide.

Corporate Performance Indicators
The following Performance Indicators, shown below, represent a measure of our corporate
performance.
Performance Indicator
Corporate
Cost of all Town Council services per
elector per annum
Percentage attendance by Councillors
at meetings of the Council, including
standing committees
Percentage of correspondence dealt
with within 7 days

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

£56.00

£51.83

£51.05

£49.63

£50.52

80.0%

75.4%

80.0%

77.2%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

The remaining pages of this section deal specifically with the services we provide.

Allotments
The Council’s service objective is:
“To provide allotments where a demand exists, in keeping with our statutory obligation.”
The service we provide…
The Council altogether owns 239 plots, spread across Asheridge Road, Amersham Road and
Cameron Road.
Performance Indicator
Allotments
Cost to the Council per elector
Income to the Council per hectare of
workable allotment land
Percentage of uncultivated
allotment land

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

£0.84

£0.56

£0.61

£0.55

£0.48

£1,011.87

£1023.74

£1,023.74

£1,076.56

£1,089.02

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%
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Annual summary of Allotments
The allotments continue to be an extremely popular service, with full occupancy on all
sites. The length of time people are on the waiting lists before being offered a plot has
been dramatically reduced thanks to an efficient plot inspection system being carried out
by officers and Allotments Group volunteers, and by splitting large plots into smaller
areas.
The Allotments Group continues to promote the allotments and involves tenants in a
variety of regular social activities, such as quiz nights and coffee mornings. A beautiful
garden is being developed around the focal point at the Cameron Road site and a
wildflower area has been created near its main gate as a contribution to the Chesham in
Bloom campaign.
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Parks, Open Spaces and Playgrounds
The Council’s service objective is:
“To satisfy the requirement to provide good social and recreational facilities.”
The service we provide…
The Town Council owns, and maintains Parks, Gardens and Open Spaces at the following 18
locations within Chesham:
•

•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lowndes Park ‐ an area of some 36 acres. The Lower Park was a gift to the town
by the Lowndes family in 1953. Its main features include Skottowe’s Pond,
children’s play areas, a skatepark and multi‐sports court, a family tree planting
scheme, Sovereign Coppice and the bowl barrow scheduled ancient monument.
Also the location for the annual Schools of Chesham Carnival, summer open‐air
concerts and community events.
Meades Water Gardens ‐ formerly disused watercress beds, a 3 acre wildlife
habitat and recreation area including a stretch of the River Chess, regenerated by
a national award winning project in 2007/08.
Chesham Moor ‐ formerly the town’s Victorian domestic refuse site, now an
attractive stretch of common land of some 17 acres alongside the River Chess. Its
main features include sports pitches, children’s play equipment and Chesham
Moor Swim & Gym.
Nashleigh Hill Recreation Ground ‐ a 9.5 acre open space. The site is used for
circuses and small fun fairs. The park also accommodates a children’s play area
and a goal for informal recreational use.
Berkhampstead Field – adjacent to Nashleigh Hill Recreation Ground, this field is
popular with dog walkers and is a good site for chalk grassland wildlife.
Co‐op Field ‐ a sloping 4 acre field, a popular location for tobogganing, with an
enclosed children’s play area.
Marston Playing Field ‐ an 8 acre open space with enclosed children’s play area
and football pitches.
Codmore Playing Field ‐ a 7 acre open space with enclosed children’s play area,
football pitches, multi‐goal area and a cricket wicket.
Big Round Green ‐ an area of woodland leased to the Woodland Trust.
Manor Way Island ‐ a small area of open space in Manor Way.
Lye Green ‐ a small area of common land off Lye Green Road.
The Chalk Dell ‐ a small area of open space off Nashleigh Hill.
Batchelors Way ‐ an enclosed area within an open space owned by Paradigm
Housing.
Bois Moor Road ‐ an enclosed children’s play area off Bois Moor Road.
Gordon Road ‐ a small children’s play area off Gordon Road.
Hodds Wood Road ‐ an enclosed children’s play area off Hodds Wood Road.
Windsor Road ‐ an enclosed children’s play area within an open space owned by
Chiltern District Council but maintained by this Council.
Woodland View ‐ an enclosed children’s play area off Woodland View.
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Performance Indicator
Parks, Open Spaces & Playgrounds

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

Cost to the Council per elector

£12.77

£11.98

£11.78

£10.55

£11.65

Percentage of play equipment
inspected and made safe within 24
hours of reported defect

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Percentage of sites visited and
inspected weekly

Annual summary of Parks, Open Spaces and Playgrounds
A busy year for Lowndes Park saw it retain the Green Flag Award for a second year in a
row. New raised flower beds have been created in the lower park and the hedges along
the boundaries of the upper park have been reinforced by hundreds of native saplings
donated by the RHS and planted by Chesham in Bloom volunteers. The planting schemes
in Archena Gardens and the Scented Garden have gone from strength to strength under
the care of the Friends of Lowndes Park. And thanks to funding work by the Friends, the
performance area has been renovated and a seasonal canopy installed (see page 12).
Access along the Chess Valley Walk into Meades Water Gardens has become more
accessible for people with wheelchairs and pushchairs thanks to £60,000 worth of
footpath upgrading work in Duck Alley funded by the Council, the Chilterns Chalk Streams
Project and the Impress the Chess partnership.
The second year of the three year control programme was successfully completed for the
Japanese Knotweed infestation on The Moor. The infestation of this invasive weed, which
damages wildlife habitats and also has the potential to damage properties, has visibly
reduced using a technique in which herbicide is directly injected into the stem of each
plant; this method was selected because of its minimal impact on the environment.
Windsor Road play area was successfully refurbished in partnership with the Pond Park
Community Association, and further play areas have been earmarked for renovation in an
on‐going programme (see page 14).
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The Elgiva
The Council’s service objective is:
“To ensure a varied programme of entertainment, social and cultural activities is available
to all sections of the community.”
The service we provide…
Built in 1998, the Elgiva Theatre (which replaced the former 22 year old venue based in
Elgiva Lane) is owned and managed by Chesham Town Council. The venue provides a
varied and popular range of entertainment including professional and amateur theatre
productions, live music and one‐nighters as well as a pantomime.
The Elgiva boasts the area’s most hi‐tech and advanced Dolby Digital Cinema and surround
sound. A What’s On brochure is published three times a year and distributed to over 60,000
homes in the area. The Elgiva also has its own web site, www.elgiva.com, providing 24 hour
access to cinema and theatre listings and on‐line booking. The Elgiva provides a bar and
there is also a franchised café. The venue’s tiered 300 seat auditorium can be quickly
converted to a flat floor suitable for exhibitions, wedding receptions and parties, discos and
rock concerts and art and craft fairs. A long stay Pay and Display car park surrounds The
Elgiva and is owned and managed by Chiltern District Council. The car park can
accommodate 70 vehicles, including 3 spaces for the registered disabled.
Performance Indicator
The Elgiva

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

Cost to the Council per elector

£8.76

£9.33

£8.88

£8.53

£9.40

Income as a proportion of operating
costs

74.9%

71.2%

73.3%

73.6%

71.4%

Number of patrons attending cinema
performances

7,000

6,040

6,000

6,914

6,200

Number of patrons attending theatre
performances

37,000

35,641

36,000

33,602

35,000

Average attendance – cinema
(matinee)

10%

9%

10%

15%

12%

Average attendance – cinema
(evening)

24%

27%

25%

35%

28%

Average attendance – theatre

60%

61%

60%

57%

57%
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Annual summary of the Elgiva
As can be seen from the final end of year results, the team at the Elgiva have by shrewd
budgeting and increased marketing coming £6,000 under its original budget and some
£11,500 under its 2011/12 final budgetary spend (excluding Renewals and Repairs). This is
an excellent result given the continued difficult economic times and tough targets set by
the Council. This achievement would not have been possible without the 2011 pantomime
being the most profitable ever, followed by three incredibly busy months at the start of
2012; the manager would like to extend his thanks to all involved for their hard work and
dedication.
One of the most pleasing results was the increase in the cinema audiences, up over 15%
on the previous year, helped by several hugely successful movies that were released in the
first three months of 2012, such as The Best Exotic Marigold Hotel. Finally, whilst the
manager feels it will remain a difficult climate to operate in for some time to come, he and
his team will continue to work hard and strive to ensure a successful future for this vital
community facility.
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The Town Hall
The Council’s service objective is:
“To ensure high quality social, recreational and cultural facilities are available to all sections
of the community.”
The service we provide…
Opened in 1998, The Town Hall overlooks Lowndes Park and is accessible on foot from the
High Street or by car through Star Yard Car Park. The venue boasts a ground floor
Community Hall with seating capacity for 110 and adjoining kitchen facilities. There is full
disabled access to the first floor and the Lowndes Room, which can seat up to 50 and has its
own private kitchen. The Council Chamber, which is ideal for conferences and training
courses can accommodate up to 100 delegates. There is a small meeting room, which can
seat eight people. The venue offers a laptop, data projector, delegate microphones and
internet connection. The Town Hall is used extensively by a wide range of societies and
community organisations, plus local companies for business meetings, including AGMs, and
training. It is the town’s only licensed venue for civil marriages and partnerships. The
adjacent car park is owned and managed by Chiltern District Council and can accommodate
59 vehicles including 3 spaces for the registered disabled.
Performance Indicator
The Town Hall

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

Cost to the Council per elector

£2.00

£2.11

£2.14

£2.05

£1.96

Income from lettings as a proportion of
operating costs

61.1%

54.1%

54.9%

56.9%

57.5%

Number of lettings for the Town Hall

1,480

1,204

1,300

1,237

1,270

15

5

15

25

20

8

9

11

5

8

Little Theatre – number of theatre
lettings*

N/A

132

N/A

156

N/A

Little Theatre – number of class
lettings*

N/A

279

N/A

288

N/A

Little Theatre – number of private
bookings*

N/A

17

N/A

20

N/A

Number of free‐of‐charge sessions
granted

Number of civil marriage/partnership
ceremonies

*The Little Theatre PIs were introduced in 2007/08. Targets are not set, but performance is assessed by
continued comparison of data.
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Annual summary of the Town Hall
The Town Hall has had an excellent year considering the difficult economic conditions,
achieving a higher income figure than in the previous year. The number of bookings
taken was only off target by 63 bookings. Whilst we have gained new, regular bookings
during the year, we do expect to lose some local government bookings as a result of
funding cuts. Disappointingly, the number of civil weddings and partnerships held in the
Council chambers has declined from last year. As our wedding licence expires at the end
of 2013, the Council will need to decide whether to renew this licence for a further 3
years.
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Sports Pavilions and Playing Fields
The Council’s service objective is:
“To satisfy the requirement to provide high quality recreation facilities within the town.”
The service we provide…
•

•
•

Codmore Playing Field – This 7‐acre sports ground accommodates two football
pitches, a multi‐use goal, an artificial cricket wicket and pavilion that provides
changing facilities and a small social area which is available for hire for social
functions.
Marston Playing Field – This sports ground accommodates two football pitches.
The Moor Playing Fields – The Moor is owned and managed by the Town Council.
The playing fields on the lower Moor accommodate four football pitches.

Performance Indicator
Sports Pavilions & Playing Fields

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

Cost to the Council per elector.

£0.48

£0.30

£0.36

£0.35

£0.38

Income from lettings as a
proportion of operating costs.

23.2%

43.4%

35.5%

51.2%

38.5%

Number of lettings for football
matches.

70

62

62

65

75

Number of organisations in total
using these facilities.

8

8

N/A

N/A

N/A

*Number of regular football teams
in total using these facilities.

N/A

N/A

5

5

6

*Number of non‐football, ad‐hoc
chargeable users hiring these
facilities

N/A

N/A

16

7

7

Annual summary of the Sports Pavilions and Playing Fields
We have seen a slight increase in the number of football matches taking place on our
playing fields and we hope to have an additional football team joining us in the new
season, to increase these figures further.
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Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
The Council’s service objective is:
“To satisfy the requirement to provide an open‐air swimming pool and fitness facilities for
the town.”
The service we provide…
Owned and managed by the Town Council, this facility provides a heated outdoor
swimming pool open May to October and adjoining gym, football pitches, a tennis court
and a multi‐court. The centre was closed in 1995 for extensive refurbishment and re‐
opened in 1997. It now provides changing‐room facilities for the outside sports pitches as
well as a pool hire facility.
Performance Indicator
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

Cost to the Council per elector

£5.32

£4.63

£4.96

£5.55

£5.53

Income as a proportion of
operating costs

63.7%

69.1%

68.6%

63.1%

65.3%

Number of swims

17,000

20,458

17,000

21,781

22,000

Number of lettings for tennis court
(in h)

1900

1205

1900

967

1,000

Number of lettings for multi‐court
(includes
netball,
football,
basketball, in h)

900

665.5

900

478

500

15,500

16,624

15,500

13,895

14,000

Number of gym visits

Annual summary of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Swimming at the Open Air Pool remained popular in 2011 despite it being a not overly
warm and settled season in respect to the weather. The ever competitive fitness market
proves to be a challenge and the fall in numbers, in part, reflected the opening of two new
low‐cost gyms in town. Lettings for the tennis courts and multi‐court also proved
disappointing and it is apparent target marketing is required in this area.
The friendly welcoming environment remains a great attraction to many and continues to
be a great asset to the Council and the residents of Chesham. It is the Centre Manager’s
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intention to reduce the Centre’s running costs and the addition of solar panels is already
generating an income. The Council intends to install new equipment into the pool plant
room that will reduce the pool’s chemical usage by approximately 70%, thus reducing
water usage and consequently be better for the environment.
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Chesham Cemetery and Closed Churchyard
The Council’s service objective is:

“to provide and maintain a local cemetery and Garden of Remembrance for the town.”
The service we provide…
•

•

Chesham Cemetery ‐ owned and managed by the Town Council for and on behalf
of the residents of Chesham. The cemetery is situated at the northern end of the
town with entrances in Bellingdon Road, Berkhampstead Road and Alma Road.
The cemetery caters for all religious persuasions. A small chapel with a seating
capacity of 50 is available and may be hired for a service prior to interment. An
Avenue of Remembrance is also available for the interment of ashes.
St. Mary’s Closed Churchyard ‐ maintenance passed to Chesham Town Council by
the Parochial Church Council in 1974. The Town Council is responsible for the
upkeep of the Churchyard including its grass, walls, fences, gates and trees.

Performance Indicator
Chesham Cemetery & Churchyard

Cost to the Council per elector –
cemetery & churchyard

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

£4.26

£2.84

£2.86

£2.71

£2.68

Annual summary of Chesham Cemetery and St. Mary’s Closed Churchyard
There were 33 burials in our cemetery during 2011, 16 of which were in new plots. We
have observed a long trend of increasing numbers of ashes interments in the cemetery,
compared to burials, and in 2011 there were 17 ashes interments compared to 16 burials.
The Garden of Remembrance for ashes interments is now full and new interments are
taking place in the Avenue of Remembrance.
The Friends of Chesham Cemetery have continued to help preserve both the heritage and
appearance of the cemetery by holding working parties to restore and maintain a number
of older graves. They have also funded and installed floral planters around the cemetery
chapel.
Following a successful trial, the pedestrian gates are now open 24 hours a day all year
(except in extreme weather conditions), giving people more flexibility to visit the graves of
their loved ones.
The mammoth task of digitising all the burial records from 1858 to the present day is well
underway. Ultimately these records will be linked with our digital maps of the cemetery.
The historic Lowndes family mausoleum in St. Mary’s churchyard was repaired with
funding from the Town Council, St. Mary’s District Church Council and the Bucks Historical
Buildings Trust (see page 18).
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Democratic Services and Corporate Management
The Council’s service objectives are:
“To provide the necessary and cost effective support to the democratic process and
delivery of the Council's services.”
“To preserve the town’s identity and promote its heritage through the Town Mayor’s
attendance at Civic and local organisations’ events.”
The service we provide…
•

•

•

•

•

Advice and support activities ‐ administrative support is provided to Members as
part of the Council’s decision making process. This includes officer time spent on
the preparation of agenda items and reports to Council, minutes, and attendance
at meetings involving Members.
Consultation ‐ the Town Council is consulted in the planning process and submits
comments to Chiltern District Council on all planning applications concerning
development within the parish. Residents may attend meetings of the Council’s
Development Control Committee and may make statements either for or against
a particular development. The Council is also consulted on the Local and County
Structure Plans and other Plans such as the Local Transport and the Waste
Management Plans.
Customer services ‐ the Town Hall is a vital information point for the public; a
“one‐stop‐shop” where information is provided not only about the Town Council’s
services but also on matters involving the services outside the remit of the
Council, including tourist information and community events.
Representational issues ‐ the Town Council aims to be the representative voice of
Chesham’s residents and lobbies other agencies and organisations on various
matters in relation to the services that they provide. Examples include highway
issues, e.g. traffic calming measures and road safety schemes; London
Underground; Thames Valley Police Authority and the Environment Agency. The
Council is represented on a number of charitable bodies, (see p. 3 for details), and
on a further 30 organisations.
Other support services ‐ the Town Council also supports and promotes the role of
the Town Mayor within the local community through, among other things, the
Annual Civic, Remembrance and Carol Services and Annual Town Meeting. Other
services that the Council supports include: Town Centre Revitalisation, Chesham
in Bloom, Christmas Lights, War Memorial and Town Clocks.

Finally, the provision of information required by members of the public in the exercise of
statutory rights (other than about specific services); completing, submitting and publishing
statements of accounts, annual reports and performance plans; treasury management;
external audit and external inspections are all part of the Council’s Corporate Management
services.
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Performance Indicator
Democratic Services

Cost to the Council per elector

Target
2010/11

Actual
2010/11

Target
2011/12

Actual
2011/12

Target
2012/13

£12.26

£10.70

£11.71

£10.57

£10.68

Annual summary of Democratic Services and Corporate Management
The Town Council has been particularly busy representing the community on a wide
variety of topics, including the condition of the town’s roads, the state of the culvert
running underneath the High Street, police station opening hours and Veolia Water
Central’s drought management plan.
The Council has supported a wide range of local groups in different ways, including its
annual donations scheme, councillor representation on a number of bodies and through
the provision of officer support.
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Environmental Performance
The Council’s objectives are:
“To minimise the negative impacts of the Council’s activities on the general environment.”
“To work towards enhancing and protecting the immediate environs of Chesham.”
Annual summary of Environmental Performance
The Town Council has worked with a broad range of groups to protect Chesham’s
environment:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Worked with Chesham & District Natural History Society to achieve Local Wildlife
Site designation for Berkhampstead Field as a chalk grassland wildlife habitat.
Worked with the Chilterns Chalk Streams Project to hold a very popular Impress the
Chess public walk.
With Transition Town Chesham, won the national How Green Is Your Market?
Award for the local produce market.
Worked with the Friends of Lowndes Park to retain Green Flag status for Lowndes
Park.
Continued to support the wildflower project run by the Friends of Chesham
Cemetery.
Hosted a community tree planting event organised by Chesham in Bloom in upper
Lowndes Park.
Continued to tackle fly‐posting in the town centre in partnership with Bucks County
Council.
Offered free chipping of real Christmas trees to residents. The chippings were then
recycled on open spaces.
Supported the Our Rivers campaign to end unsustainable water abstraction.
Installed solar panels at Chesham Moor Gym & Swim with the Friends of Chesham
Moor Gym & Swim
Installed recycling bins in the park for plastic bottles and cans.
Supported Chesham in Bloom in its successful Silver Gilt campaign.
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Calendar of Meetings ‐ 2012
All meetings start at 7.30 pm unless otherwise specified and are held at Chesham Town
Hall, HP5 1DS.
2012
January
9 – Council (Precept)
16 – Development Control
16 – Recreation and the Arts (8pm)

July
2 – Development Control
2 – Policy and Resources (8 pm)
23 – Development Control

February
6 – Development Control
6 – Policy and Resources (8pm)
27 – Development Control
27 – Council (8pm)

August
13 – Development Control

March
19 – Development Control
19 – Recreation and the Arts (8pm)
26 – Policy and Resources

September
3 – Development Control
3 – Council (8pm)
24 – Development Control
24 – Recreation and the Arts (8pm)

April
16 – Development Control
16 – Council (8pm)
30 – Development Control

October
15 – Development Control
15 – Policy and Resources (8pm)

May
10 – Annual Town Meeting
14 – Annual Council
21 – Development Control

November
5 – Development Control
5 – Council (8pm)
19 ‐ Executive
26 – Development Control
26 – Recreation and the Arts (8pm)

June
11 – Development Control
11 – Recreation and the Arts (8pm)
25 – Council

December
17 – Development Control
17 – Policy and Resources (8pm)

Chesham Town Council Structure
Town Clerk
Bill Richards

Elgiva Manager

Administration Manager

Mark Barnes

Maria McGwynn

Clerical
Assistant (P/T)

Bar Staff

2 Caretakers

Duty Manager

Casual Staff

Administrator
(P/T)

Box Office
Receptionist (P/T)

Parks & Premises
Manager
Bob Ayres

Leading
Hand

2 Parks &
Premises
Operatives

Technical
Manager

Projectionists

Technical
Assistant

Finance & Contracts
Manager
Stephen Pearson

Finance
Assistant

Pool & Gym
Manager
Danny Essex

Lifeguards &
Gym Staff
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Deputy Manager

Policy & Projects
Officer
Kathryn Graves

Chesham Community Vision

your town - your future

VISION STATEMENT - Chesham in 2015
An active and vibrant working market town with an integrated but varied community where people support
one another and can live, work, shop, visit and enjoy themselves in an environment that is constantly cared
for and enhanced. A town that…
•
•
•
•

provides sustainable employment opportunities, housing and business facilities that respect the
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty in which it is situated.
encourages young and old from all areas to work together to achieve continual improvement to the
facilities and future prospects of the town.
promotes a thriving town centre which provides leisure and shopping facilities to meet the needs
and wishes of residents and visitors.
has a fully linked transport and communication system providing good services for people to travel
within the town and regular connections to London and surrounding towns and villages..

BACKGROUND
The Chesham Community Vision was launched in early 2004. Over 400 residents from Chesham and
surrounding communities plus representatives of more than 40 local businesses, groups and organisations
responded to an initial consultation event. Over 3,000 individual responses have been captured as part of
this new community-wide appraisal, completed by a broad spectrum of the community including the very
young, young people, older persons, minority group representatives plus local retailers and businesses. A
good example of the innovative consultation techniques deployed during the project was the ‘Lights,
Camera, Gab DVD initiative. What has emerged are a range of key trends and issues, challenges and
aspirations, that those who live, work, play or visit the town and local area express when they consider
the future of this community.
In late 2004 four Action Groups, Environment, Economy, Community & Transport, were created with a
remit to build on the evidence from the consultation work and prepare a fresh action plan reflecting the
views of the widest possible audience and forming a springboard for projects to be delivered by local
community groups. This Vision document summarises the outcome of their work and offers an initial
action plan which will guide project teams as they seek solutions to the challenges facing Chesham over
the next 10 years.

HISTORY & HERITAGE
The people of Chesham have a tradition of being independent minded – politically, in religion and in trade.
In the 1700s the commercial planting of beechwoods gave impetus to the first industrialisation of this
rural town. Leathercraft followed. This together with a brewery gave the town its cachet of 4 B’s – Boots,
Brushes, Beer and Baptists. The arrival of the Metropolitan Railway in 1889 further boosted the economy.
In the 1960s an influx of workers from Pakistan and Bangladesh began the change of the population into
today’s multicultural diversity.
As we move into the 21st century our traditional small industries have declined and the change is towards
service industries. However, Chesham survives as a market town in a valued Chiltern landscape and still
serves a wide rural area.

KEYVALUES
VALUES KE
KEY
The key values, challenges and aspirations expressed by the community in and around the town are;
A

town of character
vibrant social mix
A solid community infrastructure
Regeneration of the High Street
Ensure a sound local economy
Best access to services
Improved communication with all who live,
work, visit and play in Chesham
A

A strong sense of community
integrated community
Easy accessibility to green open spaces
Better choice of shops
Linking of education, training and employment
An integrated public transport system


An

Chesham retains a very strong community identity. The responses to our
appraisal from all sectors of the community reflected this and also a clear
appreciation of the blend of rural and urban. This unique mix e.g. distinctive
town centre,
green spaces, variety of small retail units, street market and
ENVIRONMENT
surviving social fabric was recognised by all who we have consulted, i.e. living,
working or visiting the town. Many valued and wished to retain the geographical
distinctiveness of Chesham and surrounding communities within the Chilterns.
These factors clearly play a major part in the importance of the town to a wide
hinterland.

PARTNERS
This Vision reflects a strong local partnership, the process facilitated by Bucks Community Action and
supported by Chesham Chamber of Trade and Commerce, Chesham Community Association, Chesham
Society, Chesham Environment Group, Chiltern Racial Equality Council, The Children’s Fund, Chesham Town
Council, Chiltern District Council and Buckinghamshire County Council

ENVIRONMENT
Chesham has many attractive landscape features,
notably, the River Chess, Lowndes Park and the
surrounding woodlands, and an historic built environment
that includes the church and old town. These need to
be enhanced, protected and publicised. As well as larger
schemes to achieve this, such as Impress the Chess,
Chesham In Bloom and the Lowndes Park project, there
are numerous local groups working on environmental
projects. An Environment Forum will be set up to
identify these groups, co-ordinate their work and to
publicise their activities. Furthermore, access to the
surrounding countryside needs improving for walkers
and cyclists, both local and visiting, so that Chesham can
be seen as a tourist centre and a gateway to the
Chilterns. The town itself needs to have more to offer
to visitors and the utilisation of the Yards off the High
Street is one way of achieving this. Chesham has an
interesting heritage of trades and professions. Publicity
of this by means of the Museum and various publications
will further add to the attractiveness of the town to
ECONOMY
the visitor.

ECONOMY
Chesham is a work/life town with the majority of residents working within five miles of home and it is
this heritage that determines its character. It is not just a dormitory for anywhere else and its High
Street is not a clone of a hundred other High Streets throughout the country. Maintaining these
elements is essential to maintaining the character of Chesham.
The High Street in Chesham has suffered like those in many other market towns but with the fourth
largest population in the County and with its hinterland of the historical Greater Chesham it has
strengths to build upon. The need is to upgrade the High Street in terms of environmental and social
attractiveness, to extend the range of shops, particularly local and specialist shops, to exploit the
street market and to develop other facilities such as restaurants that will attract visitors. There is a
need for consistent promotion of the High Street, recognising the convenience, variety, accessibility and
expertise that local ownership and control provide.
Although Chesham has a substantial resident population, a really dynamic High Street needs to attract
visitors from outside. There are many attractive features to Chesham, but no major attraction to bring
people in. The need is to develop a strategy that will build on these lower key attractions to increase the
numbers of visitors to the Town and to encourage those visitors to make use of the other facilities
available.
It is characteristic of Chesham that people work and live in the town. To maintain this situation, which is
highly beneficial in social and environmental terms, there is a need to retain commercial premises in the
Town and also to ensure that the people in Chesham have the appropriate education and skills to meet
the needs of 21st century employment.
The economic vision can be captured in these five themes:
• Chesham has always been a working town and the key to maintaining its character is to
maintain its economy.
• An essential element in its economy is a vibrant High Street, with an emphasis on local and
specialist shops offering service, expertise, convenience and on-the-spot accountability.
• A successful High Street requires a good variety of shops and services in an attractive
environment, with consistent promotion of what the Town can offer to increase the flow of
visitors.
• It is also important to continue to provide employment within Chesham, to benefit from the
major social and environmental benefits that this brings.
• This will require the availability of a suitably skilled and educated workforce and access to
suitable commercial premises.

COMMUNITY
COMMUNITY

The population of Chesham includes people of all ages and differing ethnic backgrounds. For geographical
reasons, many communities are physically separated and the hinterland is even more distant. The
community vision has identified four key themes that can address the challenges to this dimension of
future Chesham.
•
•

•

•

To meet the needs of all groups and communities and to seek integrated facilities that
encourage an interaction of all ages and origins across the town and hinterland.
To understand better the needs of communities in different parts of the town and hinterland, in
similar terms. A commitment to community cohesion that can have as an outcome the celebration
of similarities and differences across the community. Examples can include projects to celebrate
Black and Asian History and support to similar festivals in the future.
To define better the needs of young people, the elderly and other identifiable groups in terms
of facilities, services and learning provision. A community hub in the former Pond Park ward has
been identified as a major need.
To develop an independent town community forum with an ability to draw down its own funding
for community wide initiatives.

TRANSPORT
The transport vision seeks to improve access for all to local amenities, local communities and the nearby
larger towns. Transport is restricted by the topography of the area, with traffic being funnelled along the
A416 through Chesham. Congestion along this road is a major issue that needs to be addressed. Much
appreciated is Chesham station and its direct access to London. It is important to improve access from the
estates of the town and surrounding villages to Chesham town centre and the Railway Station. This can be
achieved through improved transport facilities including frequent reliable core bus services, demand
responsive buses, taxi-buses, cycling and walking.
Other issues include
• The difficulty in accessing health provision and other services within the Chesham area and beyond.
• The lack of a regular bus service to and from the nearby large towns
• The lack of evening and Sunday transport in general and the lack of information on transport
• The lack of a resident, shoppers and visitor parking strategy for the town and environs.

ACTION PLAN

ACTION PLAN
This first action plan captures the challenges identified during the appraisal and proposed solutions.
The steering Group will review and refresh this element of the Vision as projects progress.

Short Term Projects

Medium - Longer Term Projects
ENVIRONMENT

•
•
•
•

Produce a Rights of Way Development Plan
Audit surviving industrial heritage (mills etc.)
Create a local Environment Forum
Support and enhance the Impress the Chess,
Lowndes Park and Chesham In Bloom initiatives.

•
•

Rights Of Way network improvements
(for walkers, riders, cyclists, etc.)
Joint / linked projects
Seek to develop historic yards

•
•
•

Revitalise the town centre
Establish an Enterprise Hub
Attract sustainable new businesses

•
•
•
•

Integrated youth projects
Community Cohesion initiatives
Pond Park community Hub
Access projects

•

Improve access to local services,
communities, amenities and towns
Introduce demand responsive local bus
services to meet local needs and
connections to national networks.

•

ECONOMY
•
•

Establish a Training and Skills Forum (schools,
colleges, employers)
Develop a Visitor Strategy

COMMUNITY
•
•
•

Create a community-wide Youth Forum
Waterside youth projects
Access and Mobility survey (COPAG – Chesham
Older Persons Action Group)

•

Introduce a taxi bus service to feed railway
station with through ticketing options.
Develop a road freight management strategy.
Parking and access strategy.
Promote school & workplace travel planning.

TRANSPORT
•
•
•

•

WHAT NEXT!
Project groups will now develop the solutions proposed in our initial action plan. Why not join them? For further details
contact : Francis Gomme, Buckinghamshire Community Action, 01296 421036 email francis@bucks-comm-action.org.uk
Bill Richards, Chesham Town Council, 01494 774842 or our website: www.cheshamchamber.org/communityvision

FOR A LARGE PRINT
VERSION OF THIS VISION
DOCUMENT Contact
Chesham Town Council
This Vision document has been produced on behalf of the Chesham Community Vision Market Town initiative by Buckinghamshire Community Action.
Autumn 2005 Printed on environmentally friendly paper.
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Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 12 – CORPORATE MARKETING
REVIEW
Reporting Officers: Bill Richards (01494 583824) and Kathryn Graves
(01494 583798)
Summary
1.

To receive the final report of the Corporate Marketing Review.
Background Information

2.

It was resolved that corporate marketing and promotions would be the subject of a
review at the Policy and Resources Committee meeting held on the 31st October
2011 (Min No. 43).
Financial Implications

3.

As detailed within the report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

Accords with strategic objective 1 – ‘To enable residents to enjoy high-quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities within the town and to seek the
continuing improvement and development of these facilities in accordance with
the desires expressed by the residents.’
Equality Act Implications

5.

The Council carries out a broad range of promotional activities intended to make
information accessible to as many people as possible, including those with
protected characteristics. Specific measures are taken, where possible, to improve
accessibility for all, e.g. offering large print versions of written materials and
using web sites that are DDA compliant.
Detailed Consideration

6.

The review panel is comprised of Cllr Mrs Cherrill (chairing), Cllr Abraham, Cllr
Hudson, Cllr Wilson, your Town Clerk and Policy and Projects Officer. The panel
has called upon the assistance of members of the Elgiva Board of Management
and Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim, as well as your Administration
Manager, Elgiva Manager and Gym & Swim Manager during the course of the
review.

7.

At the Policy and Resources meeting of the 6th February 2012, the committee
endorsed the work of the panel, including its adoption of a short timetable and
focused approach (Min No. 72).

8.

Three further meetings of the panel have taken place since the above committee
meeting, and the minutes are attached (Appendices 1, 2 and 3).

9.

The review focused upon three major areas: the Elgiva, the Town Hall and
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim. As a conclusion to the review, the panel has
produced a document (attached as Appendix 4) that summarises the current
marketing and promotional arrangements and contains recommendations in an
Action Plan to improve promotion in these three main areas, as well as more
general recommendations.

10.

The panel were keen that regular updates on marketing activities should be
provided to Members for their information and to encourage continued
improvements in this area.

Recommendations
(i) That the Corporate Marketing Review be approved and adopted,
subject to any amendments the Committee may wish to make.
(ii) That regular updates on marketing activities be provided to
Members by the mechanism of their choice.
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MARKETING AND CORPORATE PROMOTION
REVIEW

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday 9th February 2012 at Chesham Town Hall at
10.30 am.
PRESENT:
Cllr Patricia Cherrill (PC), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Jane Bramwell (JB), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Peter Hudson (PH), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Fred Wilson (FW), Chesham Town Council Member
Bill Richards (BR), Town Clerk
Kathryn Graves (KG), Policy & Projects Officer
Mick Carling (MC), Elgiva Board of Management
Trevor Pilling (TP), Elgiva Board of Management
Sue Hutcheson (SE), Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Danny Essex (DE), Chesham Moor Gym & Swim Manager
Mark Barnes (MB), Elgiva Manager
Maria McGwynn (MM), Chesham Town Hall Administration Manager
1.
Apologies
Apologies were received from Cllr Roy Abraham.
2.
Minutes
The minutes of the 12th December 2011 meeting were accepted as a correct record
and there were no matters arising.
3.
Presentations On Current Marketing Arrangements
(i)
Town Hall
The marketing objectives were defined as:
• ensuring that all Chesham people are aware of the services that we offer
• maximising the use of the Town Hall (particularly weekends and weddings)
• covering the running costs
• reducing the ‘subsidy’
JB questioned why the Town Council has a Town Hall as the level of use for council
purposes is limited and the building costs money to run. JB suggested that an
alternative would be to sell the Town Hall and rent office space, whilst holding
Council/Committee meetings at venues around the town. Part of this line of
reasoning also requires us to consider whether the Council should be providing
subsidised facilities for community groups as it currently does through its room hire.
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MM said she believed that the room hire rates were competitive with local facilities,
particularly when the 25% discount for regular bookings is considered. TP said that
he had heard people say that the room hire rates are too expensive.
The Town Hall has an advertising budget of £250 per year, meaning that only one
advert per year can be placed. Most recently this has been placed in ‘Celebrate in
Bucks’ a Bucks County Council wedding publication as an attempt to counteract the
decline in wedding bookings. The Town Hall is the only civil licensed venue in
Chesham, but there is a need to increase the number of ceremonies taking place to
cover the costs of the licence.
There is no advertising budget for promoting the cemetery or Council administration
services. As a consequence, the Administration Manager relies heavily on free
advertising and on the in‐house production of leaflets and posters to advertise the
Town Halls services and facilities. Word‐of‐mouth is probably one of the key ways
that the Town Hall is promoted, but MM intends to include a ‘Where did you hear
about us?’ section on the booking form to find out about what advertising methods
are working.
The cemetery is promoted through an in‐house Guide to Chesham Cemetery and a
150th Anniversary celebration booklet. Revenue is being increased from lapsed areas,
including the transfer of exclusive right of burial (grave ownership), which provided
£442 extra income during last year.
In terms of the Council Reception work, a large proportion of time is spent sign‐
posting people to the appropriate council or organisation. To help with this, MM has
produced an in‐house leaflet explaining which organisation provides which services
in Chesham.
The Town Hall and Cemetery income was detailed as below:

Town Hall
Cemetery

Budget
2010/11
£30,000
£6,800

Actual
2010/11
£29,592
£11,067

Budget
2011/12
£30,000
£7,180

Actual @
9 months
£22,638
£9,519

Forecast
2011/12
£30,000
£10,920

Budget
2012/13
£31,500
£9,975

In order to maximise the number of bookings, MM is overseeing the standard of
maintenance of the Town Hall with on‐going work to replace the carpets, decor and
furniture. Wi‐fi has been introduced to the Town Hall to facilitate conference and
business bookings at a one‐off cost of £200.
Future plans for advertising and increasing revenue include the addition of adverts
to the Town Council web site, social networking and featuring the regular bookings
at the Town Hall in a What’s On section of the Town Council web site.
The group discussed ways in which income could be generated further. SH suggested
targeting small businesses and MB recommended installing mirrors along one wall in
Marketing and Corporate Promotion Review
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the Community Hall to attract dance classes. MC said it would be possible to include
a banner advert for the Town Hall on the Local Chesham web site and that Better
Chesham would be happy to help promote the facilities via its web site and
newsletter.
JB said that we need to look seriously at continuing to offer the venue for weddings
and partnerships due to the costs charged by the registrars. She also recommended
linking with local wedding services to see if a discount package could be provided,
including flowers, chocolates, etc. A problem posed by the venue is the lack of places
to take attractive photographs outside. It is possible for the bride and groom to be
photographed on the Lowndes Suite balcony with the park as the backdrop, but this
is not suitable for a large group.
(ii)
Elgiva
What’s On
The Elgiva has a comparatively large marketing budget, which is mainly spent on the
production of 53,000 What’s On guides produced three times a year. 47,000 of these
are sent by Royal Mail to 16 postcodes; reports indicate that the Elgiva gets the most
uptake for shows from these areas. The cost for the What’s On is 17.4 p per
brochure. The web site is also available on www.elgiva.com. Paper What’s Ons are
delivered to all the local community centres.
The Elgiva holds 28,851 customer client cards, but only c. 8,000 email addresses,
which have taken a long time to collate. Therefore, it will be a few years before it will
be possible to email out the brochure.
The Elgiva has considered reducing the number of What’s On per year to two, but it
is not possible to programme that far ahead to accurately include all the shows and
films in the guides. MB has also looked at increasing the amount of advertising in the
brochure, but selling advertising is very difficult in the present economic climate.
Also, increasing the number of pages will increase the brochure weight which could
increase delivery costs. MB has decided against putting premium adverts in between
the first page and the shows in the past, but this is open for discussion.
MB said that the What’s On works because there is a substantial increase in sales in
the first two weeks after the brochure is sent out.
Media
The Elgiva has a good relationship with the Bucks Examiner, who is the pantomime
sponsor. MB usually gets show adverts for free in the What’s On section of the
paper. The coverage in the Bucks Free Press is poor, but good in the Hemel Gazette.
E‐marketing
MC has offered to help with social networking. Julie Voyce is volunteering an hour a
week to help with social media. Email marketing is good for targeting specific shows,
but there is a cost associated with this form of marketing, which MB is looking at.
MB maintains a separate email list for promoting films. SMS marketing costs 8p per
Marketing and Corporate Promotion Review
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text, so this is not used. The web site is proving popular with c. 30% of bookings now
made online. It is planned to start taking paid advertising on the web site. Elgiva
shows are promoted on a number of external web sites. PH said that he doesn’t find
the web site user friendly for finding out what shows are on and suggested that the
navigation could be improved. DE recommended getting volunteers who have not
used the site before to look round the site and provide feedback.

Other promotions
Children’s shows and the pantomime are promoted to primary schools. It was
agreed that the pool’s swimming timetable could be sent out with the Elgiva’s
material.
The Elgiva has a ticket and restaurant deal with the Chesham Tandoori.
There is exit targeting with leaflets after shows.
The banners outside the Elgiva are only useful during the day and will require lighting
to make them visible at night.
Future plans include the installation of an LED sign in the town centre, increasing
email marketing, the development of a loyalty scheme, chargeable school tours of
the theatre and promoting the Elgiva as a film and TV location.
Data from the booking system shows that the behaviour of customers is changing,
with a tendency towards last minute purchases. FW suggested that this could be
capitalised upon by providing content for YourChesham, which goes door‐to‐door for
free each month.
Jane Bramwell left the meeting at 11.42 am.
(iii)
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
One of the key problems to be overcome is that people don’t know about the facility
due to its tucked away location. PH explained that the centre is now in its first year
of having a structured marketing plan. The Friends committee are doing the bulk of
the advertising, PR and day‐to‐day marketing tasks. The marketing plan aims to
increase general awareness of the centre, to increase footfall and to develop a
customer relationship database with regular communications to current and
potential users.
The web site has been reviewed to improve functionality and search visibility. There
is a lot of visitor traffic, with 10,500 visitors between April and August. The
marketing plan is focusing on email marketing with regular email alerts and links to
web sites. A database of email addresses is being built up, with c. 800 addresses at
present. Facebook and Twitter are also being used.
The Friends will focus on a small number of key events or days over the next year to
maximise promotion for the pool.
A basic marketing kit will be put together, including leaflets, posters and car stickers.
Marketing and Corporate Promotion Review
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DE explained that they are developing unique selling points to make them stand out
from other gyms locally, including new marketing deals such as the 10‐session gym
card. Installing Wi‐fi is being considered to encourage people to stay at the centre
for longer and increase their secondary spend.
The centre is developing links with the proposed Bagnall Centre in Waterside, which
will cater for people with low mobility, who will ultimately move on to regular gyms.
MM suggested that local slimming groups could be targeted with special
promotions.
4.
Next Steps
BR said that the Policy and Resources Committee are keen for the marketing of
Chesham Local Produce Market to be considered within the remit of this review.
Other areas for review include the town arch and the installation of a town centre
LED sign. As a broader concept, there was general consensus that the panel should
consider how much the three services should be operated as businesses, or as
service providers for the community.
It was agreed that BR and KG will draw up an action plan of the suggested activities
stemming from this meeting, which will be circulated to the panel for discussion.
5.
Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting date will be circulated by email.
The meeting closed at 11.10am.
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MARKETING AND CORPORATE PROMOTION REVIEW
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 19th April 2012 at Chesham Town Hall at
10.00 am.
PRESENT:
Cllr Patricia Cherrill (PC), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Jane Bramwell (JB), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Peter Hudson (PH), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Fred Wilson (FW), Chesham Town Council Member
Bill Richards (BR), Town Clerk
Kathryn Graves (KG), Policy & Projects Officer
1.
Apologies
Apologies for lateness were received from Cllr Peter Hudson.
2.
Minutes
The minutes of the 9th February 2012 meeting were accepted as a correct record and
there were no matters arising.
3.
Action Plan Update
KG provided updates on the action plan from the section heads of the three major
service areas:
Town Hall
(i) Maria has collated information from the Town Hall hirers offering classes. This has
been put into a What’s On leaflet and poster. KG will work with Maria to make this
available on the Town Council web site. KG provides daily posts on Twitter and
Facebook of the day’s activities at the Town Hall.
(ii) There is now a “Where did you hear about us?” section on the Town Hall booking
form. Results to date indicate that most people hear about us by word of mouth.
(iii) The Town Council web site design is now over 4 years old. KG suggested that the
design should be refreshed before the idea of taking adverts is pursued. KG has
spoken to E‐Mango, our web site company, to gain some examples of current town
council web site designs.
(iv) Maria has nearly finished a new leaflet targeting small businesses as potential
hirers.
(v) It was felt that the Town Council could not instigate the creation of a wedding
package, as the council could not be seen to be favouring certain businesses.
However, FW suggested that we could create a brochure of our wedding services
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and invite local providers to include offers and adverts. Through this paid advertising
it would be possible to produce the brochure at no cost to the council. FW said that
he would be happy to work with Maria on this concept.
Elgiva
(i) Mark has had a meeting to look at a web site redesign.
(ii) A free advert for Chesham Moor Gym & Swim has been created for the web site
as an example for potential advertisers.
(iii) What’s On and other literature is now being delivered round the town on a
weekly basis.
(iv) Mark has had one meeting regarding external lighting to date, with a view to
organising something before the nights start drawing in. He is also looking at
changing the shape of the banners and investing in a large sign to emphasise the
theatre, film & cafe elements of the facility.
(v) Mark is setting up a meeting with Jed Elverson of YourChesham.
FW asked whether the theatre & restaurant deal could be extended to other
restaurants in town. BR said that this was Mark’s intention.
Gym & Swim
(i) Wi‐fi should be installed at the centre today.
(ii) Slimming World and Weight Watchers are not allowed to promote specific
businesses, although the Gym & Swim is promoted by word of mouth by attendees
at these classes. Both companies hold classes at the Town Hall where attendees have
access to promotional literature for the Gym & Swim.
PH arrived at 10.20am.
Local Produce Market
KG explained that publicity for the market has recently been improved with four new
town centre banners and 12 new lamp post signs that will be put up across town and
taken down each month. These supplement the four stand alone signs used at the
main entrances into Chesham. The Twitter account has over 100 followers and the
Facebook page has 55 followers.
FW said that Better Chesham is looking to establish speciality markets on Saturdays.
KG said that she is meeting with Better Chesham, CDC and the Amersham &
Chesham Markets Co‐operative to discuss creating new markets.
General
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The bid to improve the town centre fingerposts has not been made a top priority for
the Bucks County Council delegated budget. If funds are not forthcoming from the
budget, it will be necessary to look at other sources of funding.
4.
Town Arch
A local produce market banner has been permanently erected on the arch. It was
agreed to investigate the feasibility of hanging a banner horizontally across the arch,
which would include the need to pay a staff member a retainer to be on call 24‐h‐a‐
day in line with Transport for Bucks’ requirements.
BR reported that the arch will be washed by the Parks department when the jubilee
bunting is erected.
5.
Town Centre LED Sign
The Elgiva Board of Management and Better Chesham are keen to progress the idea
of a sign to provide information on events, shows, promotions, shops, etc. A basic
monocolour sign will cost in the region of £15‐20,000. In addition to the need for
external funding, there will also be issues surrounding installation within a
conservation area, highways consent, planning, etc.
It was agreed to investigate whether the bus companies intend to install electronic
information boards to see if we could piggyback on their installations.
6.
Any Other Business
(i)
Service Review Document
The panel confirmed that they were happy with the direction that the review has
taken. BR and KG will bring together a document covering actions taken to date and
longer term projects, including timescales. FW suggested that marketing updates
should continue to be reported, either through emails or by report to a committee.
(ii)
Budgets
FW said that if the improved marketing efforts have seen an increase in income to
the extent that the service areas have come under budget, it would be good to have
the flexibility to reward the service area with funds that could be used for marketing
in its broadest sense. BR said that there was some precedent for this at the Elgiva,
providing the use of the money is signed off by committee. It was agreed to include
this as a recommendation within the final document.
(iii)
Kite Festival
It was agreed to investigate the feasibility of holding a kite festival, possibly in
Lowndes Park, similar to the Dunstable Kite Festival. FW will pass this suggestion on
to Better Chesham.
7.
Date of Next Meeting
The draft of the final document will be considered on the 7th June at 10am, with a
view to submitting the document to Policy and Resources committee on the 2nd July.
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The meeting closed at 10.45am.
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MARKETING AND CORPORATE PROMOTION REVIEW
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 7th June 2012 at Chesham Town Hall at
10.00 am.
PRESENT:
Cllr Patricia Cherrill (PC), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Fred Wilson (FW), Chesham Town Council Member
Cllr Roy Abraham (RA), Chesham Town Council Member
Bill Richards (BR), Town Clerk
Kathryn Graves (KG), Policy & Projects Officer
1.
Apologies
Apologies were received from Cllr Peter Hudson.
2.
Draft Service Review Document
PC thanked the officers for drafting the document. The panel then went through the
document page by page, during which officers provided updates on various actions
identified during the review. The draft document will be updated accordingly.
In looking at the budgets and expenditure, it was acknowledged that it has not been
possible to look at the amount of officer time spent on marketing, as this is not
recorded.
Within the final section “Conclusions and the Way Forward”, FW said it was
important to explain that marketing updates should continue to be reported so that
(i) the councillors are kept informed and (ii) continuation of work in this area is
encouraged.
The panel agreed to the inclusion of two further recommendations within the
document:
(i)
To actively promote Lowndes Park as a venue for hire. It was acknowledged
that the logistics of this would need to be investigated in more detail. PC expressed
her concerns over how this would be received by residents.
(ii)
To develop a marketing strategy for the town to help underpin the Council’s
existing marketing activities.
FW said that recommendation (ii) would provide clarity to officers about the
messages to be sent out about Chesham when carrying out marketing activities, such
as writing press releases and managing web sites. He suggested that the strategy
could be developed quickly through a small, facilitated workshop.
The officers will finalise the document with a view to submitting it to the Policy and
Resources Committee meeting of the 2nd July 2012.
The meeting closed at 11.05am.
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1.

INTRODUCTION

At the Policy and Resources Committee meeting of the 31st October 2011, Members
requested that a panel be set up to look at marketing of the Council’s services with a view to
boosting its income and making the public more generally aware of its services. The Council
was keen to emphasise that the review should not be as in‐depth or as detailed as a former
‘Best Value’ review, but rather make recommendations to improve the service generally.
The Review Panel has met on four occasions between December 2011 and June 2012 and
has consisted of the following personnel:
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦

Councillor Roy Abraham ‐ Chesham Town Council
Councillor Jane Bramwell ‐ Chesham Town Council
Councillor Patricia Cherrill ‐ Chesham Town Council
Councillor Peter Hudson ‐ Chesham Town Council
Councillor Fred Wilson ‐ Chesham Town Council
Bill Richards – Town Clerk, Chesham Town Council
Kathryn Graves – Policy & Projects Officer, Chesham Town Council

The panel has also been assisted by Mark Barnes, Elgiva Centre Manager; Mick Carling and
Trevor Pilling, Elgiva Board of Management; Danny Essex, Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Manager; Sue Hutcheson, Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim and Maria McGwynn,
Administration Manager.
While not all the Panel members have been able to attend all the meetings, the mixture of
Members, section heads and ‘Friends’ has played an important role in drawing together a
coherent plan to improve marketing across the Council in the panel’s opinion.

Corporate Marketing Review

3

Policy & Resources 2 July 2012
Appendix 4

2.

REMIT OF REVIEW

The panel identified three major areas for review: the Elgiva, Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
and the Town Hall. It was noted that Councillor Hudson was currently working with the
Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim to review their marketing arrangements and that
that the Elgiva Board of Management is also reviewing the Elgiva’s marketing strategy. It
was therefore suggested that these reviews should feed into the work of this panel in order
to avoid duplication. This review would be able to have input into the individual centres’
reviews, but would be carrying out a top‐level review to create a strategy for Chesham Town
Council as a whole.
It was also accepted that it is important that the review did not become an exercise in
micro‐managing, but that the panel should be able to question and constructively challenge
the current marketing arrangements.
Other specific areas such as use of the Council’s arch and ‘virtual’ mediums for general
promotions such as social media sites were also agreed to be considered.
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3.

CURRENT MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL OPERATIONS

1.
Town Hall
The Town Hall has a small advertising budget of £200. This year, the Administration
Manager has focused on promotion of the Lowndes Suite as a wedding venue due to the
decline in bookings in recent years. £190 was spent on placing a 1/8th advert in “Celebrating
Buckinghamshire”, which is a glossy brochure supplied to all prospective brides and grooms
who have contacted the Bucks Registry Offices.
£375 was spent on a ½ page advert for the Town Hall in the Town Guide, as a good‐will
gesture to support the production of the Town Guide.
All other promotion is conducted in‐house, in the form of leaflets and posters, which are
displayed in the Town Hall and on the Council’s notice boards. The Town Hall facilities are
detailed on the Town Council web site.
2.
Elgiva
(a)
School book bags
Agreements made with surrounding schools for flyers for selected children’s shows to go
home via the school bag system. This is to be expanded to schools in Hemel Hempstead,
particularly where we already have a relationship via panto group bookings. Postage costs
will continue to be carefully monitored and flyers are delivered by hand where appropriate.
Nursery schools will now be included where appropriate.
(b)
Leaflet displays
Literature holders have been purchased at low cost and supplies of “What’s On” guides
distributed to the shops that have agreed to accept them. A list is held to ensure that they
are kept up to date. This will be regularly reviewed.
(c)
Library displays
Staff have started utilising display space free of charge in Chesham Library. So far this has
been generally used to promote children’s shows and cinema but can be used to promote
other forthcoming events and will be useful for panto. Officers will discuss with Amersham
Library if a similar display space is available.
(d)
General box office marketing
Full use of the marketing package to promote forthcoming shows. Cinema listings regularly
produced; to be included again in the Bucks Examiner listings. New poster displays units
purchased. Publicity material kept up to date on displays through the town. Shows/films
advertised in the foyer. Stewards requested to hand out flyers after performances. Generic
banner installed on display outside the theatre to advertise cinema, café, etc. Excellent
relationship restored with local press with significantly more coverage now being given.
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Theatre web site kept up to date; income regularly in excess of 30% seen from on line
bookings.
(e)
Town Hall
A large display area is offered to The Elgiva in the Town Hall Reception area.
(f)
External web sites
Providing weekly updates of Elgiva information to various web sites, including Ents 24,
Netmums, Info@berko, etc.
(g)
Web Site
Web site hosting, service agreement and domain name cost £54.97 per year. Staff time for
maintaining the web site is not recorded.
(h)
What’s On guides
Three annual issues of 156,000 copies. Costs cover design, print, Royal Mail door to door,
postage for other mailing list. Revenue realized for advertising in all copies to offset costs.
This equates to 17.9p per brochure.
(i)
Panto advertising
The panto has its own budget for advertising which is outlined later in the report.
3.
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim
Advertising for the Gym & Swim centre is based upon the placement of adverts and the
production of timetables and flyers. Advertising is largely organised by a volunteer from the
Friends of Chesham Moor Gym & Swim. The centre has its own web site, recently
redesigned, which is managed in‐house with the help of the web designer.
4.
Cemetery
There is no active marketing of the Cemetery, although details regarding the procedure for
interments and fitting headstones are provided on the Town Council web site. A leaflet is
available from the Town Hall by request.
5.
Lowndes Park
A marketing strategy for Lowndes Park was devised in 2011, acknowledging that the park
has no marketing budget and limited staff resources. The marketing of the park is currently
largely dependent on an in‐house leaflet and map and information on the Town Council web
site. The Friends of Lowndes Park also contribute to the promotion of the park through their
activities and web site www.lowndespark.org.uk.
There is now the potential to market the park as a venue for hire now that the Council has
set a new hire fee for the park.
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The Bands in the Park concert season has its own small marketing budget of £100, which is
spent on the production of flyers and posters.
6.
Football Pitches
There is no active marketing of the football pitches. Information is provided within the Town
Guide each year and provided on the Town Council web site.
7.
Town Council Publications
(a)
Town Crier
The Town Crier is a four‐page A4 insert into the biannual Town Talk magazine, which is
delivered door‐to‐door in Chesham and is also available from the Town Hall and the Library.
Each issue costs the Council £790. A PDF is made available on the Town Council web site.
(b)
Council Newsletter
The Council Newsletter is produced biannually, although the schedule has been irregular
and the delivery has been patchy, with the main method of distribution being collection
from the Town Hall. A PDF is made available from the Town Council web site. Discussions
have been held with the publisher to improve distribution and timeliness of publication.
(c)
Town Guide
The Town Guide is a c.80‐page glossy A5 publication, produced in conjunction with the
Chesham Chamber of Trade and Commerce by BPC/Exclusive Magazines. Produced
annually, with a variable publication date, the guide is distributed door‐to‐door in Chesham
and contains editorial information about the Town Council’s services and facilities. The
Town Guide is produced free‐of‐charge, although historically we have purchased a half‐page
advert to support the publication.
(d)
yourChesham
Each month the Town Council provides a c.550 word article on Council matters for this
monthly publication, which is delivered free‐of‐charge throughout Chesham and the
surrounding villages and is also available online.
8.
Town Council Web Site
The Town Council web site contains information on all the Town Council services and
facilities, with links to the Elgiva and Chesham Moor Gym & Swim web sites.
Over the last 6 months, the web site has received 15,355 visits, which averages out at 2,559
visits per month. The costs for the web site are as follows:
Hosting ‐ £400 per year
Support Contract ‐ £100 per year
Domain name registration ‐ £75 every two years
We are in a three year contract with E‐Mango, which expires in 2013.
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9.
Local Produce Market
The majority of advertising for the local produce market is achieved free of charge through
local web sites, the Town Council web site and in‐house produced flyers and posters. All
other activities that have costs associated with them, e.g. the re‐usable banners and signs,
are paid for out of the pitch fees collected from the market traders. The organisers are
currently looking to develop an independent web site for the market.
Budgets and Expenditure
The main expenditure for the current year is outlined below and split between departments.
However, there is some expenditure on marketing activities that is not recorded and
allocated to marketing, e.g. cost of in‐house photocopying of flyers, posters, some staff time
on marketing activities, staff time on web site maintenance, some postage costs, etc.
Civic
Budget 2011/12 = £2,070
Expenditure:
Newsletters
£1,580
Town Guide Advert
£375
Town Hall
Budget 2011/12 = £200
Web budget = £500
Expenditure:
Advert
£190
Web
£500
Pantomime
Budget 2011/12 = £5,100
Expenditure:
Primary Times
Bucks Examiner Adverts
Banners
Car magnets
Flyers/Posters
Press night

£75
£540
£295
£85
£800
£1,000

Elgiva
Budget 2011/12 = £25,625
Postage budget = £8,700
Expenditure:
Web site
What’s On
What’s On delivery

£54.97
£23,635
£8,700
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Gym & Swim
Budget 2011/12 = £5,500
Expenditure:
Adverts
Timetables & price lists
Posters and flyers

£1,146.50
£1,284
£529

Local Produce Market
No formal budget.
Expenditure:
12 signs & 4 banners

£330

Bands in the Park
Budget 2011/12 = £100
Expenditure:
Flyers

£115
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4.

CHALLENGING THE CURRENT SERVICE

At the panel meeting held on the 9th February 2012, the service heads of the Elgiva,
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim and the Town Hall, together with representatives from Friends
group who assisted with marketing, were asked to give presentations on their existing
marketing initiatives and challenged as to whether these could be improved or indeed were
necessary.
Town Hall
The Administration Manager explained that the marketing objectives were defined as:
• ensuring that all Chesham people are aware of the services that are offered
• maximising the use of the Town Hall (particularly weekends and weddings)
• covering the running costs
• reducing the ‘subsidy’
One of the panel members questioned why the Town Council has a Town Hall as the level of
use for council purposes is limited and the building costs money to run. The panel member
suggested that an alternative would be to sell the Town Hall and rent office space, whilst
holding Council/Committee meetings at venues around the town. Part of this line of
reasoning also requires us to consider whether the Council should be providing subsidised
facilities for community groups as it currently does through its room hire. The panel agreed
this was a legitimate question but one that the Town Council, rather than the panel should
be addressing and making recommendations upon.
In respect to the cost of room hire, the Administration Manager stated that the hire fees
were competitive with other comparable venues in town, particularly when the 25%
discount for block bookings was claimed. However not all the panel agreed.
In order to maximise the number of bookings, the Administration Manager is overseeing the
standard of maintenance of the Town Hall with on‐going work to replace the carpets, decor
and furniture. Wi‐fi has been introduced to the Town Hall to facilitate conference and
business bookings at a one‐off cost of £200.
Future plans for advertising and increasing revenue include the addition of adverts to the
Town Council web site following a site re‐design, social networking, featuring the regular
bookings at the Town Hall in a ‘What’s On’ section of the Town Council web site and
creating a leaflet targeting small businesses. The Administration Manager has included a
‘Where did you hear about us?’ section on the booking form to find out about what
advertising methods are working. Currently the most common response to this question is
‘word of mouth’.

Corporate Marketing Review

10

Policy & Resources 2 July 2012
Appendix 4

The Elgiva
The Theatre Manager reported that it has a comparatively large marketing budget, which is
mainly spent on the production of 53,000 ‘What’s On’ guides produced three times a year.
47,000 of these are sent by Royal Mail to 16 postcodes; reports indicate that the Elgiva gets
the most uptake for shows from these areas. The cost for the ‘What’s On’ is 17.4 p per
brochure. The ‘What’s On’ is also available on www.elgiva.com. Paper ‘What’s On’s are
delivered to all the local community centres.
The panel questioned whether it was necessary to have such a wide distribution and
whether it was necessary to have three editions per year when electronic marketing was
becoming more prevalent. The Manager replied that while advertising through e‐mails was
undoubtedly the way forward, he pointed out that the Elgiva holds 28,851 customer client
cards, but only circa 8,000 email addresses, which have taken a long time to collate.
Therefore, it will be a few years before it will be possible to email out the brochure. He
further advised that he has considered reducing the number of ‘What’s On’ per year to two,
but it is not possible to programme that far ahead to accurately include all the shows and
films in the guides.
Questioned by the panel on advertising revenue to reduce costs, the Manager reported that
he has looked at increasing the amount of advertising in the brochure, but selling
advertising is very difficult in the present economic climate. Also, increasing the number of
pages will increase the brochure weight which could increase delivery costs. He reported he
has decided against putting premium adverts in between the first page and the shows in the
past, but this is open for discussion.
The panel then asked about progress with other forms of advertising. It was reported that
Mick Carling, who has a professional marketing and promotions background, has offered to
help with social networking. The former editor of the Bucks Examiner is also volunteering an
hour a week to help with social media in relation to Twitter. The Manager further advised
that email marketing is good for targeting specific shows, but there is a cost associated with
this form of marketing, which he is looking at. He also maintains a separate email list for
promoting films. SMS marketing costs 8p per text, so this is not used. The web site is proving
popular with circa 30% of bookings now made online. It is planned to start taking paid
advertising on the web site. Elgiva shows are also promoted on a number of external web
sites.
One of the panel members stated that he did not find the web site user friendly for finding
out what shows are on and suggested that the navigation could be improved. It was also
recommended getting volunteers who have not used the site before to look round the site
and provide feedback.
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In regard to the media, the Elgiva has a good relationship with the Bucks Examiner, who is
the pantomime sponsor. The Manager usually gets show adverts for free in the What’s On
section of the paper. The coverage in the Bucks Free Press is considered poor, but good in
the Hemel Gazette.
The Manager then advised on other advertising as follows:
•

Children’s shows and the pantomime are promoted to primary schools.

•

The Elgiva has a ticket and restaurant deal with the Chesham Tandoori.

•

There is exit targeting with leaflets after shows.

•

The banners outside the Elgiva are only useful during the day and will require lighting
to make them visible at night.

•

Future plans include the possible installation of an LED sign in the town centre,
increasing email marketing, the development of a loyalty scheme, chargeable school
tours of the theatre and promoting the Elgiva as a film and TV location.

Having noted that data from the booking system shows that the behaviour of customers is
changing, with a tendency towards last minute purchases, a panel member suggested that
this could be capitalised upon by providing content for ‘YourChesham’, which goes door‐to‐
door for free each month.
It was also suggested that the pool’s swimming timetable could be sent out with the Elgiva’s
material.
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Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre
Councillor Hudson explained that the centre is now in its first year of having a structured
marketing plan. The Friends committee are doing the bulk of the advertising, PR and day‐to‐
day marketing tasks. The marketing plan aims to increase general awareness of the centre,
to increase footfall and to develop a customer relationship database with regular
communications to current and potential users.
The web site has been reviewed to improve functionality and search visibility. There is a lot
of visitor traffic, with 10,500 visitors between April and August. The marketing plan is
focusing on email marketing with regular email alerts and links to web sites. A database of
email addresses is being built up, with circa 800 addresses at present. Facebook and Twitter
are also being used.
The Friends will focus on a small number of key events or days over the next year to
maximise promotion for the pool.
A basic marketing kit will be put together, including leaflets, posters and car stickers.
The panel then enquired about promotion of the gym. The Manager explained that they are
developing unique selling points to make them stand out from other gyms locally, including
new marketing deals such as the 10‐session gym card. Wi‐fi has been installed to encourage
people to stay at the centre for longer and increase their secondary spend.
The centre is developing links with the Bagnall Centre in Waterside, which will cater for
people with low mobility, who will ultimately move on to regular gyms.
One of the panel members suggested that local slimming groups could be targeted with
special promotions.
The panel then briefly discussed other corporate and niche marketing opportunities such as
the town arch and town centre LED sign and requested that they also be included in an
action plan along with promotion of the Local Produce Market run jointly with Transition
Town Chesham.
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5.

THE ACTION PLAN

The Panel, together with the service managers and associated ‘Friends’ have put forward a
number of suggestions for an action plan designed to lead to improvement to both general
and specific service marketing and income generation.
General
PROPOSAL
Establish meetings
between the people
responsible for marketing
the three facilities to
ensure cross‐promotion
and sharing of ideas
Consider installation of a
town centre LED sign

Improve town arch and its
uses for publicity

RECOMMEND FOR
ADOPTION?
YES

Develop a marketing
strategy for the town.

Corporate Marketing Review

July 2012 onwards twice yearly.

To be determined. Initial estimates
suggest £15‐20k, so external funding
will be required. It was agreed that a
local bus company be approached to
see if some joint system can be
implemented.

Initial discussions with possible
supplier have commenced and
enquiries made with the Public
Transport section of Bucks
County Council.

YES ‐ A local produce market banner
has been permanently erected on the
arch. It was agreed to investigate the
feasibility of hanging a banner
horizontally across the arch, which
would include the need to pay a staff
member a retainer to be on call 24‐h‐
a‐day in line with Transport for Bucks’
requirements.

Arch to be cleaned early June
2012.

The arch will be washed by the Parks
department when the jubilee bunting
is erected.
Refresh Council’s web site
as current design over 4
years old.

TIMETABLE

Transport for Bucks have been
asked for feasibility and safety
requirements for permanent
banners erected across the arch.

The arch was cleaned in June
2012.
YES – with possible paid advertising.
Discussions started with
Council’s web site company, to
gain some examples of current
town council web site designs.
YES – achieve via a short, facilitated From August 2012.
workshop using local expertise.
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The Elgiva
PROPOSAL
Look at a web site redesign

Start paid advertising on
www.elgiva.com

RECOMMEND FOR
ADOPTION?
YES

YES

Review how frequently the YES
What’s On & other literature are
delivered to town centre outlets
Installation of lighting for YES – subject to costs
external banners

Change the shape of the
banners and invest in a large
sign to emphasise the theatre,
film & cafe elements of the
facility.
Provide monthly content for
‘YourChesham’
Theatre & restaurant deal to be
extended to other restaurants in
town.
The development of a loyalty
scheme

YES – monies in budget

Promotion of the Elgiva as a film
and TV location
Chargeable school and other
group tours of the theatre

YES

Corporate Marketing Review

YES

TIMETABLE
The Manager has begun the
process with help from Elgiva
Board member
A free advert for Chesham Moor
Gym & Swim has been created
for the web site as an example
for potential advertisers.
‘What’s On’ and other literature
is now being delivered round
the town on a weekly basis.
The Manager hoping to have
something in place before clocks
go back in Autumn 2012 subject
to costs.
New generic banner now on
display.

The Manager to set up meeting
with editor in next two months.
The Manager to begin
discussions with other
restaurants .
Proposed ‘Elgiva Elite’ package
to be consulted on Elgiva Board
June 2012 .
To begin with help from Elgiva
Board ‐ Autumn 2012 .
Early 2013.

YES

YES

YES
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Chesham Moor Gym and Swim Centre
PROPOSAL

RECOMMEND FOR
ADOPTION?
Investigate wi‐fi installation for YES
public/business use
Develop links with Slimming
World/Weight Watchers

A basic marketing kit to be put
together, including leaflets,
posters and car stickers
Focus by Friends on a small
number of key events or days
over the next year to maximise
promotion for the pool.

TIMETABLE
Installed April 2012.

NO ‐ Slimming World and
Weight Watchers are not
allowed to promote specific
businesses, although the Gym
& Swim is promoted by word
of mouth by attendees at these
classes.
YES
On‐going.

YES

Friends organised very
successful Centenary Event at
centre in May.

Town Hall
PROPOSAL

RECOMMEND FOR
ADOPTION?
NO – such a decision to be
made by Council as a whole.

Sell the Town Hall and rent
office space, whilst holding
Council/Committee meetings at
venues around the town thus
negating need to market venue
Development of a “What’s On at YES
the Town Hall” page on
www.chesham.gov.uk
Inclusion of “Where did you
YES
hear about us?” section on the
Town Hall booking form
Investigate the addition of
YES
adverts to the Town Council
web site

Initiated April 2012.

Completed April 2012.

Currently being investigated
though agreed web site should
be re‐designed first (see general
marketing above).
Autumn 2012.

Creation of a banner advert for YES
the Town Hall on the Local
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Chesham web site
Investigate the development of NO ‐ as the Council could not
a discounted wedding package be seen to be favouring certain
with local service providers
businesses. However, it was
suggested that Town Hall could
create a brochure of its
wedding services and invite
local providers to include offers
and adverts. The fact that the
premises’ current licence for
civil ceremonies ends in 2013
may have a bearing on the
decision to progress this.
Provide daily posts on Twitter YES – The Facebook account Initiated May 2012.
and Facebook of the day’s has 27 followers and the
activities at the Town Hall.
Twitter account has 284
followers.

Local Produce Market
PROPOSAL
Improve signage.

Open designated Twitter and
Facebook pages

Develop a web site for Chesham
Local Produce Market

Corporate Marketing Review

RECOMMEND FOR
ADOPTION ?
YES ‐ four new town centre
banners and 12 new lamp post
signs that will be put up across
town and taken down each
month have been
commissioned. These
supplement the four stand
alone signs used at the main
entrances into Chesham
YES ‐ The Twitter account
currently has 164 followers and
the Facebook page has 59
followers.
YES
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6.

CONCLUSIONS AND THE WAY FORWARD

The panel confirmed that they were happy with the direction that the review has taken and
agreed that this document be presented to the Policy and Resources Committee as a
working document with cross party support. However it was also agreed that marketing
updates should continue to be reported, either through emails or by report to a committee.
The updates will enable councillors to be kept regularly informed as well as encouraging
continued activities in this area.
The panel was of the view that if the improved marketing efforts have seen an increase in
income to the extent that the service areas have come under budget, it would be good to
have the flexibility to reward the service area with funds that could be used for marketing in
its broadest sense. It was noted that there was some precedent for this at the Elgiva when
the Elgiva Board of Management had been allowed to ring‐fence monies, provided the use
of the money is signed off by the Policy and Resources Committee. It was agreed to include
this as a recommendation within the final document.
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Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 13 – GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE
Reporting Officer:

Bill Richards (01494 583824)

Summary
1.

To consider applying for the General Power of Competence.
Background Information

2.

At the Policy and Resources Committee of the 31st October 2011 it was resolved that ‘the
Council decides not to re-apply for the Power of Well-Being but wait for the General Power of
Competence.’ (Min No 42).
Financial Implications

3.

None pertaining to this report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

The General Power of Competence would potentially help further all the Council’s strategic
objectives.
Equality Act Implications

5.

None pertaining to this report
Detailed Consideration

6.

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides for a new General Power of Competence for
councils in England. The General Power replaces the Power of Well-being provided under section
2 of the Local Government Act 2000. The General Power is available to parish and town councils
which meet conditions of eligibility for the exercise of the power as set out in the Parish Councils
(General Power of Competence) (Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012.

7.

Section 1 of the Act says that a local authority has power to do anything that individuals
generally may do.

8.

A ‘local authority’ includes principal councils in England and ‘eligible parish councils’, but not
local authorities in Wales.

9.

An ‘individual’ means an individual with full capacity, i.e. a sane adult.

10.

The power includes the power to do an act anywhere in the United Kingdom or elsewhere; and the
power to do it for a commercial purpose or otherwise for a charge, or without charge; and the
power to do it for, or otherwise than for, the benefit of the authority, its area or persons resident or
present in its area.

11.

It is not limited by the existence of any other power of the authority which (to any extent)
overlaps the general power nor is any such other power limited by the existence of the general
power. There are however boundaries to the general power and limits on charging and on doing
things for a commercial purpose.

12.

To qualify as an “eligible parish council”, a parish council in England must meet conditions
prescribed by the Secretary of State in the Parish Councils (General Power of Competence)
(Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012. This Order says that, to be eligible to use the General Power
of Competence, parish councils must meet the following conditions:
1. The council has resolved at a meeting of the council and each subsequent relevant
annual meeting that it meets the conditions in paragraph 2 below.
2.- (1) At the time a resolution under paragraph 1 is passed–
(a) the number of members of the council that have been declared to be elected, whether
at ordinary elections or at a by-election, is equal to or greater than two-thirds of the
total number of members of the council;1
(b) the clerk to the parish council holds(i) the Certificate in Local Council Administration;
(ii) the Certificate of Higher Education in Local Policy;
(iii) the Certificate of Higher Education in Local Council Administration; or
(iv) the first level of the foundation degree in Community Engagement and
Governance awarded by the University of Gloucestershire or its successor
qualifications; and
(c) the clerk to the parish council has completed the relevant training, unless such
training was required for the purpose of obtaining a certificate of a description
mentioned in paragraph (b).
(2) For the purposes of this paragraph “relevant training” means training—
(a) in the exercise of the general power;
(b) provided in accordance with the national training strategy for parish councils
adopted by the National Association of Local Councils and Commission for Rural
Communities, as revised from time to time.

13. If a parish council resolves that that it meets the prescribed conditions, it shall be an eligible
parish council for the duration of the eligibility period, i.e. it shall be eligible to use the General
Power from the time that the resolution is passed until the day of the next annual meeting of that
parish council (held after the resolution is passed) that takes place in a year of ordinary elections
(the ‘relevant annual meeting’).
14. If, at the relevant annual meeting, the parish council does not pass a (further) resolution that it
meets these eligibility criteria, it ceases to be an eligible parish council, but a transitional provision

specifies that the council shall continue to be an eligible parish council for the purpose of
completing any activity undertaken in the exercise of the general power but not completed before
of the day of that meeting.
15. The resolution that the council meets the prescribed conditions cannot be delegated to a committee
or sub-committee.
16.

Your Clerk already obtained the Certificate in Local Council Administration (CiLCA). Clerks who
already hold CiLCA and received their training in the power of well-being rather than in the new
General Power of Competence must complete the new CiLCA section 7 module and sit the
assessment to meet this condition. Your Clerk has attended the training the official training session
on this on the 21st June 2012 and will be submitting his section 7 module shortly afterwards. On
the assumption that he passes this, then it is recommended that the Council resolves to obtain the
General Power of Competence at the first available meeting.

Recommendation
That, subject to the Clerk obtaining the necessary qualification, the Council
pass a resolution at the first appropriate meeting seeking the General Power
of Competence.

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 14 – LOCALISING SUPPORT
FOR COUNCIL TAX
Reporting Officers: Steve Pearson (01494 583825)
Summary
1.

To consider the implications of the new ‘Local Council Tax Support Scheme’
proposals to be introduced in 2013/14.
Background Information

2.

The Council sets its precept each year and Chesham residents pay for this, via
their Council tax according to a Council Tax base.
Financial Implications

3.

As detailed within the report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

Accords with strategic objective 1 – ‘To enable residents to enjoy high-quality
social, recreational, and cultural facilities within the town and to seek the
continuing improvement and development of these facilities in accordance with
the desires expressed by the residents.’
Equality Act Implications

5.

Billing Councils will be responsible for introducing new local benefits although
Regulations will prescribe certain elements to protect pensioners and vulnerable
groups.
Detailed Consideration

6.

Attached to this report is a summary of the new ‘Local Council Tax Support
Scheme’ prepared by the Society of Local Council Clerks (SLCC).

7.

As indicated in the SLCC report, due to changes at the Department of Works and
Pensions relating to benefits and also the receipt of other income from
Government by the billing authority (Chiltern District Council in the Town
Council’s case), the effect will be to reduce the council tax base. The Government
department will make funding (based on 90% of the forecast council tax benefit
expenditure for the year) available to ‘billing and major precepting authorities.’
This funding will have the effect of reducing the authority’s tax requirement and
help off-set the reduction in council tax base. It does not appear from the report
nor from the discussion between NALC and Government officials that this flow
of money will necessarily reach the town and parish council sector. The

Government also identifies that the Business Rates retention scheme will create
growth incentive for the principal authorities and this should offset the reduction
in council tax base. At the present time, there is no indication that any of this
funding either will be distributed to town and parish councils.
8.

The SLCC report indicates a reduction in Band D equivalent numbers by 10%
can be expected as a result of the changes, although this will vary, dependant on
the property base and the number of persons receiving Council tax benefit. It may
be that the local Parish and Town Councils can be kept out of the equation if the
District Council uses the Council tax base before it is reduced, to reflect the
impact of the new scheme and this may be the most beneficial formula for
Chesham residents. On the downside, there is a concern for this Council that the
figure of 10% reduction in Band D is an average and could be more acutely seen
in smaller areas (i.e. town and parish councils) and, in addition, it is likely to be
more acute in areas where there are fewer higher value properties and more lower
value properties. In Chesham, the mix of housing places most of the housing is
Band D and below, which would suggest the effects could be more acute for this
Council.

9.

A meeting of Local Council Clerks is to be held with officers of the Chiltern
District Council to discuss the new proposals on the 9th July.

10.

The detailed consultation document is available on request to the Town Clerk or
via the link:
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/2146644

11.

The current consultation only asks one question ‘Do you agree that floors and
ceilings should be created to ensure that no local authority faces a greater than
specified revenue budget pressure?’ It would seem sensible to defer a response
until after your officers have attended the meeting on the 9th July with the District
Council and as the deadline for a response is the 12th July that any response be
delegated to the Town Clerk and Chairman of this Committee.

12.

A further report will be made to this Committee following the 9th July meeting.

Recommendations
1. That a further report be brought back after the meeting with
Chiltern District Council on the 9th July 2012.
2. That the Town Clerk and Chairman of the Policy & Resources
Committee be delegated to respond to the consultation.

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 15 – SMOKE-FREE POLICY
REVIEW
Reporting Officers: Kathryn Graves (01494 583798)
Summary
1.

To review the Council’s Smoke-Free Policy.
Background Information

2.

Smoke-free legislation from the Health Act 2006 came into force on 1 July 2007
and the Council adopted a Smoke-Free Policy on the 18 June 2007.

3.

The Council’s policies are reviewed on a four-year cycle, making the Smoke-Free
Policy due for review.
Financial Implications

4.

None pertaining to this report.
Strategic Objectives

5.

None pertaining to this report.
Equality Act Implications

6.

None pertaining to this report.
Detailed Consideration

7.

The revised policy is attached for Members’ consideration. Since the policy was
introduced there has only been one incident in which a member of the public was
believed to have been smoking in one of the Council’s buildings. In light of this
experience, the procedure in the policy has been clarified to include the
information that would be required by Chiltern District Council to begin the
procedure to issue a fixed penalty notice.

Recommendations
That the Committee adopts the revised Smoke-Free Policy, subject to
any amendments it wishes to make.

Policy and Resources 2nd July 2012
Appendix One

CHESHAM TOWN COUNCIL
SMOKE FREE POLICY

STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT
Exposure to second‐hand smoke increases the risk of lung cancer, heart disease and
other serious illnesses. Chesham Town Council is committed to protecting all
employees, Members, customers, contractors and visitors from exposure to second‐
hand smoke.

POLICY COVERAGE
This policy applies to all employees, Members, customers, contractors and visitors to
all of the Council’s premises and vehicles. The law applies to anything that can be
smoked, including cigarettes, pipes (including water pipes such as shisha and hookah
pipes), cigars and herbal cigarettes.

LEGISLATION
The Health Act 2006 was implemented in England on 1 July 2007. It is now a criminal
offence to smoke in virtually all enclosed public places, workplaces and in public and
work vehicles. Managers of smoke‐free premises and vehicles have legal
responsibilities to prevent smoking and to ensure that ‘no smoking’ signs are
displayed as required by this law.
The legislation will be enforced through fixed penalty notices which are issued by
Chiltern District Council. Details of the penalty notices and maximum fines for each
offence are set out on the following page.

Chesham Town Council
Smoke Free Policy V. 2
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Offence

Who is liable?

Smoking in a
smoke‐free place

Anyone smoking
in a smoke‐free £30
place
Anyone who
manages or
£150
occupies the
smoke‐free
premises or
vehicle
Anyone who
manages or
N/A
controls the
smoke‐free
premises or
vehicle

Failure to display
required no‐
smoking signs

Failure to prevent
smoking in a
smoke‐free place

Fixed
Penalty
Notice
(if paid in 15
days)

Fixed
Penalty
Notice
(if paid in 29
days)

Court
awarded
fine

£50

Up to £200

£200

Up to
£1000

N/A

Up to
£2500

POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Chesham Town Council that all our workplace buildings are smoke‐
free, and all employees have the right to work in a smoke‐free environment.
Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed and substantially enclosed premises in the
workplace. This includes council vehicles.
Appropriate ‘no smoking’ signs will be clearly displayed at the entrances to and
within the premises, and in all smoke‐free vehicles, making everybody who uses
them aware that they are legally required to be smoke‐free.
Overall responsibility for policy implementation rests with the Town Clerk, but
responsibilities are delegated to those managers with responsibilities for individual
buildings and vehicles, including:
Town Hall – Administration Manager
Depot buildings, vehicles and sports pavilions – Parks and Premises Manager
The Elgiva – Elgiva Manager
Chesham Moor Gym & Swim – Pool Manager
However, all staff are obliged to adhere to and support the implementation of the
policy.

Chesham Town Council
Smoke Free Policy V. 2
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In the event that someone does smoke in a smoke‐free environment, the below
procedure will be followed:
•

the person’s attention will be drawn to the no‐smoking signs and they
will be requested to stop smoking or go outside
it will be pointed out that the person is committing a criminal offence
by smoking in a smoke‐free premises or vehicle
the person will be informed that Council employees have a
responsibility to prevent smoking on Council premises and in Council
vehicles and that both the person and the employees could receive a
fine if smoking is not prevented
in the event that the a member of the public refuses to stop smoking,
a member of staff will request the person’s name and address in
order to report the incident to Chiltern District Council

•
•

•

Disciplinary procedures will be followed for members of staff who do not comply
with this policy. Those who do not comply with the smoke‐free legislation may also
be liable to a fixed penalty fine and possible criminal prosecution.
The NHS offers a range of free services to help people to stop smoking. Any
employees wishing to give up smoking will, upon request, be signposted to these
resources.

POLICY REVIEW
Chesham Town Council is committed to reviewing its policies and making
improvements where possible.

Adopted:

Chesham Town Council
Smoke Free Policy V. 2
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Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee
on Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 16 - INTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT
Reporting Officer:

Steve Pearson

(01494 583825)

Summary
1.

To consider the internal auditor’s report.
Background Information

2.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 state that ‘a relevant body shall maintain an
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its
systems of internal control in accordance with the proper internal audit practices’.
Financial Implications

3.

The internal audit costs for 2011/12 are budgeted at £1,950.
Strategic Objectives

4.

None pertaining to this report.
Equality Act Implications

5.

None pertaining to this report.
Detailed Consideration

6.

A copy of the internal auditor’s final report on the 2011/12 financial year is attached and
officers are pleased to report that no major issues have been identified warranting formal
comment.

7.

South East Employers have now drafted new employment contracts and work on this is
still progressing.

Recommendation
That the report is noted.

Bill Richards
Town Clerk

Chesham Town Council
Internal Audit Report 2011-12 (Final)

Prepared by Alistair Morrison

Stuart J Pollard
Director
Auditing Solutions Ltd

Background and Scope
The Accounts and Audit Regulations introduced from 1st April 2001 require all Town
and Parish Councils to implement an independent internal audit examination of their
Accounts and accounting processes annually. The Council has complied with the
requirements in terms of independence from the Council decision making process
appointing Auditing Solutions Ltd to provide the function to the Council, following the
retirement of their former appointed contractor.
This report sets out those areas examined during the course of our visits during 2011-12,
which took place on 26th and 27th October 2011, and on 8th February and 6th June 2012.

Internal Audit Approach
In undertaking programme of review work this year, we have examined the Council’s
fundamental central financial control and corporate governance functions in order to
provide assurance to members and electors that the systems continue to operate in
accordance with best practice and approved Council procedures: we have also continued
to have regard to the materiality of transactions and their susceptibility to potential
misrecording or misrepresentation in the year-end Statement of Accounts.
As in previous years, we have assessed the risks associated with each financial system,
based on previous experience of the extent of potential for those risks coming to
fruition. That assessment has been undertaken in conjunction with the update of our
analysis of income and expenditure levels based on transactions in 2011-12.
The Council was previously subject to a full external “Code” audit with on site reviews
undertaken by the external audit contractor appointed by the Audit Commission:
following the change in legislation, the Council can now elect to be subject to the
“limited assurance” audit regime that requires completion of a reduced format Statement
of Accounts and off site certification by the appointed external auditor.
We consider it neither essential, nor cost effective, to examine every financial system
annually. Consequently, we have prepared, in conjunction with the Council’s RFO, a
five-year strategic plan which targets each system for review at least once during the
period or, where the risk level is assessed as higher, systems have been designated as
requiring more frequent review. As a result of the above legislative change, we are
required to complete a certificate at Section 4 of the Annual Return confirming, or
otherwise, the soundness of the Council’s financial controls in ten separate areas, not all
of which would have been subject to annual review through the agreed strategic plan.
We have again adjusted our approach at this year’s final visit to ensure that we may
complete the certificate appropriately for the current year.

Overall Conclusion
We are pleased to conclude that, in the areas examined this year, the Council continues
to have effective systems in place to ensure that transactions are free from material
misstatement and are consistent with the required detail for the Statement of Accounts
and Section 1 of the Annual Return for 2011-12.
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Detailed Report
Review of Accounting Arrangements & Bank reconciliations
Our objective here is to ensure that the accounting records are being maintained
accurately and currently and that no anomalous entries appear in cashbooks or financial
ledgers. To that end, we have: ¾ Ensured that the current trading ledgers remained in balance in the Omega
software throughout the financial year;
¾ Checked to ensure that a comprehensive, meaningful and appropriate nominal
coding schedule, together with cost centres is in place;
¾ Obtained a full copy of the Statements of Accounts for 2010-11, checking the
closing balances with the Opening balance entries in 2011-12 and have found
them to be in order;
¾ Checked and agreed detail of four months’ transactions on both cashbook
accounts, covering April, August and December 2011 and March 2012;
¾ Verified inter-account transfers between the two accounts for the same four
months; and
¾ Checked and agreed detail on periodic bank reconciliations as at 30th April, 31st
August and December, plus 31st March 2012 to ensure that there are no longstanding uncleared entries or other anomalous detail contained therein.
Conclusions
We are pleased to again record that no issues have been identified in this area
warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Corporate Governance
Our objective is to ensure that the Council has robust corporate governance
documentation and processes in place, that Council and Committee meetings are
conducted in accordance with the adopted Standing Orders and that no actions of a
potentially unlawful nature have been or are being considered for implementation. We
have therefore undertaken the following work in this area: ¾ The full Town Council and all its Standing Committee minutes (with the
exception of Development Control) have been examined to ensure that no issues
affecting the Council’s financial stability either in the short, medium or long term
exist, also that no legal issues are in existence whereby the Council may either be
considering or have taken decisions that might result in ultra vires expenditure
being incurred;
¾ We have noted that the Standing Orders and Financial Regulations were reviewed
and re-adopted by the Policy & Finance Committee on 13th June 2011 with some
minor amendments to accord with the national time table for Closing the Annual
Accounts and to merge the approval of Annual Subscriptions with Budget
Preparation; and
Chesham TC: 2011-12 (Final update)
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¾ We have also been pleased to note that the Council has produced substantial
written policies and procedures across a wide range of its working practices such
as Health & Safety, Complaints, Grievance, IT Strategy and so on: examination of
the current year’s minutes indicate that this work has continued in areas such as
Play Area provision, Whistle Blowing, Early Retirements, Information
Technology and Performance Indicators.
Conclusions
No significant issues have been identified in this area of our review process.

Review of Expenditure
Our aim here is to ensure that: ¾ Council resources are released in accordance with the Council’s approved
procedures and budgets;
¾ Payments are supported by appropriate documentation, either in the form of an
original trade invoice or other appropriate form of document confirming the
payment as due and/or an acknowledgement of receipt, where no other form of
invoice is available;
¾ An official order has been raised for all purchases and service delivery where
one would be expected;
¾ All discounts due on goods and services supplied are identified and appropriate
action taken to secure the discount;
¾ The correct expense codes have been applied to invoices when processed; and
¾ VAT has been appropriately identified and coded to the control account for
periodic recovery.
We have carried out test sampling of higher value payments, those individually in
excess of £3,000, together with a more random sample of each 30th cashbook transaction
irrespective of value, to cover the full financial year. The test sample included 109
invoices totalling £568,551 and representing 54% of all non-pay related payments for
the year with all the above criteria met.
Conclusions
We are pleased to record that no significant issues have been identified, although we
noted that two payments identified a different payee name in the cashbook to that on
the cheque issued. This arose as the purchase ledger supplier was set up in the name
of Premier Farnell UK Ltd on an earlier date and prior to the payment being
processed, the company changed its name to Complete Pool Controls. The other case
was similar with the purchase ledger supplier set up as TS Com Ltd and the invoice
coming from Iris Ticketing Ltd.
We also note that VAT returns continue to be submitted in a timely and accurate
manner, utilising HMRC’s on-line facility as per current best practice advice.

Chesham TC: 2011-12 (Final update)
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Assessment and Management of Risk
Our aim here is to ensure that the Council has put in place appropriate arrangements to
identify all potential areas of risk of both a financial and health and safety nature, whilst
also ensuring that appropriate arrangements exist to monitor and manage those risks
identified in order to minimise the opportunity for their coming to fruition. We have
therefore undertaken the following tests: ¾ We note that the review of risks utilising the LCRS software has revealed that it
is not compatible with the Council’s operating system and the Council is
carrying out its testing using information from the system and making its own
assessment of risk indices leading to re-adoption at the Policy & Resources
Committee;
¾ We also noted that a review of the Risk Management Policy and Strategy has
been carried out and formally adopted by the Policy and Resources Committee
in December 2011 and
¾ We have examined the current year’s insurance policy, cover continuing to be
provided by Allianz. We note that Loss of Revenue and Fidelity Guarantee cover
remains at £558,000 and £700,000 respectively, whilst both Employer’s and
Public Liability stand at £10 million.
Conclusions
No issues arise in this area.

Budgetary Control and Reserves
We aim in this area of our work to ensure that the Council has appropriate procedures in
place to determine its future financial requirements leading to the adoption of an
approved budget and formal determination of the amount to be precepted on the District
Council, that effective arrangements are in place to monitor budgetary performance
throughout the financial year and that the Council has identified and retains appropriate
reserve funds to meet future spending plans. To meet this objective, we have:
¾ Noted that the Policy and Resources Committee approved the 2012-13 precept at
£828,430 in January 2012 with the adopted amount formerly reported in the full
Council minutes;
¾ Noted that the Finance Officer continues to produce sound management
accounts each month, including a brief commentary on the budget variance
positions where appropriate, with members formally considering these at the
Policy and Resources Committee meetings, the minutes of which are
subsequently approved by Full Council;
¾ Reviewed the year-end budget outturn in conjunction with our update of the
analysis of income and expenditure to ensure that no significant unexplained or
unanticipated variances are in existence;
¾ Noted that a number of specific Earmarked Reserves remain in place and that
these are, as evidenced by the Estimates exercise, reviewed periodically by
members; and
Chesham TC: 2011-12 (Final update)
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¾ Reviewed the level of year-end balances to ensure that the Council is retaining
appropriate funds to ensure the effective continuation of its service provision and
that earmarked funds are appropriate to the Council’s future development
aspirations.
Conclusions
We are pleased to record that no issues have arisen in this area of our review process
warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Income
In considering the Council’s income streams, we aim to ensure that robust systems are
in place to ensure the identification of all income due to the Council from its various
sources, to ensure that the income is invoiced in a timely manner and that effective
procedures are in place to pursue recovery of any outstanding monies due to the
Council. We note that, in addition to the precept, a wide variety of income streams exist,
including that from the Elgiva Theatre, Moor Road swimming pool, Town Hall hire,
burial and associated fees, allotments, travel tokens and bank interest and have
undertaken the following work this year:¾ With regard to burial and associated fees, the hire of the Town Hall and other
facilities we are pleased to note that an appropriate review of the fees and
charges applying was undertaken as part of the budget work for 2011-12 (in
December 2010) and again by the Policy and Resources Committee in
November 2011;
¾ We note that officers and members continue to closely manage the position with
regard to unpaid sales invoices with £13,673 outstanding at the end of
September 2011, of which £10,672 was for more than 30 days. One of these
invoices for £9,600 is under negotiation with Chiltern District Council and the
other substantial amount was paid in October.
¾ It was our intention to visit the Elgiva Theatre at the first interim visit for 201213 to discuss financial procedures and carry out testing as appropriate, but owing
to a staff review on the date of the audit and other pressing needs, we agreed to
defer this work until the second interim visit. This was duly carried out with a
‘whistle stop tour of the Theatre’ with the manager, discussing the availability of
Professional and Amateur productions, showing films and private hirings, and
the decisions available to the Manager in engaging productions and negotiating
the share of income with the organisations using the facility.
Conclusions
There are no significant areas of concern, although we noted a £100 deposit on a Hall
Hire in October 2011 made by cheque and the cheque was “stopped”. The Council
are presently considering what action to take on this deposit, but have decided only to
take deposits by cash in the future.
We note that a 3 year agreement has been approved from June 2011 with Elgiva
catering concessionaire.
Chesham TC: 2011-12 (Final update)
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We understood at a previous visit that officers had produced interim costings for the
implementation of a debit card facility at the Pool and considered that advantages
would accrue from of an improved secure service for the public, together with the
accompanying reduction in the level of cash handled, which should more than
compensate for the expenditure outlay. We note that this facility is now in place at the
Pool/Gym facility and that consideration has been given to introducing a similar
facility at the Town Hall where other income is collected at the Reception desk. We
note that this facility has been introduced from April 2012.
R1.

Consideration should be given to the acquisition of a company credit card to
assist in higher value purchases through the internet, etc. thereby ensuring that
effective controls with finite financial limits put in place on the use of such a card.
Introduced from April 2012.

Petty Cash Account(s)
We are required, as part of the Internal Audit Certificate in the Annual return to assess
the adequacy of controls in place over the operation of petty cash accounts at the
Council. We have examined the position of the Town Hall’s petty cash accounts at our
second interim visit with no matters identified warranting formal comment.
Conclusions
We checked the October 2011 Town Hall petty cash account noting that some
payments were for high value payments (£60 to £70), but the overall materiality of
transactions involved gives us no cause for concern as to the effectiveness of the
inherent controls.

Salaries and Wages
In examining the Council’s payroll function, we aim to confirm that extant legislation is
being appropriately observed as regards adherence to the requirements of HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) in the deduction and payment over of income tax and NI
contributions, together with meeting the requirements of the local government pension
scheme. To meet that objective, we have examined the payroll procedures in place and
the physical payments made to staff in June 2011, as detailed below, by reference to that
month’s payroll documentation produced on the bespoke payroll software in use by the
Council. This work included: ¾ Ensuring that the Council had approved employee pay rates for the financial year
and that these have been duly and accurately applied;
¾ Checking to ensure that appropriate tax codes are being applied;
¾ Checking to ensure that national insurance deductions were being computed
accurately depending on whether the employee was a member of the pension
scheme or not;
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¾ Checking that the revised scales of superannuation deductions, based on the
LGPS salary bandings as updated in April 2009 and April 2011, were being
applied where appropriate;
¾ Checking to ensure that all hourly paid staff had been paid in accordance with
their timesheets and that these had been approved as necessary by the
appropriate line manager;
¾ Checking that the payment of the Tax, NIC and Superannuation deductions
being made to HMRC and the County Council was being done in a timely and
accurate manner; and
¾ The annual HMRC returns were completed appropriately and submitted within
the required time limit.
Conclusions
Our testing in this area has resulted in no significant matters arising warranting
formal comment or recommendation. We understand that staff employment contracts
are being reviewed and updated currently and will re-visit this aspect at a future visit.
R2.

The Council should ensure that employment contracts are updated routinely to
reflect accurately employees’ current working terms and conditions.

Asset Registers
The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996 (as periodically
amended) to maintain a formal register of the assets owned and managed by the
Council. DCK Beavers, the Council’s contract accountants, maintain a register
identifying the gross cost of all assets purchased with a value in excess of the £1,000 de
minimus level to which annual depreciation is applied as appropriate. The detailed
Statement of Accounts identify the gross cost of all such assets, together with the value
of any new acquisitions and depreciation charged in the year and cumulatively, the
resultant Net Book Value being reported on the Balance Sheet in the FRSSE format
Statement of Accounts prepared for presentation to members.
We have reviewed the content of the register maintained to ensure that, it is complete
and reflects accurately the Council’s asset stock at our final visit.
Conclusions
We are pleased to record that no issues have been identified in this area this year,
repor6ting of asset values in the Annual Return being in line with extant guidance at
purchase cost, rather than depreciated value.

Investments and Loans
Our objectives here are to ensure that the Council is “investing” surplus funds, be they
held temporarily or on a longer term basis in appropriate banking and investment
institutions, that an appropriate investment policy is in place and that the Council is
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obtaining the best rate of return on any such investments made and that interest earned
is brought to account correctly and appropriately in the accounting records.
¾ We were pleased to note that the Council’s annual investment strategy was
appropriately reconsidered and adopted for 2011-12 by the Policy and Resources
Committee at its meeting in February 2011;
¾ We have reviewed the transactions for the financial year on the term
“investments” placed in Treasury deposits by reference to the Lloyds TSB
transaction notifications, also verifying the appropriate and timely receipt of
interest earned on the deposits by reference to the relevant receiving bank
account statements; and
¾ We have checked and agreed detail of the instalment repayments of the two
loans outstanding with the PWLB on 30th September 2011 and 2nd April 2012 to
the cashbooks and with the PWLB notification “demand”,
Conclusion
No issues arise this year.

Statement of Account and Annual Return
The 1996 Accounts and Audit Regulations required all Councils to prepare annually a
detailed Statement of Accounts, together with supporting statements identifying other
aspects of the Council’s financial affairs.
We have reviewed the Accounts and supporting documentation, agreeing detail to the
supporting Omega and other relevant documentation. We have also examined the
processes in place for the identification of year-end debtors, creditors, accruals and
prepayments with no concerns identified.
Conclusions
No issues have been identified in this area of our review and we have duly signed off
the Internal Audit certificate at Section 4 of the Annual Return, assigning positive
assurances in each relevant area. We would ask that the Clerk provides us with a copy
of the completed Sections 1 & 2 once they have been adopted by the Council and
certified by himself and the Chairman.

Chesham TC: 2011-12 (Final update)

02/07/2012

Auditing Solutions Ltd

Rec.
Recommendation
No.
Review of Income
R1
Consideration should be given to the acquisition of a company credit card to assist in higher value
purchases through the internet, etc. thereby ensuring that effective controls with finite financial
limits put in place on the use of such a card.
Review of Salaries and Wages
R2
The Council should ensure that employment contracts are updated routinely to reflect accurately
employees’ current working terms and conditions.
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Response

Reported to Policy & Resources Committee 6/2/12.
Decided to purchase one credit card to start and
introduced from April 2012.

To be done. Copy has been sent to South East Employers
for their opinion.

Auditing Solutions Ltd

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee on Monday
2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 17 (SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM) – POSSIBLE
CONTRIBUTION TO CHESHAM JUBILEE CELEBRATIONS
Reporting Officer:

Bill Richards (01494 583824)

Summary
1.

To consider underwriting the final cost of the Jubilee celebrations in Chesham.
Background Information

2.

At the Council meeting of the 25th June 2012 it was resolved that ‘that the matter be referred to
the next Policy and Resources Committee following clarification on the likelihood of a grant from
Chiltern District Council while noting that these events were not organised by this Council.’ (Min
No. 25).
Financial Implications

3.

The Events Committee is requesting that the Council underwrite the final accounts to an amount to
be determined by the Committee after clarification on other possible funding options.
Strategic Objectives

4.

Accords with Strategic Aim 1 - ‘To enable residents to enjoy high-quality social, recreational,
and cultural facilities within the town and to seek the continuing improvement and development of
these facilities in accordance with the desires expressed by the residents.’
Equality Act Implications

5.

The events organised were highly diverse and were intended to include those with protected
characteristics.
Detailed Consideration

6.

The provisional figures for the Chesham Events Group show current expenditure of £12,425
against income of £8,568. A detailed breakdown is attached as Private& Confidential information
for Members.

7.

Members will recall that at the Council meeting held on the 25th June, Members were of the view
that further clarification on the possibility of a Chiltern District Council grant was required before
the Council considered what level of support, if any, it wished to give the Jubilee Events
Committee retrospectively. As mentioned at the meeting, the Jubilee Events Committee had
expressed great disappointment and surprise that officers at the District Council were
recommending no grant be awarded since earlier discussions had appeared to have indicated
otherwise.

8.

According to the District Council officers’ report ‘The application failed to articulate how the
Diamond jubilee events would support the council’s key objectives and also what costs, income
and external contributions would be associated with the project’ which is why it scored
comparatively low when assessed.

9.

The procedure now is as follows: Chiltern District Council Members are invited to comment on
the grant recommendations by the 4th July. If officers’ recommendations are challenged by
Members, it is likely that the Cabinet Portfolio Holder will refer these grants under scrutiny to the
District Council’s Cabinet. At the time of writing, it is not known whether this would be on 31st
July or 18th September. If there are no objections to the recommendations, the Portfolio holder will
approve the grants on the 4th July.

10.

Accordingly it would seem sensible for the Members who are also Chiltern District Council
Members to make requests to the officers that the scoring be reassessed before the consultation
deadline has passed on the 4th July 2012.

11.

Clearly a number of unpaid creditors remain and Members are therefore asked whether the
Council is prepared to underwrite and pay some of these bills before Chiltern District Council has
determined its position.

Recommendation
That the Committee decides how to proceed in supporting the Jubilee Events
Committee.

Report of the Officers to a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee on
Monday 2nd July 2012

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18 (SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT) COMPLIMENTARY USE OF COUNCIL LAND
Reporting Officer:

Bill Richards (01494 583824)

Summary
1.

To consider a request for the use of the Council’s open spaces for community use.
Background Information

2.

At the Policy and Resources Committee of the 27th March 2006 it was resolved that
‘free use be granted to…Chiltern District Council’s sports development proposed
activities during the next 12 months, subject to there being no profit made on such
sessions.’ (Min No 67).
Financial Implications

3.

None pertaining to this report.
Strategic Objectives

4.

Accords with Strategic Aim 1 ‘To enable residents to enjoy high-quality social,
recreational, and cultural facilities within the town and to seek the continuing
improvement and development of these facilities in accordance with the desires
expressed by the residents’ and 7 ‘To help create a socially inclusive and caring
community, which embraces all its residents equally, which seeks to develop their wellbeing, knowledge, understanding, and mutual co-operation.’
Equality Act Implications

5.

Non applicable.
Detailed Consideration

6.

Your officers have only very recently been made aware that Chiltern District Council is
planning to run a number of activities on the Council’s land. Accordingly Members are
asked to consider the following request for free use of the Council’s open spaces.

7.

The Community Integration Officer at Chiltern District Council wishes to offer young
people of the Newtown and Waterside (and surrounding) wards some multi sports
activities during the summer holidays and summer terms this year. These activities are
deliberately targeted for young people from low-income families within these wards and

consequently there will be no charge to the participants on the Council’s land. The
proposed sessions are attached.
8.

As can be seen a lot of the activities will be run in conjunction with the town’s main
football, rugby and cricket teams. Your officers have recently met with the Community
Integration Officer and have stressed the importance of the need for proper risk
assessments and insurance but as these will be overseen by Chiltern District Council,
there ought not to be any concern in this respect. The Community Integration Officer
has also agreed to fully acknowledge this Council’s involvement if free use is granted.

9.

Complimentary use of facilities is usually delegated to the Town Clerk in conjunction
with the Chairman of Policy and Resources Committee. However as the Chairman is
only being appointed on the night, the programme is significant and a quick decision is
required, your officers thought it prudent to ask the Committee to determine the
Council’s position.

Recommendation
That the Committee agree to free use for Chiltern District Council’s sports
activities during July and August 2012 on Council land.

Bill Richards
Town Clerk
Publication Date: 28.6 2012.

